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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the Directors of the Company collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge
and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there is no other matter the omission of which would make any statement herein
or this report misleading.
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DEFINITIONS
Bx

Term
g
J A

Articles
48 A1l

Audit Committee
BEZLZESY

Board
EEay

Company
PIN/NEC]

Companies Ordinance
NCIRESY

CG Code

TEERTH

Dafeng Port Development
Group

AREEREEE

Dafeng Port Overseas

X 25855 4

Director(s)

=%

GEM Listing Rules
GEM _Em R Al

Group
REH

Hong Kong
BB

HK$/HKD
BT

Jiangsu Hairong
AN E R
Jiangsu Yancheng

ST % B8 35k

Definition

B=

The articles of association of the Company, as amended from time to time
RAFRABERMBA - CTRFER]

The audit committee of the Company
ARBIBEREES®

The board of the Directors
ES A

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
RNEEMIER D ERAA

Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong)
BEEDIE622F 1A &P

The Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix C1 of the GEM
Listing Rules
GEM LT #R RIF $xC1P7 8 O 2 & A <7 B

TEREE B KL EMEEBEABR AT (Jiangsu Yancheng Port Dafeng Port
Development Group Co., Ltd*)
IHBERAREEREEEBFRAA

Dafeng Port Overseas Investment Holdings Limited, which has 57.46% interests
in the Company
AREBEBINREERBBRARF - HRARAHEHS7.46% % =

The directors of the Company
RRFEE

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange
Bt AZ FTGEM B % L #5 Al

The Company and its subsidiaries

ZAN/NI D RN

The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of
China
PEARAMBEEETHTRE

Hong Kong dollars
7T

T & EW A SR ALISE AR QA (Jiangsu Yancheng Port Hairong
Petrochemical Terminal Co., Ltd*)

TEHENEBRAOLBEARAT

TEREW BT REBBR AT (Jiangsu Yancheng Port Holding Group Co.,
Ltd.*)
IHEREEREERRRAR

Oé Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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Legal Committee
EREE®

Nomination Committee

REEEE

Port Shipping International

78 fin B R

Port Storage Petrochemical

BRI

Harbor Development and
Construction

BERFERER

PRC/Mainland China

FELHEAN

Remuneration Committee
FMWEEw

RMB
ARE

SFO
&5 H 15

Share(s)
& 17

Stock Exchange
Bt 52 PR

USD/US dollars
ED

Year

REE

*Note:

DEFINITIONS
Bx

The legal committee of the Company
RATEREAE

The nomination committee of the Company
ARBIREZES

TEEWNBEMBERESBER AT (Jiangsu Yancheng Port Port Shipping
International Trade Co., Limited*)
IHENRBEMBRESBERAQF

T EEW BB AILAERADA Jiangsu Yancheng Port Port Storage
Petrochemical Co., Ltd.*)
IHBERABBFALBRAA

HpmALEALEREBEMEEREMR AT (Yancheng Dafeng District
Dafeng Harbor Development and Construction Co., Ltd.*)
B mAEEREHERESEMERERBERAA

The People’s Republic of China, excluding Hong Kong, Macau Special
Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan for the purpose of this report
MEARAMNME  fAREMHE TREEE BAFITHRREEE

The remuneration committee of the Company
ARBHFMEES

Renminbi Yuan

AR

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong)
BREVIESNEEF K BE G

Ordinary shares of the Company
NN R i

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBAREHARAA

United States dollars

e

1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023
- =f—A-BE-T-=F+-A=+—H

P EE

For the purpose of this report and unless otherwise specified, the English RABREME  REEEHIN RPBRFMKIOHAF A
translation of the name of the companies incorporated in the PRC are used for ~ THIE X EZEE BT -

identification purpose only.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

MACRO SITUATION REVIEW

During the Year, the Group faced complex macro situation which
has a variety of impacts on the business development of the
Group.

Increased Demand for Petrochemical Storage

During the Year, both domestic and international economic
recovery spurred an uptick in demand for petrochemical
products, while fluctuations in domestic and international
crude oil prices necessitated inventory adjustments.
Concurrently, national policies supporting the development of
the petrochemical logistics industry contributed to increased

occupancy rates within the petrochemical storage sector.
BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group is principally engaged in trading
business and the provision of petrochemical products storage
business.

Our major business activities can be divided into the below
segments during the Year:

1. Trading Business

The Group is engaged in the trading and import and
export businesses of electronic products, petrochemical
products, medical treatment products and soybean
products. During the Year, the Group's trading business
recorded revenue of approximately HK$1,141.9 million
(2022: approximately HK$787.2 million). The increase in
revenue was mainly due to the expansion of the trading
business and the Group has actively explored new market
channels and customer groups, effectively improving

business scale and revenue.
2. Petrochemical Products Storage Business

The Group is engaged in petrochemical products storage
business through Port Storage Petrochemical. During the
Year, the Group’s petrochemical products storage business
recorded an increase in revenue by approximately 83.0%
to approximately HK$16.1 million (2022: approximately
HK$8.8 million). The increase in revenue was mainly due to
the gradual recovery of the petrochemical markets both
domestically and abroad as impact from the Omicron
variant has gradually reduced, driving the growth of
demand. The petrochemical products storage business
kept its growing momentum. Leveraging this opportunity,

08 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

the Company strives to acquire new customers and
optimise its business to improve the service level and
competitiveness of storage business. With these efforts,
the Company recorded an increase in the business volume
and revenue.

OUTLOOKS

It is expected that the domestic and international economy
will continue to recover, and the demand for petrochemical
products will maintain rapid growth, thus driving the growth
of petrochemical logistics demand. At the same time, as China
strengthens the construction of strategic energy security
reserves, the scale of domestic crude oil and refined oil reserves
will be further expanded, which will also have a positive impact
on petrochemical storage demand. Going forward, the Company
will adopt a prudent approach to run the Group's existing
business and also actively to seize the opportunity of integrated
development of Jiangsu Yancheng, the Group will rationally
reorganise and optimise the resources of the Company, simplify
and restructure to conserve resources and prudently identify
investment opportunities.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group's revenue increased by approximately 45.5% to
approximately HK$1,158.0 million for the Year (corresponding
period in 2022: approximately HK$796.0 million). Regarding
reason of the increase in revenue, please refer to the paragraph
headed “Business Review” above for details.

The Group's cost of revenue increased by approximately 47.1%
to approximately HK$1,148.9 million for the Year (corresponding
period in 2022: approximately HK$781.1 million). The increase in
cost of revenue was mainly driven by the increase in revenue of
the Group's trading business.

The Group recorded a gross profit margin of approximately
0.8% for the Year (corresponding period in 2022: approximately
1.9%). The decline in gross profit margin was mainly due
to the complexity of the global economic environment and
the intensification of trade barriers, where the Group offers
competitive pricing to attract and retain customers, resulting in
the decline of gross profit margin.

The Group's finance costs amounted to approximately HK$33.9
million for the Year (2022: approximately HK$39.6 million).
Financing costs mainly include interest on bank borrowings and
listed credit enhancement guaranteed bonds. The decrease in
financing costs was because Dafeng Port Development Group
has waived the interest charged on the loans to the Group since
1 January 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

The Group recorded profit for the Year of approximately
HK$53.5 million (2022: loss of approximately HK$64.2 million).
The turnaround was attributable to the one-off gain on disposal
of 40% equity interests in Jiangsu Hairong of approximately
HK$108.9 million during the Year. Profit attributable to owners of
the Company was approximately HK$54.7 million (2022: loss of
approximately HK$62.0 million), while basic earnings per share
was HK$4.25 cents (2022: loss per share of HK$4.81 cents).

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net current liabilities
of approximately HK$390.7 million (2022: approximately
HK$34.6 million). The increase in net current liabilities was
due to inclusion of listed credit enhanced guaranteed bonds
of approximately HK$426.7 million in current liabilities during
the current period, of which approximately HK$405.6 million
was included in non-current liabilities during the previous
period. Including net amounts due to connected companies
of approximately HK$50.3 million (2022: approximately HK$37.6
million).

The Group's equity capital and bank and other borrowings have
been applied to fund its working capital and other operational
needs. The Group's current ratio as at 31 December 2023 was
approximately 0.51 (2022: approximately 0.94). Please refer to
the reason above leading to the increase of net current liabilities
for details about the causes to change in current ratio.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's gearing ratio (defined as
the ratio of total interest-bearing borrowings to total equity)
152.8% (2022: approximately
negative 124.6%), resulting from an increase in total interest-

was approximately negative

bearing borrowings by approximately 9.2% to approximately
HK$682.9 million (2022: approximately HK$625.3 million) and a
decrease of loss in total equity by approximately 10.9% to loss
of approximately HK$447.0 million (2022: loss of approximately
HK$501.8 million) for the current period.

In order to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due within the next twelve months and improve the Group's
current ratio. The Group has taken and will continue to take a
series of measures and arrangements, which include but not
limited to the following:

(i) the Group is in negotiation with financial institutions and
connected parties for the renewal of the Group’s bank and
other borrowings upon expiry, obtaining new borrowings
and applying for future credit facilities;

1 O Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(i)  the Company has obtained a RMB1 billion financial
support (equivalent to approximately HK$1,100,000,000)
in formal writing from Dafeng Port Development Group,
a connected company which has 40% equity interests in

Dafeng Port Overseas;

(i)  the Group is expected to generate adequate cash flows
to maintain its operations;

(iv) the Group has subsequently issued credit enhanced
guarantee bonds, amounting to US$31 million, which
were listed on the Stock Exchange on 7 March 2024.
The proceeds from the issuance of new bonds has
been used to settle part of the listed credit enhanced
guarantee bonds which originally matured on 23 March
2024. For further details, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 7 March 2024 and 8 March 2024;
and

(v)  the Group has subsequently obtained a loan from Dafeng
Port (HK) Development Limited (“Dafeng Port (HK)"), a
connected party of the Company, of US$27 million for
liquidity purpose.

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's total deficits attributable
to equity holders of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$465.6 million (2022: approximately HK$523.5 million). The
capital of the Company only comprised of the ordinary share.
There was no movement in the issued share capital of the
Company during the Year.

Issuance of US$55,000,000 credit-enhanced
guaranteed bonds to be purchased by professional
investors only and listed on the Stock Exchange

On 17 March 2021, the Company, as issuer, Dafeng Port
Development Group, as guarantor, and Tensant Securities
Co., Ltd., Haitong International Securities Co., Ltd., BOSC
International Company Limited, Shanghai Pudong Development
Bank Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch, CEB International Capital
Corporation Limited, China Everbright Securities (HK) Limited,
Huarong International Securities Limited and China Industrial
Securities International Brokerage Limited (together, the
"Placing Agents”), entered into a placing agreement pursuant
to which the Company agreed to appoint the Placing Agents as
placing agents for the purpose of procuring, and to use its best
efforts, the subscription of the bonds of up to an aggregate

principal amount of US$55,000,000 (the “Placing”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

The Placing was completed on 24 March 2021. Pursuant to the
results of a book building exercise, the bonds in the principal
amount of US$55 million has been placed to bondholders at a
coupon rate of 2.4% per annum and for a term of 3 years.

The net proceeds from the Placing, after deducting the
commission to be charged by the Placing Agents and other
fees payable in connection with this offering, was approximately
US$52.7 million. The net proceeds have been used in repayment
of the principal of US$50 million and interest of approximately
US$1.9 million of the unlisted secured bonds due on 28 March
2021, and the balance of approximately US$0.8 million has been
used to satisfy the Group's normal working capital requirements.

For further details in relation to the Placing, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 24 March 2021.

Dividend

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the Year (2022: Nil).

Significant investment, material acquisitions and
disposals

On 30 November 2023, Port Shipping International, an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a disposal agreement with Harbor Development and
Construction, an independent third party, pursuant to which Port
Shipping International had conditionally agreed to dispose of
40% equity interest of Jiangsu Hairong to Harbor Development
and Construction at a consideration of RMB98,560,000.

The disposal was completed when the industrial and commercial
administration registration in the PRC in respect of the transfer
of the 40% equity interests in Jiangsu Hairong was completed
on 26 December 2023. A gain in relation to the disposal of
RMB98,560,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$108.9 million)
was recognised during the Year.

For further details,
announcements relating to the disposal dated 30 November
2023, 12 December 2023 and 27 December 2023.

please refer to the Company's

Save as disclosed, the Group had no significant investment,
material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and

associated companies during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Pledge of assets

The Group used bank facilities and other borrowings to finance
its business expansion. As at 31 December 2023, a loan from
a third party of approximately RMB37.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$40.7 million) was secured by petrochemical
storage equipment of approximately RMB33.1 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$36.5 million). As at 31 December 2022, a
loan from Dafeng Port Development Group of approximately
RMB13.4 million (equivalent to approximately HK$15.2 million)
was secured by an advance lease payment of approximately
HK$37.8 million.

Foreign currency exposure

The income and expenditure of the Group are mainly carried
in HKD, RMB and USD. Exposures to foreign currency risk arise
from certain of the Group’s trade and other receivables, trade
and other payables and cash and bank balances denominated
in RMB and USD. The Group mainly adopts measures such as
adjusting the time of foreign exchange receipt and payment,
matching the balance of foreign exchange receipts and
payments, and signing foreign exchange lock agreements with
banks to control foreign exchange risks. The Group does not
use derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency
risk. The management team of the Group reviews the foreign
currency exposures regularly.

Employees and emolument policy

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed a total of 93
employees (2022: 95 employees) based in Hong Kong and the
PRC. During the Year, the total staff costs, including Directors'’
emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$14.6 million (2022:
approximately HK$17.6 million).

Remuneration of employees is determined with reference to the
market terms and commensurate with the level of pay for similar
positions within the industry. Discretionary year-end bonuses
are payable to employees based on individual performance. The
Group provides benefits in accordance with the relevant laws
and regulations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Pension Schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong) for all of its employees
in Hong Kong who are eligible to participate in the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”). The Group
and its employees in Hong Kong are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees'
relevant income.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in the
PRC are required to participate in the central pension schemes
operated by the local municipal governments (the “Central
Pension Schemes”). According to the relevant regulations,
contributions that should be borne by the companies within the
Group are principally determined based on percentages of the
basic salaries of employees, subject to certain ceilings imposed.
The applicable percentages for the Central Pension Schemes for
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are listed below:

Percentage
Pension insurance 24%
Medical insurance 9%-10%
Unemployment insurance 1%
Housing fund 12.0%

The Group's contributions to the MPF Scheme and the Central
Pension Schemes vest fully and immediately with the employees.
During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there
were neither contributions forfeited by the Group nor had
there been any utilisation of such forfeited contributions to
reduce future contributions. As at 31 December 2023 and 2022,
there were no forfeited contributions which were available
for utilisation by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contributions to the MPF Scheme and the Central Pension
Schemes.

The Group reviews the emoluments of the Directors and staff
based on their respective qualification, experience, performance
and the market rates so as to maintain the remunerations of the
Directors and staff at a competitive level.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (2022: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Event After the Year

Issuance of US$31,000,000 credit enhanced guaranteed bonds
to be purchased by professional investors only and listed on
the Stock Exchange

On 4 March 2024, the Company, as issuer, Dafeng Port
Development Group, as guarantor, and BOSC International
Securities Limited, Soochow Securities International Brokerage
Limited, Industrial Bank Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch, CNCB
(Hong Kong) Capital Limited, Shenwan Hongyuan Securities
(H.K.) Limited, Huatai Financial Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited,
Changjiang Securities Brokerage (HK) Limited, Essence
International Securities (Hong Kong) Limited, Sigma Capital
Management Limited and JA Securities Limited (collectively,
the “US$31 million Bond Placing Agents”),
placing agreement pursuant to which the Company agreed

entered into a

to appoint the US$31 million Bond Placing Agents as placing
agents for the purpose of procuring, and to use its best efforts,
the subscription of the bonds of up to an aggregate principal
amount of US$31,000,000 (the “US$31 million Bond Placing”).

The US$31 million Bond Placing was completed on 7 March
2024. Pursuant to the results of a book building exercise, the
bonds in the principal amount of US$31,000,000 has been placed
to bondholders at a coupon rate of 5.45% per annum with a
term of 3 years.

The commission to be charged by the US$31 million Bond
Placing and other fees payable in connection with this offer
are paid from the Company's own funds and the net proceeds
from the US$31 million Bond Placing are approximately
US$31,000,000. The net proceeds were used to repay the
principal of US$55,000,000 and interest of approximately
US$660,000 of certain listed credit enhanced guaranteed bonds
due on 23 March 2024, with the balance of US$24,660,000 being
repaid from the Company's own funds.

For further details of the US$31 million Bond Placing, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 7 March
2024 and 8 March 2024.

Change of Directors

Appointment and resignation of Directors

Dr. Bian Zhaoxiang has resigned as an independent non-
executive Director and Ms. Hui Alice has been appointed as an

independent non-executive Director on 28 March 2024 to fill the
casual vacancy on the Board.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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For details, please refer to the Company's announcement dated
28 March 2024.

Save as disclosed in the report, there are no significant events
after the Year and up to the date of this report.

Environmental, Social and Governance

The Company attaches great importance to environmental,
social and governance ("ESG") risks and has been improving its
ESG management. The Board retains overall responsibility for
the Group's ESG governance and establishes an ESG working
group ("ESG Working Group”) that reports to the Board to
implement ESG management. During the Year, the Company
engaged a professional third party institution to assist us
to thoroughly evaluate ESG risks and opportunities of the
Company, accordingly establish risk management and internal
control policies, and draft management approaches, strategies,
and objectives.

Meanwhile, the ESG Working Group has been actively
communicating with our stakeholders through various channels,
for fully understanding their expectations, interests and
information needs with the help of the professional third
party institution. The Company's key stakeholders include
shareholders and investors, customers, employees, suppliers,
the community, etc. The ESG Working Group listens to
stakeholders’ feedback via questionnaires, visits, phone calls,
to understand their interests on ESG information. During the
Year, the ESG Working Group screened ESG issues that are of
importance to the Company according to stakeholders’ opinions
and drafted ESG report based on such important issues.

A detailed ESG report is set out in pages 52 to 117 of this
report.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhao Liang (“Mr. Zhao"), aged 36, was appointed as an
executive Director and Chairman of the Board on 27 May 2022.
He has served as the assistant to general manager of Dafeng Port
Development Group, a controlling shareholder of the Company,
since May 2022. He has also served as a director and deputy
chairman of L& ZF L REI R AR 2 A (Jiangsu Yueda
New Energy Technology Development Co., Ltd*), a connected
company which is owned as to 30% by Jiangsu Yancheng, a
controlling shareholder of the Company which wholly-owns
Dafeng Port Development Group since April 2022. He served
as a general manager of Port Shipping International, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, from May 2022 to
November 2023. Between January 2021 and May 2022, Mr. Zhao
successively held various positions in the group of companies
of Jiangsu Yancheng. Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor degree in
Chinese language and literature (online course) at the Southwest
University of Science of Technology (78 £t 5 K28) in July 2017
and a bachelor degree in electrical engineering and automation
at the Yancheng Institute of Technology (B8 T2 Ft) in June
2010.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ji Longtao (“"Mr. Ji”), aged 59, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 23 February 2015. He owns 55% equity
interest in each of Success Pacific Investment Group Limited
("Success Pacific”) and )L # Z /8% B B R A A (Jiangsu Huahai
Investment Company Limited*) (“Jiangsu Huahai”), which in turn
owns 18% and 10% equity interests in the Dafeng Port Overseas
respectively. Mr. Ji owns 40.5% equity interests of E&¥ T #E
BEXABMRATF (Yancheng Longgiao Property Development
Limited*), which is engaged in property development and
investment business. He is a director of Dafeng Port Overseas
and an executive director of each of Success Pacific and Jiangsu
Huahai, both of which are engaged in investment and asset
management businesses.

Mr. Yang Yue Xia (“Mr. Yang”), aged 51, was appointed
as a non-executive Director on 12 March 2015. He was an
executive Director from 20 December 2013 to 11 March
2015. He is a director of HEREZERBRRA (Luck Sign
Investment Development Limited), BZRE R H R A7) (Evertime
Management Limited) and JEF| 2 % R G R 27 (Worldly
Development Limited), which are subsidiaries of the Company.
He has many years of experience in corporate management. Mr.
Yang is currently a director of RIITE KB ERBEERERA
Al (Shenzhen Youmi Agricultural Technology Development Co.,
Ltd* ). He gained working experience across different industries
such as trading and property development.
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Mr. Zhang Shukai (“Mr. Zhang"), aged 27, was appointed as a
non-executive Director on 11 January 2023. He has served as the
deputy general manager of Dafeng Port Development Group,
a controlling shareholder of the Company, since September
2022. Between January 2021 and September 2022, Mr. Zhang
worked at Jiangsu Yancheng, with his last position as an assistant
minister of the investment and financing department. Mr.
Zhang obtained a master degree in international finance from
the University of Glasgow in December 2020. In July 2019, Mr.
Zhang obtained a bachelor degree in computer technology and
network from the University of Hertfordshire.

Mr. Zhang obtained legal advice from a firm of solicitors
qualified to advise on Hong Kong law as regards the
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules that are applicable
to him as a Director and the possible consequences of making
a false declaration or giving false information to the Stock
Exchange on 12 January 2023. Mr. Zhang confirmed that he

understood his obligations as a Director.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Lau Hon Kee (“Mr. Lau”), BComm, MPA, FCPA, CPA
(Aust.), aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 31 May 2016. He was the financial
controller and company secretary of |LIH 7 MR&:E £ B H
BM AT (Shandong Luoxin Pharmaceutical Group Stock Co.,
Ltd.*) (@ company previously listed on the Stock Exchange with
stock code: 8058; currently delisted) from March 2003 to 31
December 2017 and a joint company secretary of Zhejiang
Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange with stock code: 1527) from 1 November
2014 to 31 January 2018. Mr. Lau has been an independent
non-executive director of Astrum Financial Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 8333)
since 23 June 2016. Mr. Lau was an independent non-executive
director of Strong Petrochemical Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 852) from
November 2008 to January 2012. Mr. Lau obtained a bachelor’s
degree in commerce from the Australian National University
in April 1994 and a master’'s degree in professional accounting
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in October 2009. Mr.
Lau has been a Certified Practising Accountant of CPA (Aust.)
and a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since 1999. Also, he has been
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since 2006 and FCPA of CPA (Aust.) since 2020.

Mr. Yu Xugang (“Mr. Yu”), aged 55, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 31 May 2016. He was a
partner at Beijing Dentons Law Offices, LLP from August 2001
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to December 2003 and has been promoted to a senior partner
at Beijing Dentons Law Offices, LLP since January 2004. Mr. Yu
was an independent director of Da Cheng Fund Management
Company Limited from August 2008 to August 2011. Mr. Yu was
an independent director of Inner Mongolia Baotou Steel Union
Co., Ltd (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
with stock code: 600010), from August 2009 to August 2015,
an independent director of Hubei Shuangjian Blower Company
Limited (@ company listed on National Equities Exchange and
Quotations with stock code: 833468) from October 2012 to
October 2015, and an independent non-executive director of
Central China Securities Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange with stock code: 1375) from December 2015 to
February 2022. He served as an independent director of Polaris
Bay Group Co., Ltd. (@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange with stock code: 600155) from December 2016 to
April 2023. Mr. Yu obtained a bachelor’'s degree in law from the
China University of Political Science and Law in 1990, a master's
degree in international economic law from the Peking University
in July 1998 and a doctorate degree in law from the Peking
University in July 2001.

Ms. Hui Alice ("Ms. Hui”), aged 35, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 28
March 2024. She has over 13 years of experience in non-profit
and stakeholder engagement. Since September 2022, she
has served as the Head of Alumni and Development at the
Faculty of Business and Economics of The University of Hong
Kong. From February 2011 to September 2022, Ms. Hui worked
at China-United States Exchange Foundation, a non-profit
and non-governmental foundation which provides platforms
to encourage constructive dialogue and diverse exchanges
between the people of the United State and China, with her
last position as a senior director. From September 2010 to
February 2011, Ms. Hui worked as a management trainee at
Orient Overseas Container Line Limited, a container shipping
and logistics service company. From June to August 2009,
Ms. Hui worked as a television news producer at the Beijing
office of Thomson Reuters. Ms. Hui has served as a member of
the Executive Committee of the HKU Business School Alumni
Association since December 2023. Ms. Hui obtained a Master
of Business Administration degree and a Bachelor of Journalism
degree from The University of Hong Kong in November 2021
and November 2010, respectively.

Ms. Hui obtained legal advice from a firm of solicitors qualified
to advise on Hong Kong law as regards the requirements under
the GEM Listing Rules that are applicable to her as a Director
and the possible consequences of making a false declaration
or giving false information to the Stock Exchange on 26 March
2024. Ms. Hui confirmed that she understood her obligations as
a Director.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWRE

The Board herein presents the annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the Year, the Group is principally engaged in trading
business and the provision of petrochemical products storage
business.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year is set out in
the section headed "Management Discussion and Analysis” on
page 8 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to fulfilling social responsibility,
promoting employee benefits and development, protecting the
environment and giving back to the community and achieving
sustainable growth.

A detailed environmental, social and governance report is set
out in pages 52 to 117 of this report.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of
the Company and of the Group as at the date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 126 to 247 of this
report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the Year (2022: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the revenue attributable to the Group's largest
and the five largest customers accounted for approximately
33.3% and 83.6% (2022: 46.5% and 79.1%) of the total value of
the Group's revenue, respectively.

During the Year, the purchases attributable to the Group's
largest and the five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 47.6% and 99.4% (2022: 48.0% and 85.9%) of the
total value of the Group's purchases, respectively.
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Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
to the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their close associates, or any shareholder of the Company (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of
the Company's issued share capital) had interest in any of the
Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the Year.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during
the Year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There is no change in the share capital of the Company during
the Year.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at
31 December 2023 are set out in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed
securities.

The Company and its subsidiaries did not redeem, purchase or
cancel any of their redeemable securities either.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to the shareholders of the Company comprised
of share premium account of approximately HK$201.4 million
and accumulated losses amounted to approximately HK$704.7
million. Details of the Company’s distributable reserves as at
31 December 2023 are set out in note 33(a) to the consolidated
financial statements. Movements in reserves of the Group during
the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 130 of this report.

DONATION

During the Year, the Group did not make any charitable
donations (2022: Nil).
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INTEREST CAPITALISED
No interest was capitalised by the Group during the Year.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 248 of
this report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Director
Mr. Zhao Liang (Chairman)
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ji Longtao

Mr. Yang Yue Xia

Mr. Zhang Shukai (appointed on 11 January 2023)
Mr. Miao Zhibin (resigned on 11 January 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Hon Kee

Mr. Yu Xugang

Ms. Hui Alice (appointed on 28 March 2024)

Mr. Zhang Fangmao (resigned on 11 January 2023)
Dr. Bian Zhaoxiang (resigned on 28 March 2024)

Biographical details of the Directors currently in service are set
out on pages 17 to 19 of this report.
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In accordance with article 84(1) of the Articles, Mr. Ji Longtao
and Mr. Yang Yue Xia as non-executive Directors and Mr. Lau Hon
Kee as an independent non-executive Director, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company ("AGM").

In accordance with article 83(3) of the Articles, Ms. Hui Alice
as an independent non-executive Director will hold office until
the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer herself for re-
election at the AGM.

received from each

The Company has independent

non-executive director an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules

and the Board considers them independent.
DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company and is subject to termination by either party giving
not less than three months’ prior written notice to the other.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

Each of the non-executive Directors (including the independent

non-executive Directors) has entered into service contract
with the Company for a fixed term of three years, subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM in accordance

with the Articles.
DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ remuneration is subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Remuneration Committee with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

During the Year, Mr. Zhao Liang has waived his emolument,
which was HK$960,000, and Mr. Zhang Shukai has waived his
emolument, which was HK$240,000.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors are set out in note
10(i) to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees and their emoluments are set
out in note 10(iv) to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or which
were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules relating to securities transactions by the Directors, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME, CONVERTIBLE
SECURITIES, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company operated a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives, recognising and
acknowledging the contributions that eligible persons had made
or may make to the Group. The Scheme was adopted pursuant
to the written resolution passed by the sole shareholder of the
Company on 3 August 2013. The Scheme expired on 2 August
2023 and no further share option may be granted under the
Scheme. For further details of the Scheme, please refer to note
27 to the consolidated financial statements. Since the Scheme
came into effect after the Company was listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange, no share options had been granted, exercised
or cancelled by the Company under the Scheme and there
were no outstanding share options under the Scheme as at 31
December 2023 and as at the date of this report.

Up to 31 December 2023, the Company and its subsidiaries
have not issued or granted any convertible securities, warrants
or other similar rights.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, so far as the Directors are aware,
the following persons/entities (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) had, or were deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name of shareholders

Capacity/Nature of interests

BEREBE B EEHE
Dafeng Port Overseas (Note 2) Beneficial owner
ANEEFINFE2) EmEAA

Dafeng Port Development
Group (Note 3)
RNEBFEEE T3

RESAEE D

Jiangsu Yancheng (Note 3)
T % B 9 (B E3) EESEEE R
B3k T A R BT (the People's
Government of Yancheng
City*) (“"PGYC") (Note 3)
BT A R B
(TE3E A RBAFD (M 5E3)

R PN

Notes:

1. The letter “L" denotes a long position in the interest in the issued share
capital of the Company.

2. Dafeng Port Overseas is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability, and is owned as to 40% by Dafeng Port Development
Group, which in turn is wholly owned by Jiangsu Yancheng, approximately
40.8% of which is owned by PGYC.

3. Dafeng Port Development Group, Jiangsu Yancheng and PGYC are
deemed to be interested in the Shares of the Company held by Dafeng
Port Overseas under the SFO.

Interest of controlled corporation

Interest of controlled corporation

Interest of controlled corporation
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors
were not aware of any other persons or entities (other than
the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS" ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or its ultimate holding company or any subsidiary
of such ultimate holding company a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures)
of, the Company or any other body corporate, neither the
Directors nor any of their spouses or children under the age of
18 had any right to subscribe for the securities or debt securities
of the Company or had exercised any such right.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There were no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
any of the Company’s directors or an entity connected with a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Group were entered into or in
existence during the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the
Group during the Year are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements. The interest expenses and rental fees paid/
payable fall under the definition of “connected transaction”
or “continuing connected transaction” (as the case may be) in
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules and are fully exempt from
the reporting, announcement, annual review and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules.
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EXEMPTED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Financial assistance received by the Group

The details of financial assistance received by the Group from
connected companies are set out in note 24(b) to the financial
statements.

Since the financial assistance received by the Group is provided
on normal commercial terms and is not secured by the assets of
the Group, according to Rule 20.88 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
financial assistance received by the Company was exempt from
the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
and the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer Shares on a pro rata basis to its existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float in the issued share capital of
the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPETING INTERESTS

Dafeng Port Development Group, a controlling shareholder of
the Company, has a direct wholly-owned subsidiary, namely
AR B BRI R RE AR A F (Jiangsu Yancheng Port
Supply Chain Technology Group Co., Ltd*) (“Yancheng Port
Supply Chain”), and has a direct non wholly-owned subsidiary,
namely JTER 1 :E B QYR ERABR AR Jiangsu Yueda Harbour
Logistics Development Company Limited*) (“Yueda Logistics”)
which are engaged in trading of various goods including coals,
metal ores, non-metallic ores, non-ferrous metal, chemical
products, non-metal construction materials, scrap steel and
wood. In addition, the Group is also developing the trading
businesses of electronic products, petrochemical products
and various other products. Therefore, one of the activities
of Dafeng Port Development Group constitutes or is likely to
constitute a competitive business. The Board is of the view that
the businesses of Dafeng Port Development Group Company
do not pose material competitive threat to the Group because
the Group and Dafeng Port Development Group Company have
different focuses on the type of products offered which target
at different customers in the market.
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There is no overlap in the directorships among the Company,
Dafeng Port Development Group, Yancheng Port Supply Chain
and Yueda Logistics. The Directors are of the view that the Board
can operate independently of Dafeng Port Development Group
in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

The Directors
independently from Dafeng Port Development Group, because

consider that the Board can operate

(i) pursuant to the Articles, a Director shall not vote on any board
resolution approving any contract or arrangement or any other
proposal in which such Director or any of his/her associates
has a material interest nor shall he be counted in the quorum
present at the meeting; and (ii) the Directors are fully aware of
their fiduciary duties owing to the shareholders of the respective
companies and their duty to avoid conflicts to the shareholders
of the respective companies and their duty to avoid conflicts of
interests in carrying out their respective duties as directors of
the relevant companies.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors, controlling shareholders of the Company or their
respective close associates had any interests in a business, which
competes or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly
with the business of the Group which would be required to be
disclosed under Rule 11.04 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries
to all the Directors, the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with the required standard of dealings and its code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors
during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

A detailed corporate governance report is set out in pages 30
to 51 of this report.
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AUDITOR

Mazars CPA Limited acted as the auditor of the Group for
the Year. There has been no change of auditor in any of the
preceding three years and up to the date of this report.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
Year were audited by Mazars CPA Limited.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming AGM to
re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited as the auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Zhao Liang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERBE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance. The Company has adopted a set of
corporate governance practices which aligns with the code
provisions of the “CG Code".

The Company has implemented a number of Group-wide
governance policies and systems, which are subject to regular
review, to support its commitment to high standards of business,
professional, and ethical conduct, and to ensure best practices
across the organisation. The Company has also established
whistleblowing channels for external parties to raise concerns in
relation to possible misconduct of the Group, its employees or
directors in a confidential or anonymous manner, or both. The
Board has delegated authority to the Audit Committee to review
the Group Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy and the
Group Whistleblowing Policy periodically and receive updates
on matters concerning breaches of the Group Anti-Bribery and
Anti-Corruption Policy and whistleblowing disclosures.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with
all the code provisions set out in the CG Code during the Year.
The Company will continue to review its corporate governance
practices in order to enhance its corporate governance
standard, comply with regulatory requirements and meet the

growing expectations of shareholders and investors.
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
Conduct on share dealings

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has made specific
enquiries to all the Directors and all of them have confirmed
their compliance with the required standard of dealings and
the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors throughout the Year. No incident of non-compliance
was noted by the Company during the Year.
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CORPORATE MANAGEMENT
Board of directors
Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board is comprised of 7
members, including one executive Director, namely, Mr. Zhao
Liang (chairman), three non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Ji Longtao, Mr. Yang Yue Xia and Mr. Zhang Shukai and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lau Hon Kee,
Mr. Yu Xugang and Ms. Hui Alice.

On 11 January 2023, Mr.
executive Director and Mr. Zhang Fangmao resigned as an
Mr. Zhang Shukai was
appointed as a non-executive Director on 11 January 2023 to

Miao Zhibin resigned as a non-
independent non-executive Director.

fill the casual vacancy on the Board. Mr. Zhang Shukai obtained
legal advice from a firm of solicitors qualified to advise on
Hong Kong law as regards the requirements under the GEM
Listing Rules that are applicable to him as a Director and the
possible consequences of making a false declaration or giving
false information to the Stock Exchange on 12 January 2023. Mr.
Zhang Shukai confirmed that he understood his obligations as
a Director.

On 28 March 2024, Dr.
independent non-executive Director and Ms.

Bian Zhaoxiang resigned as an
Hui Alice was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director to fill the
casual vacancy on the Board. Ms. Hui Alice received legal advice
from a firm of solicitors qualified to advise on Hong Kong law as
regards the requirements under the GEM Listing Rules that are
applicable to her as a Director and the possible consequences
of making a false declaration or giving false information to the
Stock Exchange on 26 March 2024. Ms. Hui Alice confirmed that
she understood her obligations as a Director.

There were no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships among the Board members as of the date
of this report.

Each of the non-executive Directors (including the independent

non-executive Directors) has entered into service contract
with the Company for a fixed term of three years, subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM in accordance

with the Articles.
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The Company has received annual written confirmations from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect
of their independence to the Company in accordance with the
guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and
believes that their independence is in compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules as at the date of this report.

Directors’ training

All Directors should keep abreast of the responsibilities as
a Director, and of the conduct and business activities of the
Company. During the Year, the Company had organised a
professional seminar conducted by a professional firm which
provided the Directors with updates on the latest development
and changes in the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable
legal and regulatory requirements. All Directors including newly
appointed Directors were provided with written training reading
materials.

The Directors were also provided with regular updates on the
Company's performance, position and prospects to enable the
Board as a whole and each of the Directors to discharge their
duties. The secretary of the Company from time to time updated
and provided written training materials to the Directors relating
to the roles, functions and duties of a director.

All Directors confirmed that they have complied with code
provision C.1.4 of the CG Code on directors’ training. During the
Year, all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by reading materials or attending seminars/
briefing sessions to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided a record of training to the Company.

Independence

The Board has also established mechanisms to ensure
independent views are available to the Board, including
providing the Directors with sufficient resources to perform
its duties and shall seek, at the Company's expense,
independent professional advice to perform its responsibilities
if necessary. The Board shall at all times comprise at least
three independent non-executive Directors that represent at
least one-third of the Board, such that there is always a strong
element of independence on the Board which can effectively
exercise independent judgment. All the Directors, including
the independent non-executive Directors, are given equal
opportunity and channels to communicate and express their
views to the Board and have separate and independent access
to the management of the Group in order to make informed
decisions. The chairman of the Board will hold meetings
with the independent non-executive Directors without the
involvement of other Directors at least annually to discuss any
issues and concerns. Any Director or his/her associate who
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has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the
Board will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather
than by written resolutions. Such Director will be required to
declare his/her interests before the meeting and abstain from
voting and not counted towards the quorum on the relevant
resolutions. Independent non-executive Directors who, and
whose associates, have no interest in the matter should attend
the Board meeting. The Board has reviewed and considered
that the mechanisms are effective in ensuring that independent
views and input are provided to the Board during the Year.

Board process

The Board met regularly throughout the Year to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operational and financial
performance of the Group. Notice of at least 14 days were
given to all Directors of a regular Board meeting. All Directors
will have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda
for the regular board meetings. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notice were given to all Directors. The Board
delegates necessary powers and authorities to the executive
Directors to facilitate the efficient day-to-day management
of the Group's business. During the Year, the Board held 6
scheduled full Board meetings. In addition, executive Board
meetings were convened when necessary to deal with day-
to-day matters that required the Board’'s prompt decisions,
and therefore usually only executive Directors attended such
meetings. Individual attendance records of full Board meetings
and committees meetings are set out on page 34 of this report.
Directors who are considered to be having conflict of interests
or material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be
discussed would not be counted in the quorum of meeting and
would abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions subject
to certain exceptions set out in the Articles and the matters to
be dealt with by the Board would be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting rather than by a written resolution. Independent
non-executive Directors who have no material interest in the
transaction and their close associates would be entitled to
attend the Board meeting. The secretary of the Company
maintains minutes of the Board meetings and meetings of
Board committees for inspection by the Directors. All Directors
have access to the services of the secretary of the Company
who regularly updates the Board on corporate governance
and regulatory matters. Any Director may seek independent
professional advice at the expense of the Company should they
so wish.
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Board and board committee attendance EZeRESZESHES
The following table indicates the number of Board meetings, TXRETRAFERNRITI L EFEEH %8

committee meetings and general meetings throughout the Year, EBE@@ZEKRREAZAE  URFESZHER
and the number of attendance by each of the Directors: -

Number of meetings attended/held

HE/ B e8HA
Legal
Audit Remuneration  Nomination ~ Compliance General
Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
ERER
FREEE HMZEE REZEE ZE88 RRAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhao Liang j:brpita 6/6 - 212 22 3/4 17N
Non-executive Directors FYTES
Mr. Ji Longtao EEELE 5/6 - - - - 17
Mr. Yang Yue Xia BHELE 5/6 - - - 3/4 171
Mr. Miao Zhibin (Note 1) ERyebta(ika) 01 - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Shukai (Note 2) KEREE(HEH 56 - - - - -
Independent Non-executive BIYFHTEE
Directors
Dr. Bian Zhaoxiang (Note 3) Tt # B+ (Fif3) 6/6 4/4 2/2 - - /1
Mr. Lau Hon Kee FEEEE 6/6 4/4 212 22 - 11
Mr. Yu Xugang (Note 4) TR % & (K 54) 6/6 4/4 - 171 - /1
Mr. Zhang Fangmao (Note 5) 5 /7 /& 5 4 (Jff 35) 0/1 - - 0/1 - -
Notes: B &
1. resigned as a non-executive Director on 11 January 2023 1. RZZEZ=F—A+—BHIHENTESE
2. appointed as a non-executive Director on 11 January 2023 2 RZZE_=F—AT+—BEZAERIFNTES

3. resigned as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the 3. R _NME=ZA_+\BEEBEIFNTEE
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee on 28 MEeEXRRERZEENE
March 2024

4. appointed as a member of each of the Audit Committee and the 4. RIZBE-_=F—-A+-BEZIRERZEGRRESA
Nomination Committee on 11 January 2023 ZEgXE8

5. resigned as an independent non-executive Director and a member of each 5. RZZE_=ZF—A+—BHEEBLINTESTUARE
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee on 11 January REEGRIREZEERE
2023

Pursuant to code provision C.1.6 of the CG Code, independent 184 > 2 &4 FBIFEE X ECI1.61E - B3k

non-executive directors and other non-executive directors #1798 ER HbEHTEEREFEREAS o
should attend general meetings. During the Year, all of the WRAEE  FRAEBYIFHNITEER HMIEHTT

independent non-executive Directors and other non-executive BEHHE SR BFBETBA T EEEARNG
Directors attended the general meetings of the Company in A HEAQAGBREAE

person or through telecommunication.

Pursuant to code provision C.2.7 of the CG Code, the BiEMEESATITAIETEC27E =g
Chairman of the Board held a meeting with independent non- TR - E-=F=A-+=HEB v IEH
executive Directors without the presence of other Directors on  FE ERIT— KN EMEBIRFT I3 -

23 March 2023.
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Directors’ duties

The Board is in charge of leadership and supervision on the
Group's affairs, establishing the purpose, values and strategy of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Group. Each Director has a duty to act in good
faith and in the best interests of the Company.

Matters that require decisions by the Board normally include
but not limited to overall Group strategies, major acquisitions
and disposals, annual and interim results, recommendation on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors, and other
significant operational and financial matters. The Directors are
kept up-to-date by monthly management information on a
timely basis as well as on major changes that may affect the
Group's businesses, including relevant rules and regulations.
The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
financial statements and have them audited on an annual basis.
The Company has adopted the generally accepted accounting
standards in Hong Kong in preparing financial statements.
Reasonable and prudent judgement and estimates have been
made. The Group will announce its financial results on a timely
basis.

Senior management’s duties

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the senior management of the
Company which include evaluating business and operational
performances, ensuring effective implementation of the
Board'’s decisions, ensuring adequate funding and monitoring
performance of the management of the Group. The senior
management of the Company is being closely monitored by the
Board and is accountable for the performance of the Company
as measured against the business targets and management
directions set by the Board. The senior management of the
Company and the management of the relevant subsidiaries have
meetings on a regular basis to review and discuss operational
and financial matters in order to enhance and strengthen
internal communications and cooperation within the Group. The
delegated functions and work tasks were periodically reviewed.

Indemnification of directors and officers

Pursuant to the Articles, directors shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his office or elsewhere in relation
thereto, provided that its provisions are not avoided by the
Companies Ordinance. Such provisions were in force during the
Year and remained in force as of the date of this report.
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Chairman and chief executive officer

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the role of
chairman and the chief executive officer should be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities between the chairman and the chief
executive officer should be clearly established and set out in
writing.

The chairman of the Board is responsible for overall strategic
planning, development, decision making and management of
senior executives of the Group and providing leadership to the
Board, monitoring Board effectiveness, fostering constructive
relationships among Directors. The chairman of the Board is also
responsible for taking the primary responsibility for ensuring
that good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established.

Ms. Xu Qi was appointed as deputy chief executive officer on
11 January 2023.

Mr. Gu Hao was appointed as deputy chief executive officer on
11 January 2023.

Mr. Chen Wenxiang was appointed as chief financial officer on
11 January 2023.

The Company has not appointed any chief executive officer
during the Year. The daily operations and management of the
Company is monitored by the executive Director and the senior
management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has received appropriate delegation of its functions
and powers and has established appropriate Board committees,
with specific written terms of reference in order to manage and
monitor specific aspects of the Group's affairs. The terms of
reference of the Board committees are posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange and are available to
the shareholders of the Company upon request. The Board and
the Board committees are provided with all necessary resources
including the advice of external auditor, external legal advisers
and other independent professional advisors as needed.

In relation to the Board's corporate governance functions, the
Board has determined the policy of the corporate governance
of the Company and has performed its duties by firstly,
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance; secondly, reviewing and monitoring
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; thirdly, developing and monitoring
the codes of conduct applicable to the Directors and employees
of the Company; fourthly, reviewing the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate governance
report, and lastly, receiving and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of the Directors.

The Board has established the Audit Committee the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Legal Compliance Committee with defined terms of reference.
The Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee
are chaired by independent non-executive Directors, the
Nomination Committee and the Legal Compliance Committee
are chaired by the chairman of the Board.

(@) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 3 August 2013
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules
5.28 to 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules and code provision
D.3.3 of the CG Code. The Audit Committee is currently
comprised of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lau Hon Kee (chairman), Mr. Yu Xugang and
Ms. Hui Alice. The primary duties of the Audit Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and removal of the external auditor, review
the financial statements and related materials and provide
advice in respect of the financial reporting process and
oversee the financial reporting system, the internal control
and risk management system of the Group.
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(b)

(c)

38

During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the
quarterly, interim and annual results of the Group and
reviewed, with both the auditor and management,
the audit approach and methodology applies, and in
particular to those key audit matters included in the annual
auditor’s report. The Audit Committee also reviewed
the internal control procedures of the Group, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management functions as well as the findings reports from
the internal audit department of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on
3 August 2013 with written terms of reference in
compliance with code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee is currently comprised of one
executive Director, Mr. Zhao Liang, and two independent
non-executive Directors, Ms. Hui Alice (chairman) and Mr.
Lau Hon Kee. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to our Board
on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating
to the Directors and senior management of our Group,
review and evaluate their performance in order to make
recommendations on the remuneration package of each
of the Directors and members of the senior management
as well as other employee benefit arrangements.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee determined
the policy for the remuneration of the Directors, assessed
performance of the Directors and approved the terms
of the Directors’ service contracts. The Remuneration
Committee also reviewed, confirmed and recommended
to the Board the remuneration package of each of the
Directors and senior management of the Company. All the
remuneration of the members of senior management was

less than HK$500,000 for the Year.
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 3 August
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with
code provision B.3.1 of the CG Code. The Nomination
Committee is currently comprised of one executive
Director, Mr. Zhao Liang (chairman) and two independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Lau Hon Kee and Mr.
Yu Xugang. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are to nominate potential candidates for
directorship, review the nomination of Directors, make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
Directors and assess the independence of independent
non-executive directors.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company had adopted the board diversity policy in
accordance with the requirements as set out in the CG
Code. The Board recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. The board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural background and ethnicity, in addition
to educational background, professional experience, skill,
knowledge and length of service.

Measurable Objectives: The Company aims to maintain
an appropriate balance of diverse perspectives that are
relevant to the Company’s business growth. The Company
is also committed to ensuring that recruitment and
selection practices at all levels (from the Board downwards)
are appropriately structured so that a diverse range of
candidates are considered. The Nomination Committee
will discuss periodically and when necessary, agree on the
measurable objectives for achieving diversity, including
gender diversity, on the Board and recommend them
to the Board for adoption. In particular, the Nomination
Committee will identify and make recommendations to
the Board to implement programmes that will assist in the
development of a broader and more diverse pool of skilled
and experienced employees that, in time, will prepare
them for Board positions.

The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and
skills, including knowledge and experience in the areas
of trading business and petrochemical products storage
business, auditing and accounting, legal and compliance,
as well as business administration. As at the date of this
report, the Board comprised of one female Director out
of seven Directors which represents 14.3% of the total
members of the Board.

The Company is also committed to adopting a similar
approach to promote diversity of the management
(including but not limited to the senior management) and
employees to enhance the effectiveness of corporate
governance.

The Nomination Committee will take opportunity to
increase the female members over time when selecting
and making recommendation on suitable candidates for
Board appointments.

The Nomination Committee will review and monitor the
implementation of the Board diversity policy, to ensure the
effectiveness of the Board diversity policy and discuss any
revision that may be required and recommend any such
revision to the Board for consideration and approval.
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Nomination Policy

When making recommendations regarding the
appointment of any proposed candidate(s) to the Board
or re-appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board
based on the Board diversity policy, the Articles and
other appropriate rules and regulations, the Nomination
Committee shall consider a variety of factors including
without limitation the followings in assessing the suitability
of the proposed candidate:

(i) Reputation for integrity;

(i) Accomplishment, experience and reputation in the
relevant industry and other relevant sectors;

(i)  Commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest
and attention to the Company’s business;

(iv)  Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
experience (professional or otherwise), skills and
knowledge;

(v} The ability to assist and support management and
make significant contributions to the Company’s
success;

(vi)  Compliance with the criteria of independence as
prescribed under Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules for the appointment of an independent non-
executive Director; and

(vii) Any other relevant factors as may be determined by
the Nomination Committee or the Board from time
to time.
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Procedures for Nominating Director

Procedures for the appointment of any proposed
candidate(s) to the Board or re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board are as follows:

(M)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The secretary of the Nomination Committee
shall invite nominations of candidate(s) from
Board members (if any), for consideration by the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
may also nominate candidates for its consideration.

In the context of appointment of any proposed
candidate(s) to the Board,
Committee shall undertake adequate due
diligence in respect of such individual and make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration and

the Nomination

approval.

In the context of re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board, the Nomination Committee
shall make recommendations to the Board for
its consideration and recommendation, for the
proposed candidates to stand for re-election at a
general meeting.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to
stand for election at a general meeting.

The work performed by the Nomination Committee during
the Year included:

(i)

(i)

to assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors;

to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board and make recommendations on any
proposed change to the Board to complement the
Company's corporate strategy;
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(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of,

individuals nominated for directorships;

(iv) to review the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee; and

(v) to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
Board’s structure, number of members and composition
taking into account the Board diversity policy and formed
the view that the Board has maintained an appropriate mix
and balance of skills, knowledge, experience, expertise
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the business
requirements of the Company.

Legal Compliance Committee

The Legal Compliance Committee was established
on 30 April 2013, which is mainly responsible for the
Group's internal control matters and ensuring the proper
compliance of the laws and regulations relevant to the
Group's operations as well as the adequacy and the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control measures.

The members of the Legal Compliance Committee is
currently comprised of one executive Director, Mr. Zhao
Liang (chairman), one non-executive Director, Mr. Yang
Yue Xia, the secretary of the Company, Ms. Xu Jing, and
a deputy chief executive officer of the Company, Ms. Xu
Qi.

The Legal Compliance Committee assists the Board in
overseeing the Group's corporate governance functions
which include but not limited to the followings:

(i)  to develop and review the Group’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board on a quarterly basis;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Group;

(i)  to review and monitor the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;
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(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to the Directors
and employees of the Group; and

(v)  to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report.

During the Year, the Legal Compliance Committee
held four meetings to review the internal control and
compliance matters and the findings of which were

reported to the Board.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Board is committed to providing a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment of the financial performance and
prospects of the Group in all the disclosures made to the
shareholders of the Company and the regulatory authorities.

Timely release of quarterly, interim and annual results
announcements reflects the Board’s commitment to providing
transparent and up-to-date disclosures of the Group's
performance.

The Board, assisted by the Audit Committee, oversees the
financial reporting process and the quality of the financial
reporting of the Group. The Audit Committee reviews and
monitors the integrity of the Group's quarterly, interim and
annual financial statements. It also reviews the appropriateness
of the Group's accounting policies and the changes to these
policies as well as ensuring these financial statements to comply
with accounting standards and regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the accounts of the Company and the external auditor
acknowledges its responsibilities in respect of financial
reporting which are set out in the independent auditor’s report
on page 118 of this report.
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External Auditor

The Audit Committee recommends the re-appointment of
Mazars CPA Limited as the auditor of the Group and the Board
has adopted such recommendation.

During the Year, the fees paid/payable to the Company’s auditor,
Mazars CPA Limited, in respect of audit services and non-audit
services provided by the auditors of the Company are as follows:

Category of services

IR 3% & &

Audit services

ERRE
rEEHEE

Audit fee for the financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2023

Non-audit services

H Al AR 7%

Other services

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take
in achieving the Group's strategic objectives, and maintaining
sound systems of risk management and internal control and
also reviewing their effectiveness to safeguard interests of the
shareholders, customers, employees, and the Group’s assets.
However, such systems are designed to manage the Group's
risks within an acceptable risk profile, rather than to eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives of the Group,
and can only provide reasonable assurance and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has established an on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the
Group and this process includes enhancing the systems of risk
management and internal control from time to time in response
to the changes to the business environment or regulatory
guidelines.
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The Company also maintains strict anti-corruption policies to
recognise and deal with bribery and corruption and to handle
corporate donation and sponsorship activities of the Group,
which applies to all employees and related third parties who
deal with the Group. The Company has a whistle-blowing
policy that serves the purpose of establishing whistle-blowing
procedures for employees and other relevant external parties
of our Company, in order to report and escalate any suspicious
misconducts. In accordance with the policy, we protect all
whistle-blowers from any kind of retaliation. All the information
provided by the whistle-blowers will be strictly confidential.

The Board always regards risk management and internal
control process as an important task and believes that effective
corporate risk management and internal control process is an
essential element of good corporate governance. The Legal
Compliance Committee and the Audit Committee have been
established by the Board, which are responsible for monitoring
and reviewing the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group.

Detailed procedures for our shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director are available on the Company’s
website.

During the Year, the Company's internal audit department
has carried out review on the internal control system and risk
management system of the Group. The review involves all
material monitoring aspects, including but not limited to finance,
operation, compliance and risk management. The internal audit
team has conducted analysis and assessment on the adequacy
and the effectiveness of the internal control system and risk
management of the Group, and has submitted the findings and
rectification measures to the Audit Committee and the Board.
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Risk Management
Control environment

The Group believes that risk management is the responsibility
of everyone within the Group. It aims to develop risk awareness
and control responsibility as our culture and the foundation of
our internal control system. The internal control system applies
to the Group's critical business processes including strategy
development, business planning, investment decisions, capital
allocation and day-to-day operations.

The Group also believes that corporate governance is often
associated with business ethics. In order to ensure the
enhancement of the Company’s reputation by the honest, loyal
and ethical behaviours of its staff, the Group has formulated a
formal staff code and whistleblowing policy. Furthermore, the
Group has from time to time arranged different levels of staff,
ranging from top management to front-line staff, to participate
in a series of business ethics seminars conducted by the
Independent Commission Against Corruption, reputed lecturers
or internal audit functions of the Company and the Group in
order to enhance the staff's recognition and commitment to the
staff code.

Management has also conducted annual self-check to see
whether the rules and guidelines specified in the staff code
have been properly adhered to, and the respective written
declarations have been documented and reported to the Audit
Committee.

Control activities
The Group's control activities have been built on regular top-
level reviews, segregation of duties and physical controls.

Currently, the key features of the internal control system include:

o the design of an organisational structure with defined lines
of responsibility and delegation of authority;

J the setup and adherence of authorisation and approval
limits of the Company and each business unit;

o the establishment of policies and procedures to support
deployment of management'’s directives; and

o the systems and procedures to identify and mitigate risks
on an ongoing basis.
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Major operational risk factors and measures

The Group seeks to have risk management features embedded
in the day-to-day operations. At the beginning of each year, the
Group conducted a risk assessment on the existing or potential
risks that may impact the achievement of business objectives
over the course of business operation. The assessment includes
potential likelihood and impact of the identified risks. For the
risks identified, the Group determined the action plans and
management targets. The management of each business unit
of the Group is responsible for managing their respective day-
to-day operating risks, and implementing measures to mitigate
such risks.

Corporate affairs department monitors the implementation of
risk management, and continuously reviews and assesses the
efficiency and adequacy of action plans on a regular basis. Such
assessment results will be regularly communicated and reported
to the Legal Compliance Committee and the Board.

During the Year, the Legal Compliance Committee and the
Board were not aware of any unexpected adverse changes that
were significant to the risks related to the Group's businesses.

Internal Control

The Board recognises the overall responsibility for the
establishment, maintenance, and review of an internal control
system that provides reasonable assurance of the reliability and
integrity of financial and operational information, effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, the safeguarding of assets
and the compliance with laws and regulations and reviews
the internal control system annually. This system of internal
control is designed to manage rather than eliminate all risks
of failure where its goal is to provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance regarding the achievement of organisational
objectives.

The Company has an internal audit function to perform the
review on the internal control system of the Group (including
and compliance controls and risk

financial, operational

management functions).

The Audit Committee comprising three independent non-
executive Directors, which will retain overall responsibility for the
internal control matters of the Group and assess the robustness
of our regulatory compliance procedures and system reviewed
by the Legal Compliance Committee to ensure, among other
things, that the Group fully complies with all applicable laws
and regulations relevant to our operations. In addition, the
Audit Committee will make recommendations to the Board for
the improvement of our regulatory compliance procedures and
system as is necessary.
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The Board conducted a review of the internal control system of
the Group for the Year. Having reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control system through the Audit Committee,
the Legal Compliance Committee and the external auditor,
which covers all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance control and risk management functions, the
Board is satisfied that such system is effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary plays an important role in supporting
the Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board
and the Board committees. The company secretary advises
the Board on corporate governance matters and facilitates
the induction and professional development of Directors. The
company secretary also attends and ensures that all Board and
Board committees meetings are properly convened, and that
accurate and proper record of the proceeding and resolutions
passed are taken and maintained. The Board approves the
selection, appointment or dismissal of the company secretary.
The company secretary reports to the chairman of the Board
and/or the chief executives of the Company. All Directors
have direct access to the advice and services of the company
secretary.

As at 31 December 2023, Ms. Xu Jing was the company
secretary and an employee of the Company. During the Year,
Ms. Xu Jing has confirmed that she has taken not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening extraordinary general meeting and
putting forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to the Articles, shareholders should follow Article 58 of
the Articles to propose new resolutions at the general meetings.
Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, general meetings shall be
convened by any one or more members holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company,
to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty one (21)
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Dividend Policy

The Company may consider the declaring and paying dividends
to the shareholders of the Company provided that the Group
records profits and that the declaration and payment of
dividends does not affect the normal operations of the Group.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account, inter
alia:

the general financial condition of the Group;
ii. capital and debt level of the Group;

iii.  future cash requirements and availability for business
operations, business strategies and future development
needs;

iv.  any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group's lenders;

V. the general market conditions; and
vi.  any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board of the Company by addressing them to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 1009,
Exchange Tower, 33 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon,
Hong Kong by post for the attention of the secretary of the
Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATIONS

The Company believes that effective communication with our
shareholders is essential for ensuring that they are provided
with timely access to important information about the Company,
including its financial performance, strategic goals and plans,
material developments, governance and risk profile, in order to
enable them to exercise their rights in an informed manner.

General meetings of the Company provide the best opportunity
for exchange of views between the Board and our shareholders
by maintaining an on-going dialogue with our shareholders.
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o Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general
meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote on their
behalf if they are unable to attend.

] The process of general meetings will be monitored and
reviewed by the Board on a continuous and regular
basis to ensure that shareholders’ needs are best served
and, if necessary, changes will be made to safeguard
shareholders’ interests.

o The chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen of
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee or, in their absence, other
members of the respective committees will attend general
meetings to answer shareholders’ questions. The chairman
of the independent board committee or, in his absence,
other members of the independent board committee, will
also be available to answer shareholders’ questions at
general meetings convened for the approval of connected
transactions or any other transactions that are subject to
independent shareholders’ approval.

o The Board will ensure appropriate arrangement is in
place to encourage shareholders’ participation in general
meetings.

In an effort to enhance communications with shareholders

and investors, the Company maintains a website
(http://dfport.com.hk) to disseminate information relating to
the Company’s information such as announcements, circulars,
financial statements and notices of general meetings. The
Company regards the AGM as an important event as it provides
direct communication between the Board and its shareholders.
All shareholders of the Company are given at least 21 days
notice of the date and venue of the AGM at which time the
Directors and committee members are available to answer

questions on the business.

The Company has in place a shareholder communication
policy to ensure that our shareholders’ views and concerns are
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to
ensure its effectiveness. During the Year, the Board reviewed
the shareholder communication policy and considered that it is
effective.

Shareholders or investors may also make enquires with the
Company through the channels mentioned above in the section
headed “Shareholders Enquires”, and provide comments and
recommendations to the Directors or managements at any time.
Upon receipt of written enquiries from our shareholders, the
Company will make responses to the shareholders as soon as
possible.
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

Pursuant to Rule 17.102 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has published on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange its memorandum and articles of association. During
the Year, the shareholders of the Company passed a special
resolution on 18 May 2023 approving the adoption of the
amended and restated memorandum and articles of association
of the Company. Save as the aforesaid, there has been no
changes in the constitutional documents of the Company.
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ABOUT THE REPORT

This report is the seventh annual Environmental, Social and
Governance ("ESG") report of Dafeng Port Heshun Technology
Company Limited (“Dafeng Port Heshun Technology”,
"Company” or “the Company”), which focuses on the ESG
issues of concern to stakeholders.

REPORTING PERIOD AND SCOPE

The reporting scope for this year will be slightly different from
last year, as Shenzhen Fanhai Holdings Company Limited has
been de-registered this year and thus will not be covered in
this report. This report covers the sustainability policies and
performance of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries,
including Port Storage Petrochemical, Port Shipping
International, Qianhai Mingtian, the Company and Zhuhai
Yangang Petrochemical Company Limited (“Zhuhai Yangang
Petrochemical”) (collectively known as the “Group” or “we")
from 1 January to 31 December 2023 (the “Reporting Period”).
It also provides a comprehensive explanation of the Group's
management approach and performance in environmental,
social and corporate governance in 2023, and the policy
documents, statements and data contained therein only cover
the Group, and other subsidiaries in trading and other areas are
not covered in this report because the ESG risks involved are
not material.

REPORTING BASIS

This report is primarily in compliance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) in
Appendix C2 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("HKEX").
Material aspects and general disclosures as defined in the
Guidelines and deemed to be relevant to the Company’s
business and operations will be presented in four key areas,
namely Environment, Employment and Labour, Business
Practices and Community. The present report has been
prepared in accordance with a systematic set of procedures,

including:

ABIFEES HRIMBEFIESG IRTEESG
EZRNE HHEEZEE HEHE

Identifying and
prioritising material
ESG-related issues

Identifying and
prioritising significant
stakeholders
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Determining ESG
reporting boundary
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES BE 3k IR A

This report satisfies the HKEX's requirements and is prepared AN/ B R AT E 5k - KR 55| & i 4l A9 [
based on the reporting principles outlined in the Guide: HRIRAMERBE AT ER -

Reporting principles
PEE % [ 1)

Materiality
BEE2M

Quantitative

&1t

Consistency

The Group's response

SE B R

The Group collects the views of stakeholders through a variety of means and
conducts internal materiality assessments to identify material ESG issues. These key
issues will be disclosed as a priority in this report.
AEEEBZRITABERDENBY  YRTABNBEUFGH  UHBEEN
RE HehEnadd ELBREAESELARSPEERE -

The Group collects data on environmental and social key performance indicators and
makes quantitative disclosures with reference to Appendix 2: “"Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs” and Appendix 3 “Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs” in
HKEX's “How to prepare an ESG Report” to monitor and evaluate the progress of
the Group's implementation of its environmental and social responsibility initiatives.
AEBWRERFERMSHERERERHE  U2RBIMA(NAREBRE ek
ERME)THME —(REBREVIEFRERESDRME=(L AR EBERE
HiESDEELRE  UEERFTEASERBTRERMEEEHEHRNERE -

This report uses consistent statistical methods to enable effective and meaningful

— B comparisons of data in the future. If there is any change in the methodology used
and the scope of reporting, we will explain it in the notes for reference.
ABEEB—BORTNE CEHEBERRAEERMEEZNLE - WHAANHT A
NERBEAE  BMASEMTTEBEAEZE -

Balance This report is required to present the Group's environmental, social and governance

- performance in an impartial manner in order to achieve a comprehensive and fair
report.

ABERANMR T EHMERAEEERE HEREARFTENKRE  UEINZ2EAAR
S ETR o
REPORT LANGUAGE AND ACCESS BEESHENRAR

This report has been prepared in both English and Chinese and AN & LA - R R T - W 7T 78 B 2 AT 4%
will be available on the HKEX news e-website (www.hkexnews.  §& 5 48 ¥ (www.hkexnews.hk) 8t A" A & B 77 43
hk) or the Company's official website (http://dfport.com.hk). If  (http:/dfport.com.hk) ZE B o N H & X HR A A
there is any contradiction or ambiguity between the English and  {Efi] B AR 4K i sk T AB & A9 #0757  BE DA ST HR 7R

Chinese versions, the Chinese version shall prevail. =i
RESPOND TO THIS REPORT [B] & 7K 3 &

If you have any comments about this report or the Company’s I B THARERLARFTNAIFHEEER
sustainability strategy and performance, you are welcome KEXRBEMER BAOBEBAATNE Tj%ﬂ
to contact us through the Company’s official website  ¥fi(http:/dfport.com.hk) B 4% F 9 °

(http://dfport.com.hk).
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BOARD STATEMENT

In order to effectively integrate sustainability strategies into
corporate governance, the Company has set up a dedicated
ESG Working Group, led by the Board of Directors, to
comprehensively monitor its sustainability efforts. This group
is responsible for guiding the development of sustainability
strategies, targets and management approaches, and for
allocating the resources needed to achieve these goals.
At the same time, we pay attention to the implementation
status of strategic goals, evaluate the progress of achieving
goals, and monitor related activities to ensure the annual
sustainability report is approved by the board of directors
before publishment.

The relevant departments of the Company’s departments and
subsidiaries will work with the ESG Working Group to refine
the implementation details, including formulating relevant
policies and standards, establishing a management system,
and regularly report progress and results to the ESG Working
Group. The ESG Working Group will integrate the information
and submit an annual report to the Board of Directors to form
a bottom-up communication mechanism. In addition, the Board
of Directors, as the top-level decision-making body, evaluates
and authorizes the strategies and guidelines proposed by
the ESG Working Group. The ESG Working Group guides,
supervises and evaluates each department. In order to improve
our sustainability governance, we appointed Riskory Consultancy
Limited as a professional consultant to provide advice to us
on ESG and sustainability matters, to assist with promoting
sustainability and managing ESG-related risks. At the same
time, we regularly review international sustainability trends
and compare them with industry standards to improve our
performance.

We value the expectations and needs of our stakeholders and
communicate with them regularly through various activities to
identify and evaluate key ESG issues and discuss them at board
meetings. The Board of Directors identifies environmental, social
and corporate governance risks and opportunities based on
the external environment and corporate strategy, and makes
decisions on annual ESG priorities and projects. During the
Reporting Period, we have identified the risks and opportunities
of climate change for the Company’s future operations, assessed
their relevance and impact, and developed strategies to address
them. In addition, we have set environmental targets and
actively promoted various green and low-carbon initiatives to
support the country’s “dual carbon” strategy. We will continue
to monitor the achievement of our goals and continuously adjust
and enhance our sustainability efforts in line with domestic and
international sustainability trends.
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The Company'’s sustainable development governance structure
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CHAPTER 1 OPTIMIZED GOVERNANCE

The Group has always prioritised the sustainability of the
Company's development and has been actively reforming to
set an example in the industry. Our core business involves
the trading and import and export businesses of electronic
and petrochemical products, as well as the petrochemical
products storage business. In order to effectively identify and
manage ESG risks across multiple business areas, we have
established an ESG working group led by the General Manager,
which collaborates with the Safety Committee and other key
departments to strengthen the overall management of ESG.
In addition, the team is responsible for communicating with
stakeholders, identifying and evaluating ESG risks related
to business operations, integrating and analyzing relevant
information, and regularly reporting to the Board of Directors
on material ESG matters.

COMPLIANCE MANAGEMENT

We believe that it is important to establish a sound corporate
governance structure in the Company's pursuit of long-term
and steady development. We strictly implement laws and
regulations such as the Company Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Law on Anti-Corruption and Anti-Bribery of the
People’'s Republic of China, the Law on State-Owned Assets
in Enterprises of the People’s Republic of China, and the Anti-
Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China,
and are committed to internal risk management and control.
In order to regulate the behavior of employees, the Company
has formulated internal management regulations such as the
"Anti-malpractice Management System”, the “Internal Control
System” and continuously optimized the “Staff Code” and other
guidelines to ensure that employees abide by professional
ethical standards and do not cross the boundaries of ethics
and law. In addition, we actively promote a culture of integrity
and are committed to creating a clean and honest corporate
atmosphere.

In order to maintain the stability of the Company’s internal
operations, we have established a strict “Internal Control
System”. Through continuous annual internal audit activities,
we carry out necessary audit work, review and evaluate the
compliance of the Internal Control System, and propose
improvement plans for the identified risk points, so as to
ensure that the Group's operations are legal and compliant. In
addition, in order to deepen the integration of business ethics
and corporate management policies, we take the initiative to
carry out business ethics education and anti-fraud promotion,
and deeply root the anti-corruption mindset in the hearts of
employees.
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We always take all reports seriously and strive to make our
reporting channels more comprehensive and smooth. In
order to achieve this goal, we have developed a set of rules
and regulations for reporting disciplinary violations and the
protection of whistleblowers. By providing a variety of reporting
channels such as letters, telephone and e-mail, we follow the
core principles of “combining punishment with prevention
and giving priority to precaution (#BjI £ « EEFEF)” and
"whistleblower protection and avoidance for investigation
(BRR#E - FHEMEE)", and promptly investigate and deal
with employees’ corruption. To ensure safety and rights of
whistleblowers, we have established a whistleblower protection
mechanism to ensure that the identity of whistleblowers is kept
confidential and that retaliation, including dismissal, suspension,
threats, harassment, or any form of unfair treatment, is
prohibited. In the event of a violation of the above commitments,
we will take legal action in accordance with the Company’s
policy, and may even refer the incident to the judicial authorities.
To deepen the directors’ understanding of anti-corruption and
enhance their awareness, we have provided them with anti-
corruption materials produced by the Independent Commission
Against Corruption (ICAC). In the future, we will consider
extending the scope of training to cover the management level
and other employees.

During the Reporting Period, there was no concluded or
pending corruption legal cases against the Company and our
employees, nor were we aware of any violations of national or
local anti-corruption laws.
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Case: Anti-fraud Publicity Campaign of “Keeping Purses Safe and Protecting Happy Families”
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The Company firmly grasps the requirements of “Legal Escort” deployment in Jiangsu Yancheng, and attaches
great importance to improving the risk prevention ability of enterprises. During the Reporting Period, we carried

out an anti-fraud campaign of “Keeping Purses Safe and Protecting Happy Families”,

and guided our staff to

enhance their anti-fraud awareness through police-enterprise cooperation, laying the foundation for creating a
business environment based on the rule of law. The campaign not only improved the compliance and governance
of the enterprise, but also accelerated the pace of high-quality development, and significantly enhanced the

risk prevention ability of the enterprise.
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STAKEHOLDER COMMUNICATION

To optimise our sustainability goals, we are committed to
maintaining positive communication with our stakeholders. By
setting up the following communication channels, we ensure that
our stakeholders are kept abreast of the Company’s operations
and are aware of their direct and indirect impacts. This
encompasses not only the corporate governance issues, but also
aspects such as our services and community engagement. These
conversations help us better understand the expectations of
our stakeholders and continue to create and deliver sustainable
value in our operations.
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MATERIALITY ANALYSIS

In order to effectively identify the Group’s material ESG issues,
the Board conducted a review and assessment of the issues
identified in 2022 taking into account the views of stakeholders
and the operational situation. The Group considers various
aspects, including the key business and operating environment,
the influence of stakeholders, and the influence of the Group on
stakeholders, to determine whether there are material changes
in key stakeholders. Taking into account the expectations of
key stakeholders and the impact of ESG issues on the Group,
reference is made to the industry materiality issues of the
Sustainability Accounting Standards Board (SASB), the ESG
industry materiality map of MSCI and the material issues of peer
disclosure, the Board conducted a retrospective assessment of
the materiality issues identified in 2022 to identify materiality
issues during the Reporting Period. Upon completion of the
review and review of the issues, the Group believes that there
has been no significant change in the materiality issues during
the Reporting Period, and the details of the issues and the issues
covered are as follows:

EEMSM

BEEWENAEBNERESGEE  BFES
BHEERREERBRL  Y2022F E4 5003
BHETEHEFG B IEEE B8 E
DEBRREERE HOENEEN  BMY
BOENFEN WHEHEESEOMHERT R
EERNE - HLETERHMHEHRL  ESGEE
HAEBHOTES  2EXEQENELZED
(SASB)MIITEE BB - MSCIFESGTT¥ &
ZmEREEBEENEEZHE - KME2022
FEHSINEBHZBETOBTG - UEY
REPHNEENZE - EEXNSZBEOEMN
BERE AEERAREPEHNESHEHBEL
RAERBEELL HFHEERNKEPRENZE
NN

List of major ESG issues of Dafeng Port in 2023
REB-_F_=-FESGEZEZEI X

Type of issues No. Issues
BERR FF 5% B
01 Waste treatment and disposal
BEYREEGE
02 Investing resources to reduce pollution emissions
BABRBDBRERE
03 Discharging pollutants according to relevant standards
ERBEER AR E
04 Potential environmental risks in controlling storage operation (such
as chemical leakage and explosion)
EERRELTREFENRRERR(MEEYWRE  BESFEHR)
05 Climate change
TR 2 1
Highly important :
sEEE 11 Occupational health and safety
=) /. s .
BEiEmiEee
16 Establishment of a production safety system
RELEERARR
17 Risk management
B & 12
18 Business ethics
SR
20 Anti-corruption
k&3
22 Compliance management
BRRE
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RE HEREAHRS

06 Rational use of water resources
AR EAKEIR
07 Energy conservation
149 e R
10 Employee training and development
BT EER
12 Legitimate recruitment and use of workforce
BEBRRAT
Important 13 Employee compensation and benefits
B2 12 8 %7 B 2 18 A
19 Quality of products and services
EmkRBES
21 Supply chain management
HregeEn
23 Information security and privacy protection
SRR METLRE
24 Corporate governance
NEATE
08 Exhaust gas and greenhouse gas emissions
BE R NOR = RB N
09 Environmental and natural resources
RELRRXAER
14 Protection of the rights and interests of employees
RIEE TR
Relevant 15 Employee diversity
1A 8TI%tilt
25 Emergency risk response capabilities
JRE 7= [ B E X B
26 Competitive behavior
BETR
27 Community investment and charity

HERERDSE
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ERA®ME

CHAPTER 2 LOW-CARBON DEVELOPMENT

The Group adheres to the core concept of green and low-carbon

development, responds to national environmental protection

policies, fully implements environmental protection measures

and strictly abides by all applicable environmental protection

laws and regulations, including but not limited to:

Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China;

Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People's
Republic of Ching;

Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
People's Republic of China;

Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution Caused by Solid

Wastes;

Law of the People's Republic of China on Noise Pollution
Prevention and Control;

Law of the People’s Republic of China on Environmental
Impact Assessment;

Directory of National Hazardous Wastes;
Standard for Pollution Control on Hazardous Waste;
Hazardous Chemicals Safety Management Regulations;

Measures for the Prevention and Control of Environment
Pollution by Discarded Dangerous Chemicals; and

Measures for the Transfer of Hazardous Wastes

We implement a responsibility system for environmental

protection goals, and have established a sound management

system and implementation plan to ensure that our operations

are in line with the principles of green development.
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To this end, the Company has formulated the “Environmental
and on the basis of the current
Management System and Rules” and
it has further
strengthened the recording of environmental protection

Impact Assessment Report”,
“Environmental
"Environmental Protection Responsibility System”,
operation and hazardous waste management, and strictly
followed the Regulations on the Administration of Pollutant
Discharge Permits for management. Under the guidance of
the Environmental Protection Group, each production unit
of the Group actively adopts advanced pollution control
technologies to reduce pollutant emissions and proactively
detects environmental risks related to operations to promote
green development.

In 2023, we added the “Technical
Identification Mark Setting of Hazardous Wastes”, the “Pollution
and the
“Technical Specifications for Quality Inspection of Pollutant

Specifications for
Control Standards for Hazardous Waste Storage”,
Discharge Permits”, and maintained the “Dafeng Port’'s Online
Monitoring System for Oil Vapour Recovery”, which was re-
launched in the previous year, in a commitment to protecting
the ecological environment around the port.

ENVIRONMENTAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

The Group attaches great importance to environmental
protection management, and continuously strengthens working
mechanism of organisation and command, monitoring and early
warning system, and information reporting mechanism. Specific
measures include:

o Formulation of “Environmental Emergency Plan”;

o Conduct regular emergency drills to improve the ability to

respond to environmental emergencies;
o For major accidents or emergencies, the Company
formulates management measures from the aspects of
systems, post settings and handling processes;

o Set up a dedicated emergency management post to
ensure that there is a dedicated person responsible for
emergency preparedness and response; and

o Strengthen the reporting mechanism after an accident.
These measures are aimed at protecting the environment,

avoiding the occurrence of environmental accidents and
reducing their possible impacts.

R #HERERKRSE

Bt RAIBIETCREFZEFERS) L&
BOR(RREEHNEREBERICRERERT
B)EEMLE - E—BMBRTRFRETMRER
BEYERNTETHE  LEBERHESTA
EEGEOETEE ERFRDANEET
SENSELEEMEHERRALENTRA
BT - ARREISRMBER - S B in R EE
SHENRERR  UEESEER -

:%:—i A B T R EE Y AR R S
RERMRE) (EREYRTF5RIZHTEE)
AR SRIAIEEERERMMAE) L H#&
FEFEEHLRN(REB MR O K ERE
ARG BARNREEOFDELERRE -

RRrESER
AEEESEERRRED T%ﬁk@%*

B CEANEERR EEREHHNEIE -
BREERRE:
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s TEHEBETESESR REARYREER
BREEES
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During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any incidents
that had a significant impact on the environment and natural
resources as a result of the Group.

MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL
OBJECTIVES

In accordance with the policy guidance of ecological
environmental protection and industry development trends,
the Group has set specific goals and requirements related
to environmental quality and ecological protection within
the corresponding planning period. These targets cover
four dimensions: emission reduction, energy saving, water
conservation, and waste reduction. In order to deepen the
management of objectives, the Group has broken down the
overall objectives and sets them for each department and
subsidiary, and implemented a series of management measures
to help achieve the objectives. At the same time, the Group has
also strengthened the tracking and feedback on the progress
of these environmental targets to continuously improve the
efficiency of environmental management.

b4 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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Objectives: Gradually establishing a carbon emission management
system

PR E B BPEVBRENEERA

Emissions

® Using secondary seals for floating roof tanks
SR TR DR HE

¢ |nstalling breather valve baffles on the top of oil tanks
o R TR %2 S50 IR R FE AR

e Strengthening the inspection on tank accessories, and regularly inspecting flame arrester, hydraulic oil seal and dip hatch to
ensure that air tightness meets the requirements

Inse  FAREPM (HE0ARE - BIPEARS C RUmE - B S TERREMEIRE LSS EK
e Filling the oil tank to the permissible level to reduce losses

HFOMEEMEARTRE - OB AR
e Carrying out low carbon-related publicity and training for employees

8 THRKMARBNEE kiE

Objectives: Strengthening the management of energy consumption
in the production process to increase energy use efficiency

REIRGE A X &8 B MREERREEEE  RARREARE

Energy efficiency

¢ Gradually phase out equipment and facilities with high energy consumption, and strengthen energy-saving technological
transformation
BHER DR R - MRETRERAT

® Reasonably adjusting nitrogen valve pressure to reduce nitrogen waste
AESRREES - MRBAR

* Raising energy conservation awareness of employees to reduce waste caused by leaving lights on, keeping air conditioners
running when no one is around, etc.

R B TMEREEBHE - BOERE  BAZHEFER

Objectives: Increasing the investment in water-saving process and
technology to improve water use efficiency

Rk Rz BE  EMNEKEMRA - RERAKME

Water efficiency

e Standardising the cleaning of oil tanks, reasonably prolonging the cleaning cycle, and using clean and efficient dispersants
to reduce the water discharged

REREERRF  ARERMBEAES  RABRSROOBE - BAERIKE
® Improving the secondary utilisation rate of clean water
HREIBZ K IR A
® Reasonably controlling cooling water consumption of equipment
BEERIRELAVKAE
* Raising water conservation awareness of employees to prevent the waste caused by leaving a hose on for a long period

MeEE 8 THEKEEAE - WREHBRTKRR

Objectives: Optimising waste management level and reducing
waste discharge

B BE BERWEEKT  BEBREWHER

Waste reduction

e Strengthening equipment management to reduce the phenomenon of leaking, and reduce the quantity and probability of
hazardous waste generation

MARBERNE - BPHE T B RRR - BEEREDELNHENEEX
e Strengthening the publicity of waste reduction internally and externally
IERE RE SR EEE B
e Actively exploring upgrading of waste reduction technologies and improving waste disposal management

RBRRFRBERN - TERERNEEERE

EEMENBEROERDT
2023 3R
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REDUCED EMISSIONS

The Company strictly abides by the relevant laws of the People’s
Republic of China on environmental protection, such as the
Environmental Protection Law of the People's Republic of China
and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Environmental
Impact Assessment, and has also sorted out the production and
operation processes to identify the main emissions generated
in daily operations, including wastewater and VOCs' generated
from storage and tank washing and solid waste.

In order to reduce the impact on the surrounding ecological
environment, the Company has implemented a series of internal
management systems such as “Environmental Management
System and Measures” and “Environmental Protection
Responsibility System”. In addition, we have established sound
emission management regulations and norms, including the
"Hazardous Waste Management Rules” and the “Responsibility
System”, to strictly comply with the relevant emission regulatory

requirements.

In accordance with the management requirements of pollutant
discharge permit, the Group conducts regular self-monitoring
and submits pollutant discharge reports to relevant departments
on a quarterly and annual basis. During the Reporting Period,
the Group did not find any non-compliance with emissions.

EXHAUST GAS EMISSION MANAGEMENT

We strive to reduce the environmental impact of exhaust gases
through continuous innovation in production and logistics
technologies, as well as the implementation of source control
and technical improvements. In order to effectively prevent the
leakage of VOCs in the storage process, we carry out thorough
control in accordance with the “Technical Policy for Prevention
and Control of VOCs Pollution”. During the year, we continued
to promote good practices such as the "Oil Vapour Recovery”
to continuously improve the standards of storage operations to
reduce the possible adverse impacts of our operations on the
ecological environment, such as the leakage of VOCs.

T VOCs is the abbreviation of volatile organic compounds.
' VOCsZE#EME LAY (volatile organic compounds)H) H XX 45 & »
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During the Reporting Period, in order to strengthen the control
of exhaust emissions, we commissioned a qualified third-party
organization to conduct extensive unorganized waste gas testing
in accordance with the “Standard Operating Procedures and
Technical Specifications for VOCs Leak Detection”, and provided
detailed inspection reports. After strict inspection and review,
the Group's storage facilities fully comply with national and
local emission standards for the emission of fugitive waste gas.
We also hired a third-party organization to carry out exhaust
leak inspection and repair, and carried out a comprehensive
inspection of nearly 1,700 sealing points, so as to thoroughly
investigate the possible environmental risks during the storage
process. The test results demonstrate that the Group's
petrochemical storage and transportation system has excellent
seal performance, and the risk management of VOCs leakage is
well controlled.

In order to further control VOCs emissions during oil loading
and unloading, we have implemented the following measures:

o Strengthen the maintenance of equipment and facilities,
and conduct high-frequency inspections of equipment,
such as entrusting a third party to conduct leak detection
and repair (LDAR) testing of equipment, so as to prevent
the case of leakage;

o The oil and gas recovery device is put into use to recover
the volatilized oil and gas from the storage tank, and the
recovery efficiency reaches 95%;

o The loading platform tank truck is changed from the
original top loading to a safer and more environmentally
friendly bottom loading method, and the gas generated
in the loading process is collected and connected to the
oil and gas recovery device;

° Nitrogen sequestration facilities in storage tanks were
used to reduce the fugitive volatilization of VOCs in
pipelines;

o In summer, the tank body is cooled by water spray,

and the volatility of the storage medium in the tank is
reduced, so as to reduce the exhaust gas generated by
the volatilization of the medium;

o The nitrogen valves have been recalibrated to reduce oil
and gas emissions through nitrogen sealing;

J Dust nets are added to the surrounding bulk cargo
yards, and spray dust reduction measures are carried out
regularly, which greatly reduces dust pollution; and

R #HERERKRSE
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o Regular pressure tests are carried out on the hose to
prevent leakage incidents.

In addition, we have also adopted the "Dafeng Port’s Online
Monitoring System for Oil Vapour Recovery” to achieve 24-hour
online monitoring of VOCs. At the same time, according to the
requirements of the environmental protection authorities, the
air pollution control has been strengthened. According to the
air pollution situation, measures such as stopping production
and reducing load production will be taken to further ensure
that the inhalable suspended particulate (PM2.5) index meets
the standard. Through online VOCs monitoring and emission
monitoring, we can reduce the impact of emissions on the
surrounding environment more effectively, and also make
the Company’s production and operation more in line with
the requirements of national air pollution prevention and
control policies. In the future, the Company will continue to
use advanced environmental monitoring technology, improve
pollution control facilities, and make positive contributions to
building a green and low-carbon industry.

EFFLUENT DISCHARGE MANAGEMENT

The Group strictly implements the relevant provisions of the
Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the Integrated Wastewater Discharge
Standard of the People’s Republic of China, treats water
pollutants, and prohibits the direct discharge of wastewater
containing pollutants such as oil, acids and lyes into water
bodies to avoid pollution of the water environment. In addition,
we have a comprehensive sewerage system in place to collect
floor cleaning, tank washing, oily water and rainwater. The
collected sewage is first preliminarily treated at the Company’s
self-built sewage treatment facilities, and then fed into the park’s
sewage treatment station for advanced treatment until it reaches
the discharge standard. As for the sewage from the office area,
it is discharged directly into the municipal pipe network and
handed over to the local municipal sewage treatment plant for
treatment. During the Reporting Period, the Group continued
to monitor the water quality of the surrounding waters to
understand the potential impact on the nearby waters in real
time and respond to emergencies in a timely manner.
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SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

The Group strictly follows the requirements of relevant laws
and regulations such as the Law of the People's Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution
by Solid Waste, the Regulations on the Safety Management of
Hazardous Chemicals, the National Hazardous Waste Directory,
the Standard for Pollution Control on Hazardous Waste Storage,
the Measures for the Prevention and Control of Environment
Pollution by Discarded Dangerous Chemicals, and the Measures
for the Transfer of Hazardous Wastes, and formulates the
"Hazardous Waste Management System” in accordance with
these laws and regulations to ensure that all hazardous waste
is treated correctly and safely from the perspective of norms
and processes to reduce the impact of solid waste on the
environment and surrounding ecology.

The types of hazardous waste generated in our production and
operation process mainly include waste oil in grease trap, oily
waste and liquid waste. We have clarified the corresponding
disposal procedures in the "“Hazardous Waste Management
System™:

RE HEREAHRS

EREERYEE

SEBRBEE(PEARKMBIEREYS AR
Bhax) (EREERZE2EERED) (E
Ric B BEM AR (kR Ry 75 R 4261
) (BERERABRSRRERH MR
MERBEZRMEBREEWE) SHBAERNE
Ko WRBELEMER  FIE(CRERY
EEBE) WREBMITIE LKA B R E
RYGBHLENZTE2MEE NP EEEE
MUREREAEBERNTE -

BMWEEREBREPEENEREZDEE
TEBERBEMER  SEBEMRER - &M
T(EREEMEEGE)RE THENEER
%

Waste oil should be collected in

Effluent from cleaning production
equipment is transferred to the
wastewater treatment station
through pipelines.

/ﬁ/ﬁ—jl_{é SEBEH RS K EREER
KBS EIRY, ©

Untreated  production  effluent
should not be directly discharged
to the sewer.

EESKARLRBETRBSEEFEATK
i o

Production and domestic sewage is
discharged to a designated
collection pool and transferred to
the wastewater treatment plant
after going through wastewater
treatment facilities and reaching
discharge standards.

EF 4RSIk EEHE R B IR E &
5K R TR BR e E B HE IR 1R
ﬁmiﬁmfﬁro

The production and equipment
departments should be notified in
time for repair when the
wastewater treatment station fails
to operate due to malfunction.

SRR IS T R B R A
BAEERBEEETHES -

Production and domestic waste
should be stored separately in the
designated location.

B ERURBEIREREEE
o o

The general control department
collects and stores samples and
cleaning effluent into special
containers and dispose of them in
accordance with requirements for
“recycling of liquid waste”.

BEMNEERBEABRAFTHREZA
R [ BRI WEREE -

time for centralised storage, and oil
on the ground must be cleaned up
immediately.

BEHER BB - SEHEFF - R
T H955 RBEITIEE ©

Paint, rock wool and dust-prone
materials generated in the repair
process should be stored in the
designated location.

HEEBREELEN®ZE  ERREELE
MENTHEERER -

All hazardous waste should be
stored in designated containers and
be placed in hazardous waste
warehouse in an orderly manner.

FAERRERNETNERASR A
FRITRBRERNARE -
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In order to strengthen the preliminary treatment and storage
classification of hazardous waste, according to the specifications
of the "Hazardous Waste Management System”, the production
equipment department will first sort out and count the
hazardous waste, and then the safety and environmental
protection department will be responsible for transferring it to
the dedicated hazardous waste storage warehouse in batches.
The hazardous wastes produced during the operation will be
stored in a special warehouse set up in the factory in an orderly
manner, and the real-time video monitoring system outside the
warehouse will monitor the hazardous wastes in real time. Our
requirements for hazardous waste containers and storage are
shown in the following diagram:

Provide containers or bins for storing
hazardous waste

REGRBERNEFRANAE

SERTNERERERMOVIIRELFFD
B RE(EREZDEEHNR)NHAS®  £E
REBHELTHERBEREYET O EER
BERAZERAMABAKESHRAEEIER
MERFRE ELEBRTEENBRED
HEFFRERBERENEMAEER MAMR
BRENSBNARTREZERG  EREZEER
BEEY - LMY RREZRYESENEFERKL
TEAR:

 Containers should be stored in a safe and secure way and kept away from fire and water

RERBRLE - FE - &R KR

Containers for direct storage of hazardous waste

HEFRERBERMNER

* Materials of containers should be compatible with (does not react with) the hazardous waste

REMEVRBERERYET (TRHERE)

* Containers should satisfy relevant strength and protection requirements

AERAm T ARER R E P EE R

e Containers must be intact and tightly sealed to prevent leakage during transfer and transportation

REWATIHER - HOBE - B LERSMEGBIETRR

® Each container holding hazardous waste must be affixed with a clear label or a new label, indicating the Chinese name and

nature of the substance contained. The labels cannot be altered

FERRERERNNED R LBV AEKRBRNRE - St LIRS

ERAPTEME R X R eI - BE A 2UURY

e All containers containing liquid hazardous waste should have appropriate space

NBERREERERMNARVAEEEEEM

Temporary storage of hazardous waste

IR ek BE SR

* Hazardous waste should be stored separately in kinds. Incompatible materials should be stored separately to prevent danger

BEDNFER - TRTNMERD MR - A ELERR

* Direct packaging materials for fragile package should, according to their nature, be fixed in wooden case or firm cartons,
and fillers should be added to prevent collision and extrusion to ensure safe storage

SEBEMZIEEEEEAMKEBOMAMET - WINKIETY) - TIERERIBE - REL 2R

e Containers directly containing hazardous waste should not be tilted and tipped to avoid leakage during storage

EEEKERBERYNEFEFITBRETERLERN - BEMRR
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We strictly abide by the “Manifest System for Transfer of
Hazardous Wastes”, and all hazardous wastes are entrusted to
the treatment unit with corresponding qualifications, and the
safety and environmental protection department is responsible
for unified coordination and safe handling of hazardous wastes.
By using the Dynamic Management Information System for
Hazardous Wastes to update and look up critical information
about hazardous waste in real time, such as order status,
receiving status by qualified units, shipping status, and
confirmation of transferred quantities. This effectively tracks the
disposal progress of hazardous wastes. In addition, for non-
hazardous waste and household waste generated in storage and
daily operations, we will transfer it to the material recovery unit
for proper disposal or recycling.

In our daily operations, we mainly dispose of non-hazardous
waste including office household waste and used paper. During
the Reporting Period, we actively promoted the concept
of secondary use of paper in our office to reduce the non-
hazardous waste generated in our operations.

RESOURCES CONSERVATION
Energy management

In order to improve energy efficiency and improve the structure
of energy use, we set specific annual and monthly production
targets and plans, set energy efficiency as one of the core
indicators of production management performance evaluation,
and regularly collect and analyze energy consumption data
per unit of product to identify factors that may affect energy
efficiency. Once identified, we will formulate appropriate
improvement measures to achieve the goal of balancing
environmental protection and business development. We fully
practice the concept of “green and low-carbon, energy saving
and consumption reduction” through the following measures:

o Continuously standardising the use and management of
company cars;

o Using more energy-efficient LED bulbs for street lamps,
and setting the time to switch on the lamps according to
seasonal changes;

o Strengthening the electricity and water conservation
management in the office area to eliminate waste of

electricity and water;

° Setting energy saver mode on air conditioners;

R #HERERKRSE
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o Adopting spraying to cool down tanks in the tank farm in

hot summer to reduce material loss;

J Setting frequency regulation mode for pumps to reduce
power consumption; and

o Using double-sided printing in the office area as much as
possible, and advocating paperless office.

In order to achieve the energy efficiency targets set, we actively
cooperate with the “13th Five-Year Plan Period” released by
the State Council, and continuously reduce greenhouse gas
emissions in the Company's operations by optimizing the energy
structure, applying low-carbon energy, saving energy use, and
improving energy efficiency, and are committed to building an
energy-saving enterprise.

Water management

The water used by the Company mainly comes from the
municipal water supply network in the port area, and there is
no material issue in water sourcing. In the process of operation,
water consumption mainly comes from petrochemical storage,
tank washing, fire fighting, etc. The Company strictly abides
by the Water Law of the People’s Republic of China and other
relevant laws and regulations. From the perspective of our own
water usage, the Company has proposed targeted measures for
the rational utilization of water resources.
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Petrochemical storage

AL Ef#

e The Company measured

water consumption and
wastewater  discharge
during the storage
process and improved
the statistics of water
consumption and
discharge data, so as to
comprehensively
monitor  the  water
resource utilisation in the
operation process.
BB A R ETEL N RE
IKBEEIETE - TERAK
NHKBAE - LS HEE
RIE 2 B P HIKE IR
FIER -

It strengthened the
control over cooling
water in a canned pump,
and  controlled  the
opening angle of the
cooling water valve as
much as possible on the
premise that cooling is
achieved, in a bid to

reduce water
consumption.
YRR AR INRE

PR TERETm R R AN
T BEIEHL AKREF
& AKX

According to seasonal
temperature changes, it
adjusted the water usage
for tank body cooling
through spraying and
anti-freezing insulation.

REFHREEL - AR
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B FROKIER ©

Tank washing

i

e Through reasonable
planning of material
classification and
storage area, the

Company reduced the
length of the pipe in the
tank washing process, in
order to increase the
efficiency of  water
resource utilisation.

BBRE D BT FE

- BEKENERREER

RIVKERFABE

Fire fighting

B

e The Company regularly

organised  emergency
fire drills and gave
priority to the use of
emergency equipment
such as fire extinguishers
to reduce spraying time
of water guns and
reduce water resource
consumption.

TE HIF R B SOB P RAR -
ERERERBNEERE
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It conducted comprehensive
inspections on all fire hoses
in plants and promoted
the repair of all leakage
points to prevent water
resources waste caused
by leakage.
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Before winter came, all
pipes were checked to
prevent freezing
damage.
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Tackling climate change

We are well aware that global warming is increasingly affecting
the planet and has a profound impact on the human living
environment. That's why we are constantly looking for energy-
efficient innovations and are committed to using low-carbon
energy sources to reduce greenhouse gas emissions from our
operations. In response to the environmental risks we face,
we have developed a comprehensive “Emergency Response
Plan for Severe Weather”. The plan broadly covers real-time
risks from extreme weather events such as floods and gales to
cyclones, as well as long-term climate change risks due to rising
temperatures.

In order to further enhance our ability to respond to and
mitigate natural disasters, we compiled a new “Self-inspection
and Assessment Report on the Three-level Prevention and
Control Capability of Water Pollution Emergencies” this year,
which comprehensively reviewed the Group's response measures
and capabilities in the face of water pollution emergencies and
put forward suggestions for further improvement. By identifying
the deficiencies in our prevention and control capabilities,
we will be able to strengthen the construction of emergency
facilities and capacity building in a more targeted manner, so
as to further improve the level of response to emergencies.

CHAPTER 3 WORK SAFETY
Safety risk management and control

With the goal of providing a healthy and safe working
environment for employees, the Company actively implements
the safety management policy of “Safety first based on
prevention (&2 % — » TP & E)". We strictly abide by the
safety production rules and regulations related to oil and
petrochemical warehousing business, such as the Safety
Inspection Management System, the Risk Identification and
Assessment Management System, the Safety Devices Contents
and Requirements for the Petrochemical Wharf and Warehouse
Area, the Regulations on the Safety Administration of Dangerous
Chemicals and the Provisions on the Safety Management of
Hazardous Goods at Port, etc., attach importance to safety
risk management in the operation process, and ensure that
employees work in a healthy and safe working environment.
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At the same time, we have formulated a series of safety
inspection and accident prevention management systems,
including the “Safety Check and Accidental Hidden Risk
Management System” and the “Risk Assessment and
Control System”, and under the leadership of the Safety and
Environment Division, we have achieved full participation
to comprehensively improve the ability to identify potential
hazards. In addition, the Group has established the following
risk identification management procedures to deal with various
risks quickly and effectively.

RE HEREAHRS

RE - RAHET T -RIZ2E RERED
BERE ER(XzREMERRIFER
BEERSE)E(RRFEMESGE) LA
ZRHNHEET BER2ERA 2HENY
BEREERRNPHES - I KEBIL
TUTEBRBEBENERREF - AREBB M
BREEERR -

Establish the working group for the "dual" prevention system of corporate security risk hierarchical management and
control and hidden danger investigation and governance.
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In the process of risk identification, we have established a set of
quantitative risk assessment criteria based on the probability of
an event and its possible consequences. The standard classifies
risk into four levels: significant, large, average, and low, and sets
appropriate control strategies and implementation periods for
each level.

During the Reporting Period, the Company revised the
"Hierarchical Risk Control System for Production Safety” in
accordance with the Opinions on Deepening Efforts to Prevent
and Defuse Major Risks in Production Safety of the Ministry
for the
identification of major safety risks, including basic information,

of Transport, and clearly defined the “five lists”
division of responsibilities, preventive measures, supervision and
inspection, and detailed lists of emergency response.

The Company strictly implements the provisions of the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Work Safety, establishes
a complete set of dual prevention systems for safety risk
classification management and hidden hazard investigation and
management, and continuously improves the risk prevention and
resolution mechanism, so as to improve the efficiency of safety
production management and ensure safe production.

During the Reporting Period, we carried out the following
work in accordance with the internal system document “Safety
Inspection Management System™:
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|dentified risks in  operating
activities and equipment, and gave
notice of large risks and above in
the storage area.

ERFRE MR BRI - W
EERABRAU LEBRETAR

In respect of the important high-risk
areas such as nitrogen room,
fire-pump room and wastewater
treatment station, the Company

conducted specific safety
inspections, and promptly checked
and eliminated faults in equipment
and facilities or unstandardised
operations.

HHBENSEBEHNARE - B
BiRE - SKEEIHREEZ 2R
B REHERERIEETHREST
BRERIFITR -

e The Company

conducted
comprehensive safety inspections on
production and operating activities on
a regular basis, ensuring that each
production and operation unit shall
achieve safety targets and carry out
work plans, follow safety management
rules and operating procedures, and
effectively identify safety hazards and
offer rectification advices.

HEEKERDRREHNNGS RS
BE BRELELEETEERZS
BERIFTE  BREZE2EERE
RBERE  ARERZE2BELRE
HEYIZR -

The leading group for safety
conducted routine and irregular spot
checks, gave targeted rectification
suggestions on major problems
discovered, and required
corresponding positions to complete
the rectification and re-inspection as
soon as possible.
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Case: Regular Safety Meetings and Hidden Hazard Investigation
Rl z2pleRBEHETH

During the Reporting Period, the safety and environmental protection department held a regular meeting of
cross-checking every month to convey and implement the spirit of various documents and notices issued by
the superior security department in a timely manner, and arrange the Company’s safety work. In the meeting,
each department reviewed the work of the month and discussed the unresolved issues.

In 2023, the Group held a total of 12 regular meetings and prepared minutes. After the meeting, arrange
personnel to conduct monthly self-inspection of hidden hazards, and formulate specific rectification measures
for the problems found.

EREHHE  Z2REPMESARTIZN-BIZ2FREE  FNEZERLAREHMTENTEXHFBH
Bl YLHARLETIE - RHPFIESZTLEEATE  TwmABRNME -

R202FEBAETR2RAPIGLRELE - €& - THABETAERRAR  HEROHEBHTELBNBNIE
I

Case: Award-winning Quiz in Safety Production Month

RO RELEEARRBEED

During the Reporting Period, we regularly held safety production quizzes, covering safety management
knowledge such as rules and regulations, operation specifications, implementation processes, and emergency
prevention, so as to fully stimulate employees’ enthusiasm for learning safety production, promote the concept
of safety development, and improve the level of safety production to keep the safety production situation
stable.

BEHRAR - BPIEBRER L
T

EEEMB  ROMEE
REFBE -

EAEEARAREY  ATREREHE BRERE WOTABRURERBNHER
BERLZZEENERYE HPLE2RRER BARELEKY BRXE2LEEVE
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The Group has established a comprehensive safety management
system for each link of the business process, and conducts
safety production education and training for all foreign
personnel entering the production area in accordance with the
requirements of the specification, ensuring that they understand
the safety instructions and distributing the necessary personal
protective equipment.
safety management and jointly build and share a safe business

Achieve comprehensive coverage of
environment.

Safe operations management

We attach great importance to safety production, strictly
implement the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Work
Safety, Fire Control Law of the People’s Republic of China and
Regulations of the Jiangsu Province on Workplace Safety and
other laws and regulations, and continuously strengthen the
safety management system of warehousing business based on
“Safety first based on prevention and comprehensive control
(Z2%— B RZE - £2E6/8)". A production safety leading
group has been set up to ensure the smooth implementation of
the responsibility system for production safety.

The safety system is supervised by the safety production
committee, and the safety production leading group drafts and
implements various safety production regulations, operating
procedures and emergency plans, including the “Production
Safety Responsibility System”, “Production Safety Management
Network”,

Measures for Production Safety Deposits”, “Production Safety

“Leadership and Duty System”, “Administrative

Meeting System”, “Production Safety Inspection System”,
"Production Safety Accident Reporting and Investigation
System”, “Inspection and Rectification System for Hidden

hazards in Production”, “Production Safety Education and

Training System” and “Production Safety Rewards and

Punishment System”. In order to improve our compliance
performance, we have updated the Safety Production Expenses
Accrual and Investment Guarantee System, and also made new
plans and divisions for the withdrawal amount and scope of use
of safety funds. In accordance with GB 30871-2022 Safety Code
for Special Operations of Hazardous Chemicals Enterprises, we
have revised the “Special Operation Management System” was

revised.

Each production and business operation unit has further
improved the safety management structure according to the
characteristics of its business, and the person in charge of
each department is responsible for the corresponding safety
management responsibilities according to his position.

R #HERERKRSE
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al

The Company’s Security Management Structure RAIREEERE
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General manager

BEE

Safety director
e BE

Area director

El&EE

Responsible for supervising the organization of the
Company's quarterly safety inspections and hidden
hazard investigations, as well as company-level
safety inspections and rectification of major safety
hazards.
EEEERTZEL A REERBHENEAB LD
ARz rRE BEARETRENEN -

Implement production safety approaches and
policies, and incorporate production safety into
development strategy and long-term plan.
FELXDEERSRRE B2 EEMALEE
B ER RS E -

Responsible for the organization of monthly safety
inspections and hidden hazard investigations,
seasonal safety inspections and hidden hazard
investigations, pre-holiday safety inspections
and hidden hazard investigations, special safety
inspections and hidden hazard investigations, and
entrusted third-party safety inspections and hidden
hazard investigations, and responsible for the
implementation and follow-up supervision of safety
hazard rectification measures.

BERRREBARERERBIHE  FHNLE
RERBIUE HAKEREEBEHE  FR
ZEREEBEHERERFE=ZTLEREERE
HENAES AEZEREEREENEE =R M

Assist in the implementation of the safety
responsibility system, organize and carry out
quarterly safety leadership group meetings, and
summarize and deploy safety management work.
The production section organizes the formulation of
annual production work objectives, and organizes
the formulation or revision of operating procedures
according to the actual production situation.
BEMREZ2EES  ABREEEZ2EE/ A
BE MERTEREEETE - EEMBASHE
FEAEIFER BREBELEEERBRASH ENX
ERTBRIERRE -

Responsible for organizing routine safety
inspections and hidden hazard investigation, and
implementing corrective measures within the scope
of their responsibilities.
FHBERESEAMNTLREREREIYSET

5 ZEEBNENE -

Organize the formulation of annual production work
objectives, and organize the formulation or revision
of operating procedures according to the actual
production situation:

HEHNETFELEETEER RELEERBERLA
B ERBRTIRIERE

For the safety management of equipment power,
devices and industrial buildings and structures,
prepare equipment management systems and
operating procedures, and organize and implement
training to ensure that special types of work obtain
professional qualification training and certification.
HREH RERIEREY BEYNLEE
B ORHERBEBHERBERE THEARTER
Bl RESKRIBEREXEENEIIHERE -
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B -HER

ERA®ME

Safety and
environmental
protection
department

7 R

Responsible for organizing department-level safety
inspections and hidden hazard investigations,
preparing and implementing hidden hazard
rectification measures, organizing the organization
of safety inspections and hidden hazard
investigation of subordinate teams, and supervising
and managing the preparation and implementation
of hidden hazard rectification measures.
BEAMNMALEREEEBIHETE RRUE
ZERSERENE BEABFBHARERER
BERHEAS RUEREREBREENEEE
BT {E -

Responsible for the safety and security

management of oil and petrochemical storage
facilities, identify national and local safety-related
laws and regulations, carry out hazard identification
and hidden hazard investigation of safety
production accidents, evaluate the current situation
of safety management, and organize emergency
rescue plans for accidents.

BEHHMRALERRBEHNZEREEETIE - &
R B R B 5 22 2R BER AR - FEGERIR
RerEEEHREHS  FAHL2EERM -4
BEREWESRERAR -

During the Reporting Period, we carried out the following
rectification work in response to the hidden hazards found
according to the summary of the hidden hazard investigation

work:

J Appropriately increase the investment of manpower and
material resources to reduce the risk of potential safety
hazards caused by lack of resources;

o It is necessary to intensify the assessment of the

responsibility system for safe production; and

J Establish and improve the safety production management

system,
responsibility.

and strengthen the assessment of safety
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In addition, through HAZOP? analysis, the Group identified
potential hidden hazards of production system facilities
in advance and made analysis and evaluation, identified
problems in the design, operation and maintenance process of
production equipment, and put forward improvement plans and
suggestions for these problems, so as to make the facilities safer
and easier to operate, and provide a basis for the formulation
of basic disaster prevention measures and emergency plans. In
addition, we conducted a SIL3 assessment to determine that
each safety instrumentation system function meets the safety
standards through the following assessment items:

o Risk of casualties;
° Risk of environmental damage;
o The potential economic risk of equipment damage and the

loss of production time caused by it; and
o Corporate reputational risk.
During the Reporting Period, the Group had one safety incident.
Employee health protection

The Group attaches great importance to the safety and
health of its employees, and fully abides by relevant laws and
regulations such as the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Work Safety, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Treatment of Occupational Diseases, The Labor
Law of the People's Republic of China, the Provisions on the
Administration of Occupational Health at Workplaces, and the
Regulations on Labor Protection of Jiangsu Province (/L& & %
ENREED]). At the same time, according to the characteristics
of the Company’s production and operation, the “Occupational
Health Management System”, “Protective Labor Equipment
Management System”, the “Safety Protection Equipment
and Facilities Management System” and other management
regulations are formulated to continuously strengthen the
occupational safety protection system.

2 HAZOP is the abbreviation of Hazard and Operability Studies
2 Hazard and Operability (HAZOP) 2 1§ /& B B2 A] 2 1E 1% 5 47
SIL is the abbreviation of Safety Integrity Level

3 B B R (Safety Integrity Level SIL)
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According to the “Management System for Special Operation”,
we have put forward more detailed management regulations for
employees engaged in special types of work, which includes
determining the specific application scope, responsibility
allocation and related safety requirements of special operations
such as temporary electricity, lifting and hoisting, and aerial
work, and arranging the safety and environmental protection
division to carry out strict safety supervision and management
of special operations on site.

According to the “Occupational Health Management System”,
the general manager shall assume the primary responsibility
for the prevention and control of occupational diseases, and
systematically carry out the identification of occupational
health. The
safety and environment protection division is responsible

hazards and the protection of occupational

for supervising the implementation of occupational health
management, and at the same time supervising, co-ordinating
and implementing the “three simultaneousness” system of
occupational hazard prevention and control. In accordance with
the "Protective Labor Equipment Management System”, the
labor protection equipment issuance standards are formulated
to ensure that employees obtain suitable labor protection
equipment, and the monitoring of occupational hazard factors
and the assessment of the current situation of occupational
hazards are carried out on a regular basis. The production
division and the equipment division will also assist in optimizing
the operating procedures of the post and are responsible for
providing regular occupational hygiene training to employees.

By evaluating the Company’s operational processes, we sort
out the influencing factors that may cause occupational hazards
and related occupational disease categories, and carry out
occupational health examinations for employees in relevant
positions in stages, and ensure that each person has at least one
physical examination per year for front-line employees. We are
deeply concerned about the safety and health of our employees,
and we provide medical support for suspected occupational
diseases, and arrange their position adjustment in accordance
with the corresponding system to avoid secondary injuries.
During the Reporting Period, the Company did not discover
any cases of employees suffering from occupational diseases or
suspected occupational diseases.

During the Reporting Period, the Company had one case of
work-related fatalities.
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Hazard factor Detection site

Loading platform, pump rooms in 1st area, 3rd area and 4th area,

BEERE 18080 3 B4

“Benzene, toluene, xylene” Loading platform, 3rd area and 4th area
[« BE . ZHXK] KEQ =R W=

“Methyl tert-butyl ether” Loading platform, 3rd area

[T EB KHEH =R

“Solvent naphtha” Loading platform, 1st area

5% B g£54 —B

"Physical noise”

[ 32 1% 2 |

KEE
"Power frequency electric field”
[THE 5] fic 5 =
During the Reporting Period, we conducted occupational
disease health checks for frontline staff. In addition, during
the Reporting Period, we conducted an occupational health
training detailing work-related occupational hazards and their
preventive measures. In the face of the epidemic, the Company
continued to take action to pay attention to its impact on the
safety and health of employees, and took practical measures
to ensure that production and the normal life of employees are
effectively guaranteed. Back when the epidemic was severe,
the Group strictly followed the instructions of the national and
local governments to ensure that all employees were vaccinated
and closely monitored the health status of employees. We
have set up a production and handling shift and a commuting
shift, and completed advance reporting and verification of ID
card, health code, travel code, nucleic acid testing, vaccination,
transportation of hazardous chemicals, so as to comprehensively
prevent the risk of the spread of the epidemic.

In the post-epidemic period, we have paid attention to the
needs of employees and ensured the safe and stable operation
of the enterprise throughout the epidemic prevention and
control period through a series of normalized epidemic
prevention measures, such as daily disinfection of office areas,
regular temperature checks of employees, provision of personal
protective materials, and promotion of epidemic prevention
knowledge.

fire pump room and central control room
—mEREE -

Power distribution room
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Safety training

We are well aware of the importance of safety training for
enterprise safety management, so we actively integrate it
into the daily management process of enterprises. We have
formulated internal management documents such as the
"Safety Training and Education Management System”, the
"Goals and Requirements for Safety Education and Training”,
and the “Safety and Health Training Programme” to ensure
that safety education and training are carried out in an orderly
manner throughout the year. In addition, six dimensions of
safety education requirements are proposed: safety needs
identification, safety awareness improvement, safety knowledge
learning, safety skills mastery, compliance with rules and
regulations, and emergency response capabilities, so as to
improve the safety awareness of all employees and implement
safety management measures. In our annual training plan, we
set the following specific safety training objectives:

FERZEREIFTEHITESR100%

1)

zZ2 I

BMRAALZERBIERECELE2EENER
- A RAEREZRACEAREEERE
oo BAIHIE TCREBINHBBEEESE) (&
EHREFEHINERNER)  UR(Z 2R FEF
FFEDEAMEREXMN  BREFREHRER
B FIHETT o ILIMER T AREEN L 2 H
BEIZXR: Z2HZXBA T2EHBRES -
RENBEE LEREEE BTHRERE
AR EZREEN  URSE2BEINLEE
BoRERREREN EFEEIEEG
BARLTUATERNRZE2FIBRT:

The implementation rate of the annual safety training programme will be 100%

100% of principals-in-charge, persons-in-charge and safety managers get certified

TEABA 2EEEA Z2EBASRE EEER100%

100% of special equipment operators and special operators have required certification

BRRERIEFAR  BEEEASLEER100%

100% of new hires participate in the three level safety training and 100% of employees receiving

job-transfer training are qualified
FEIZN=FZ2E] - EEREEE

The annual safety retaining participation rate of employees will be 100%
ETIBFZEHEIISERD100%

Employees are proficient in (post operating procedures, basics of dual systems, post risk factors and control
measures, emergency response procedure, occupational health hazards and prevention, etc.)

S THRERF[IRERE  SRIERAE  WUSKREZRERESR FBRUSEREr BEERAEEER S

While implementing safety education, the Group continues
to divide training objectives in detail and formulate specific
evaluation standards according to employees’ positions and
levels. For example, newly recruited or transferred employees
must pass the three-level safety training and corresponding
assessment before they can officially take up their posts, and
it is also stipulated that those engaged in safety management
must have relevant safety professional titles or qualifications.
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During the Reporting Period, we held training activities such
as production safety month, production safety knowledge
contest and safety knowledge lecture. According to the business
of each company and different personnel needs, each unit
conducts safety production training for front-line employees
once a month, and designs different training types and themes
for different training unit such as drivers and team leaders,
including safety operation procedures, hazardous chemical
safety knowledge, typical accident analysis, first aid methods,
traffic safety training, etc. After the training, the trainees are
also required to pass the oral or written examination.

During the Reporting Period, we continued to conduct safety
production training sessions, including front-line employees,
administrators, safety managers and special operators, and the
assessment results will be included in the year-end performance
appraisal. In order to further motivate employees to pay
attention to safety production training, the Company has set
up special year-end bonuses for units and individuals with zero
accidents throughout the year, and fines and warnings will
be divided by departments that fail to carry out training in
accordance with the training plan.

R #HERERKRSE
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Case: On-Site Meeting of Safety Production Standardization Construction

ROl 224 ERELCERRSS

In order to improve the quality and efficiency of safety production and consolidate the effectiveness of
standardization construction, the Group held a standardization on-site meeting at Yancheng International
Shipping Center (28 45 Bl X fiii 8 L)) this year for the participation of members of the Party Committee and
Deputy General Manager of the Group, leaders in charge of safety production of each subsidiary (control)
company, and department heads of the Department of Safety and Environmental Protection. Participants learned
management measures, risk management and control experience, and conducted electric shock emergency
drills to detect emergency plans.

After the meeting, the participants had an in-depth discussion on the progress of standardization and the
management of outsourced personnel, shared experience, clarified the key points and difficulties of safety
production, and improved the ability of standardization construction.

The meeting pointed out that it is necessary to understand the importance of standardization construction,
strengthen education and emergency rescue, combine the prevention mechanism, increase technical investment,
improve overall planning, promote the progress of safety standardization, and innovate the new situation of
safety production standardization of the Group.

REAZZEEEY  BERELEZRAR SERAFEAENRERMETLARAGE(LRZEHERRE
ZE BEAKE ETHRARLKEAENEERE Z2RANMBMAAEAZN - 22E2BEEEK ARE

BEER TETETESRM RUESER -
REEE SEERANBEECERNNGASEE HTER BAZ2EEENRNE RABE(LR
REED -

EREEFRBEECRREBY  REABTRERNE  HABPRS  RERWRA ZERBRE &
RRDPELES  AREEREEEELHBE -
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Case: On-Site Observation Meeting of Safety Production Standardization Construction

RP Z24ERELERASBES

In order to fully demonstrate the exemplary role of safety production standardization construction, the Group
held a safety production standardization construction site visit meeting at the Port Storage Petrochemical.
Over 40 people including the Group’s main leaders and safety management personnel from each subsidiary
participated in the visit. The participants observed and learned about the Port Storage Petrochemical’s practices
in safety production standardization and dual prevention system construction, and engaged in exchanges and
discussions.

After the visit, an analysis meeting was held where the participants exchanged experiences, practices and
problems regarding safety production standardization construction. The meeting pointed out that it is
necessary to fully recognize the fundamental, long-term and critical role of standardization, adhere to problem-
oriented approaches to promote standardization construction, adhere to goal-oriented approaches to improve
standardization construction quality, and adhere to result-oriented approaches to build models in key areas,
give full play to the exemplary and leading role of standardization construction, and promote the improvement
of enterprise safety management levels.

RADBERZE2EERELCRROTEER  SEEEROLCLARGRR2LEERELLRRASEES - &8
TEREARBFRAAREERABIORASNTEE B ASBESE TEROLELZEERE/LNE
ERMBEAEZRTEMNMBOE  WETTRR W °

BEERR ARITE  EGASRLZ2AERELERNERBINEMELT TN - EHEH  BEROR
AEECOERY REGTHERLEER BERESR EPIFTECER ZBEHEEER  RRE(E
REE - BERFERER AEHBAEITERR  BESELCERNTHIIBER  EHEXRLRE2EHEKFERE
F o

In accordance with the guidelines of the “On-site Emergency HFIKE(RZE SR EHE)ES - HBT
Measures”, we organize regular safety drills to strengthen safety L Z2EHK - IR L2RARER - WEBEH
risk management, effectively enhance the safety awareness of BIMZE2EH @ @& —[HEEEZE2MHIE
employees, and create a healthy and safe working atmosphere.  %[E o FiREL)ER - ETREME A RMIRE
Through these drills, employees are able to operate safety ZZ2HRE  IMRLESTARNIERE - WiEERAM
equipment more proficiently, deepen their understanding of IHESEIEE) - ERERELT 2 HHRE -
emergency plans, and enhance their emergency response —#REILHeEAMMAEREY A XRB LF
capabilities. This way, when a safety incident occurs, frontline ERIEME @ MG FHATEEKNEBZF 2 &
staff will be able to effectively organize the response, quickly 1K °

and calmly handle the problem, thereby minimizing potential

damage caused by the incident.
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During the Reporting Period, Port Storage Petrochemical carried out fire emergency drills to test the scientificity
and effectiveness of various plans, improve the self-rescue ability and safety awareness of all employees, so as
to minimize accident losses and improve the overall emergency response capability of the safety management
department. In order to ensure the effectiveness of the drill, the Company combined the drill with real cases
to simulate the alarm system of the central control room, and included starting the emergency plan, rescue
of the wounded, emergency treatment, pollution treatment and other links. The safety drill was a complete
success.

BEHR BRERACHBREHESRR REBSHEEROMBUENERE  ER2BBINERENNZEE
BHoNEARBERESHERS ERL2EENMINEBRSRER)] - REFRERERE  BREAOECHER

HEER(IEES  ERTEEZRERGRE  YESHMBESR -

BREVSERAKY
CHAPTER 4 GATHERING TALENTS
Employment compliance

We regard talent as the foundation of our development, attach
great importance to each and every employee, and strive to
create a fair work environment and cultivate an inclusive and
diverse corporate culture. We adhere to the concept of “placing
equal stress on ethics and competence, prioritising ethics”, and
give priority to employees who are proactive and abide by laws
and company discipline.

In terms of talent selection, we adopt the strategy of “adopting
job-based and talent-oriented strategy and maintaining dynamic
balance” to maintain a balance between talent and employment.
We select the most suitable employees according to the actual
needs of the job, and make precise job placement according
to individual talents and expertise, so as to maximize the
potential of employees, and improve work efficiency and team
performance.
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Employment equity

The Group strictly implements the Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Regulation on Labor Security
Supervision, Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China, and other relevant labor laws and regulations to ensure
that labor practices are consistent with national regulations. In
addition, we also strictly follow the specific policies of Jiangsu
Yancheng Port, such as the Implementation Rules for Collective
Welfare and Consolation Expenditure for Employees of
Jiangsu Yancheng Port Holding Group Co., Ltd., Administrative
Measures for Employees’ Holidays of Jiangsu Yancheng Port
Holding Group Co., Ltd. (Trial), and Interim Administrative
Measures for Selection and Employment of Jiangsu Yancheng
Port Holding Group Co., Ltd.

In terms of internal management, we have formulated the
“Measures for the Administration of Labour and Personnel”,
which carry out careful planning and management from
personnel recruitment, promotion, dismissal, training,
performance evaluation, salary management to employee
equality and diversity, so as to establish a comprehensive and
systematic management framework, protect the legitimate
rights and interests of employees, and promote the long-term

development of the Company.

At the same time, we are committed to creating a diverse
workplace environment and ensuring a healthy working
atmosphere. This means that employees of all races, religions,
ages, genders, marital status, disabilities, and political views will
be treated equally, and any form of discrimination, bullying, or
unequal treatment is strictly prohibited.

Labor conditions

We always pay attention to the legality of employee
employment and prohibit the use of child labor and forced labor.
We strictly abide by the laws and regulations promulgated by
the country and each production area, including but not limited
to the Labour Contract Law of the People's Republic of China,
the Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Social Insurance Law of the People's Republic of China and the
Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labor. To avoid
child labour and forced labour, we continuously review our
recruitment practices to ensure strict compliance with labour
laws and regulations. We require all workers to provide proof
of age and identity at the time of recruitment to ensure that
they are of legal working age. We also regularly review the
recruitment and employment practices of our contractors and
suppliers to ensure that workers are treated fairly and without
any form of coercion. We believe that through these measures,

R #HERERKRSE
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we can prevent and reduce child labor and forced labor in our
operations. Violations will be severely punished and child labour
will be immediately handed over to parents or other guardians
in their place of residence.

Remuneration and benefits

We strictly abide by the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of
China and the laws and regulations of relevant countries and
regions, adhere to the principle of equal pay for equal work,
and provide fair and reasonable remuneration and benefits for
all employees. In addition, it also strictly implements local rules
and regulations such as the Implementation Rules for Collective
Welfare and Consolation Expenditure for Employees of Jiangsu
Yancheng Port Holding Group Co., Ltd. and the Administrative
Measures for Employees’ Holidays of Jiangsu Yancheng Port
Holding Group Co., Ltd. (Trial) to ensure the full implementation
of employee benefits.

Within the Group, we have promoted a series of management
policies, such as the “Measures for the Administration of
Labour and Personnel”, “"Measures for the Administration
of Compensation and Benefits” and the “Measures for the
Implementation of Performance Appraisal Management”, to
ensure that employees are compensated according to their
positions and performance. An employee’'s gross income
includes not only basic salary, but may also include bonuses,
commissions, and other forms of subsidies as stipulated in the

Measures for the Administration of Compensation and Benefits.

We also provide employees with welfare plans including five
social insurances and one housing provident fund, namely
endowment insurance, medical insurance, unemployment
insurance, work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance
and housing provident fund), as well as overtime allowance,
hospitalization allowance and other benefits. In addition, in
addition to statutory holidays, employees can enjoy additional
paid holiday benefits, which are all measures to strengthen
employee satisfaction and loyalty at work, and to create a
positive and dynamic workplace atmosphere. For example, the
"Measures for the Administration of Employee Consolation”
have been introduced, which provide employees with benefits
for birthdays, marriages, childbirth and various traditional
festivals. When an employee suffers an injury or illness, we
arrange condolences through the general department to show
our concern. In addition, the “Star of the Month” award was
established to motivate employees. The Group also organizes a
variety of employee activities to relieve fatigue caused by work,
strengthen team unity and ensure that employees are full of

vitality.
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Case: Summer Cool Condolences Campaign

R EXRRIBEED

In the summer of 2023, the Group leaders visited the wharf and construction site one after another, sent heatstroke
prevention condolences to the employees working in the high temperature, and expressed sincere gratitude and
respect to the employees who are fighting on the front line of high temperature on behalf of the party committee
of the Group. At the same time, the leaders also personally expressed their condolences to the front-line staff from
Customs, Maritime Affairs and Border Inspection to express appreciation for their hard work.

In the hot summer, the leaders of the Group will have in-depth conversations with front-line workers everywhere they
go, understand their working and living conditions, and emphasize the need to pay attention to heat prevention
and cooling, ensure compliance with safety regulations, and avoid safety accidents caused by extreme heat. They
encouraged employees to arrange work and rest reasonably to protect their health, and at the same time strengthen
self-protection to ensure that heatstroke prevention work is implemented.

This condolence activity successfully demonstrated the great importance that the Party Committee of the Group
attaches to humanistic care, aiming to build a long-term care mechanism, so that employees can feel care and care at
all times, thereby enhancing organizational cohesion and jointly promoting the high-quality development of Yancheng
port and shipping business.
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Case: Culture and Art Festival and Staff Sports Day
RO XCENHERTESS

The 3rd Culture and Art Festival and Staff Sports Meeting of Yancheng Port was held on the occasion of
their third anniversary of the establishment, marking the further strengthening of the Company’s culture and
employee cohesion. During the month-long event, a variety of cultural and sports activities were held, including
keynote speeches, chorus, essay competitions, basketball, football, 4X100m relay and chess competitions, which
attracted nearly 1,000 employees.

This cultural and art festival and staff sports day was not merely a display of competitive and artistic skills,
more importantly, it embodied the cohesion and collective spirit among employees. Through participating in
these activities, the participants deepened emotional exchanges with each other, enhanced friendship, and
strengthened the atmosphere of team collaboration. Such activities help enrich employees’ spare time while
also enhancing their identification with and sense of belonging to the Company culture.

THEREEREEERAREZEMLEMHNER T EYSEEBRN I -BF2HRET  FHEZF ATV
BETRENNE-FRIE - AEXLEMHERTESHE AT —EA  BEERTZTEHOENRBELY &
BRIBES AR HBXLEUARER B AXI00KBNMNRELBESL  GLEPH RS THTRETILHE -
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CERBTMERLE RASGEETHRRMENRRAMEER -

Employee development and training

We place great emphasis on the personal and professional
development of our employees and are committed to
developing outstanding talents. We establish development
channels for employees in various positions that are in line
with their career growth, and provide clear career promotion
paths and opportunities for employees in different departments
and levels. At the same time, we actively promote professional
employee training programs, which not only enhance
employees’ personal skills, but also help them adapt to the
ever-changing technical and social environment, satisfying their
personal development aspirations.
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In order to meet the needs of our employees, we offer a wide ATHEEITHESHTIR RMEHES
range of education and training courses to ensure that their skills FZE B FIRE  BRE THREEQATNE
are aligned with the Company's business needs. The Company’'s B &HEREF—H - RARIWELFIEHEE
employee training program is led by the general management EEIFIEE - ZBFAEBERSIME A E R
department, which is responsible for planning and implementing FFlF R #HAELRFEZEMER I -
education and training programs to provide comprehensive BRI T EBE T {E:

development support to employees. This includes the following

specific tasks:

Developing training Filing and collecting
programmes for the Implementing training Summarising training Evaluating the training files and
Company and various programmes results teaching materials

departments Fr RN A - " s e T b
HIE 2 B R & FFIE
T
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The Group provides employees with a variety of development
channels, including management, technology and finance,
supplemented by corresponding training content. The training
content is divided into various types such as onboarding, job
transfer training, and on-the-job training according to the needs
of employees. At the same time, various types of employees
can also obtain corresponding skills training according to their
personal future development plans and company needs. Details
are shown in the table below :

Managerial employees

Technical employees

RE HEREAHRS

SERBETRHZTENERRE BHRERE
B RITEMEEE - YEHUAENEIAR -
BIREZRBEEIRF RS R/HE T ABEI -
BETHEEE) EREXZIEFZREL - F
- SRAE TR A AR 4% 18 A R 2R 2 R AR 8 AN
ARBEBREFHEREREI - FHOTK:

Financial employees

EEEET RiEET MBEWET
* Training on labour * Technical training * Training on the latest
regulations, secretarial corresponding to  each financial report
practical skills and position preparation and
prepatratlon of management » Continuously improving the accounting standards
reports technical skills that a job BHSTHERsEERe

RHUBEER  WEBEHR
REEBRREERESHEIAN

o
“

requires

Training on occupational
health and safety education

FHERIEF

and standardised operating
procedures

+ Communicating new
developments and business
information  about trade
logistics industry to enhance
employees' sensitivity to
changes in industry
information
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For new employees, we implement a unified induction training
plan covering the following contents, including corporate
culture, business philosophy, the Company’s development
history and current status, industry status, the Company’s
organisational structure, functions and business scope of each
department, rules and regulations, and code of conduct for
employees and other basic information, as well as education
related to the Company’s culture, so as to enhance employees’
understanding of their respective job responsibilities. New
employees must pass a unified assessment before they can be
officially confirmed for the position.

In order to continuously improve the quality of training and
enable employees to improve, we design and implement a
"Training Evaluation Form” to collect feedback and suggestions
from employees. We will conduct a comprehensive evaluation
of the effectiveness of the training course, from the training
environment, content, format to the actual effect after the
training, so as to continuously improve the training system.
In order to encourage employees to improve themselves, we
also actively recommend employees to participate in external
training courses to learn new skills, and provide necessary
learning funds and time support after approval by managers and
HR departments.

In addition, during the year, the Company’s board members
and senior management completed training on the GEM Listing
Rules of HKEX and continuing professional development to
ensure that they have a more professional perspective to adapt
to market changes and properly discharge their duties.
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During the Reporting Period, we provided training courses for ¥ EHA - BB B TR E TIHIIRE -
69 employees for a total of 3,470 hours. Bl 48 B R 3,470/ B o

Case: Port Storage Petrochemical launches training on hazardous waste disposal knowledge

RO BEAHERREEE XTI

During the Reporting Period, Port Storage Petrochemical organized employees to participate in hazardous waste
disposal knowledge training, so that employees could further improve their hazardous waste disposal skills and
strengthen their awareness of environmental protection.

HBEHE ERAOCABBEIZ2NEEEEMNAE  BEABIEETE—TRABERERE MBRETR
BRERH °

Case: Annual Safety Committee Working Meeting and Training

RO FERESTIHFSHERIEI

We have been paying attention to the management of safety production, holding regular meetings of
the Company’s Safe Production Committee, organizing relevant persons in charge to participate in safety
production training, the training content covers ideology and production management regulations, and watching
educational warning videos, and reminding of potential dangers, in order to raise safety awareness. At the
same time, we also distribute safety knowledge and accident lesson videos through corporate WeChat groups,
enabling safety prevention work to be fully integrated into daily operations.

ﬁiﬁ’ﬁ* TEREAEERETE THARX2EEZESH  ABEMEEAZNZZ2EERI - HIIR
RREBRBNEEETRKY BERERETH  REVREZELANER LME'?;ziiF B o A - JAPIIR
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CHAPTER 5: WIN-WIN COOPERATION
Supply chain management

In terms of supplier management, we adhere to the principles
of fairness and impartiality, and implement a strict management
system to ensure the sustainability of the supply chain. We
strictly follow the Company Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China
and other relevant laws and regulations to ensure the legal
compliance of supplier relationships.

In order to ensure the safety and stability of the Group's overall
supply chain, we need to declare and approve the procurement
process by our superior companies in the daily procurement
process to ensure the legitimacy and transparency of the
process.

The Company’s "Management Measures for Procurement”
clearly define the responsibilities and authority of relevant
departments in supplier management. In addition, we have
set up a Procurement and Tendering Management Committee
to supervise procurement projects, guide procurement
implementation and management, supervise the performance
of winning suppliers, and make centralized decision-making on

projects that require investment attraction.
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Before confirming the cooperation, the supplier must provide
relevant certificates and qualification certificates, including
business licenses, fire inspection contracts, etc., to confirm
that the management in the course of its business operations
complies with relevant laws and regulations such as labor and
environment. At the same time, the products provided by
the supplier must meet the certification requirements of the
corresponding product quality and environmental standards
to ensure that the quality and environmental impact of their
products meet the standards of the Company and the law.
Although we did not conduct an evaluation of existing suppliers
during the Reporting Period, we will assess the capabilities of
our cooperative suppliers in the following four aspects in a
timely manner:

R HERERERSE

ERERAER - HERNVARTEELEERR
HmAEaRSEANNAREEMELZEN
NEBEEXBELRRETNERETSH R
SERBAREN - R fEBRERNE®
BEARNAHENERLEENMRERENRER
Ko NEREEMNEENREZENA QT
MERRE - R WEHA - RIVREYR
BEHERETHGL  BERMSERESEH
FEREMBE NEITIA T EHRREE

Product quality assessment

ERERATIE

Deliverability assessment
XK NI

Assessment of the status
of cooperation

BERRTE

Product price assessment

EmERFE

e Toengage a third-party agency for the assessment of product quality based on

the product indicators agreed in the contracts between the parties; and to
determine the quality level according to the assessment result
EKEETERNEEREERE  BRFE=TRIRERIERLDE - WRAIER
AEEEKT

To learn about the company profile from various channels, such as telephone,
Internet and business registration, etc.

According to the terms of the contracts, the upstream companies are generally
required to pay after delivery while the downstream companies are required to
pay before delivery

WEFE - B IABLEFREFBROEEALRBR

RBEERGHRAR » —RER EFEIEERNK - THENFTRRE

To undertake assessment from three angles: whether customers carry out the
contracts on schedule; whether customers who apply for postponement due to
exceptional cases have carried out their contracts during extension; the fact that
customers have not carried out the contracts for more than three months

REECRZRNEL - DEAERS R AR - B=@AKRH=
R

To undertake assessment according to market prices, product indicators,
methods of delivery and payment, etc.

RIBETISER  ERiER - KENRTAFTE

REBNERBERBERD R
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Supplier safety and environmental management

In order to achieve the sustainable development of the
Company, we have also conducted strict audits on the
suppliers who provide products and services, and improved
the performance and management level of suppliers in terms
of environment and safety, so as to promote the mutual
development of the industrial chain. We have formulated the
"Safety and Environmental Protection Management System”
and require all suppliers to sign the “Safety and Environmental
Protection Agreement” before cooperation, hoping to improve
the environmental management capabilities of suppliers.
For suppliers with outstanding performance, we will actively
consider working with them first. For suppliers who have
established a long-term and stable cooperative relationship with
the Group, we provide regular environmental, health and safety
(EHS) training, including safety and environmental protection
related regulations, special operating procedures, hazardous
chemicals management practices and other special content.
Ensuring that the suppliers who provide us with critical services
have high-quality products and services that are also highly
sustainable.

CUSTOMER SERVICE
Customer communication

Our main clients include producers and traders. In order to
gain the trust of customers, we continue to improve product
quality, service level and management capabilities, and strive to
provide customers with excellent products and better services.
We proactively communicate with our customers and continue
to explore ways to improve communication efficiency, so as to
ensure that we can quickly collect customer feedback, analyze
them in depth, and make improvements based on the results.

In order to deal with customer complaints, we have established
an effective mechanism and provided convenient complaint
service channels, including telephone, email, fax and physical
address. After receiving customer complaints, we will quickly
identify the relevant units, clarify the specific reasons for the
complaints, and track the processing progress in real time, and
strive to give customers satisfactory answers. If a customer
suffers a loss due to our negligence, we will compensate the
customer for the damage by making reasonable compensation
in accordance with the Company’s policy.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had not received any
complaints related to products and services.
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Customer privacy

We fully recognize the importance of protecting the privacy of
our customers and are committed to safeguarding the privacy
rights of our customers and the security of their personal
information. In every business operation, we strictly abide by
laws and regulations, industry standards and strict internal
guidelines on the protection of customer privacy, including
but not limited to the Personal Information Protection Law of
the People’s Republic of China. We require our employees not
to disclose customers’ personal information and transaction
information, and strictly prohibit asking for or collecting
customers’ privacy information based on curiosity or any other

reason.
Community input

We understand the
communities. We believe that the community’s support is an

importance of growing with our

important cornerstone for the long-term development of the
Company. Therefore, we have made a positive contribution to
society by continuously expanding our business scale, actively
creating abundant employment opportunities and increasing tax
revenue for local people, further improving the living standards
of local residents.

In addition, our company is also committed to initiating a
variety of charitable activities, such as voluntary blood donation,
and purchasing agricultural products from economically
underdeveloped areas such as Yijun County, and actively playing

a social role in the community.

Yancheng Port Group stated that the Group will continue
to shoulder its social responsibilities and emphasized its
commitment to public welfare activities, such as sending cool

in summer, sending warmth in winter and donating.
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APPENDIX | KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS [fi#Z —BR#EXIER

Environmental aspect

RRAR

Nitrogen oxides (NOx)
R AP (NOx)

Sulfur oxides (SOx)
& ¥(SOx)

Particulate matter (PM)
FERLY) (PM)

Direct greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions (Scope 1)

BEERERBHR(EED
Energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2)
8RR R = R BB (S E2)
Total GHG emissions
BRERBHRAS
GHG emission intensity
BEREBHEREE
Total amount of non-hazardous waste
BEEEVAE

Office domestic waste and food waste

R ARSI R BT 8

Office paper consumption

N G
Density of non-hazardous waste
BEEENEE
Total amount of hazardous waste
FEBRRNAE
Hazardous waste density
BEBENTE
Direct energy consumption (Fuel)
BEEEREE(MH)

Petrol

b

Diesel oil

ey

Town gas

B

Indirect energy consumption (purchased electricity)

FERREE(OMNEEN)

Total energy consumption

ERHERE

1 O 6 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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Kilogram
Kilogram
Kilogram

Tonnes COi
AB_EtiRE=E
Tonnes COi
RBE=EbixEE
Tonnes COZi
RE=EixEE
Tonnes CO2e/Revenue in HK$'000
AM-EtHEE THTKE
Tonnes
N
Tonnes
N
Tonnes
NI}
Tonnes/Revenue in million HK$
N R AL €
Tonnes
N
Tonnes/Revenue in million HK$
AW/ BEB Tk a
KWh
T K
KWh
TRE
KWh
TRE
KWh
T K
KWh
TRE

KWh
TR

14.16

0.06

1.33

12.57

206.63

219.20

0.01

12.55

11.42

113

0.78

2.05

0.13

37,398.49

36,049.91

827.75

520.83

362,908.68

400,307.17
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Energy consumption intensity kWh/Revenue in HK$'000 24.85
RREREE TRE/TETks

Total water consumption m? 30,327.00
BREKE 373K

Water consumption intensity m?/Revenue in HK$'000 1.88
BREKEE SRR/ FE T E
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Social aspect HEHE

Total workforce

EREER

By gender

R B

Male Person 68
SHET A

Female Person 25
THET A

By age

BERED

Aged under 30 Person 13
30 AT A

Aged 30 to 50 Person 57
30-503% A

Aged over 50 Person 23
50%% M A

By geographical region

Z it E & 5

Mainland China Person 90
B K BE A

Hong Kong, Macao and Taiwan Person 3
BRE A

Overseas Person 0
TN A

By employment type

REREZE D

Full time Person 92
S A

Part time Person 1

R A

Total number of employees Person 93
BETHAY A
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Employee turnover rate

BIRALER

By gender
3k B

Male
SHET
Female
THEBT
By age
RERE D

Aged under 30
0B AT

Aged 30 to 50
30-507%

Aged over 50
505% A £

By geographical region
ZHEHD

Mainland China

EPN

Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
BEA

Others

8 5)

Total turnover rate

BR KR

Suppliers by geographical region
HERHE

Mainland China

e N
Others
FR B K B DA St

Health and Safety

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

No.

No.

e

BERZE

98

31

Work-related fatalities
THRTAH

Work-related fatality rate
R A s

Number of days lose due to work injuries

ATIEELXTIEAR

1 0
1.08 0
0 0
REBRENEROERDT
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Training and development R RIE

By gender

B RE D

Male 87 55.00
S

Female 40 24.40
g3

By employee category

REIERSE

Management 72 26.48
ERERE

Grass-roots employees 75 60.71
REERT
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APPENDIX 1l CONTENT INDEX TO APPENDIX [ —BxXFr L™
C2 "ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND B -22REAR
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE”

R E M 82 C2(]R
H1E 5 RE

Governance A Statement from the board containing the following elements: Board Statement
Structure (i) disclosure of the board's oversight of ESG issues; EZOEH
Ak (i) the board's ESG management approach and strategy, including the process used

to evaluate, prioritize and manage material ESG-related issues (including risks to
the issuer's business); and

(i) how the board reviews progress made against ESG-related goals and targets
with an explanation of how they relate to the issuer's business.

HEZERHMNEYR ERFATIAE:

() HEEZQURR HENEARAFEMEE:

(i) BFENRE HERERERAHLRER BRI BRHJIREREER
MER HENEAERZERBHETARBNRAR)NBRE &

(i) EZFEMARRE HEREANBERRIELER IRETAMMERTA

iBERE-
Reporting A description of, or an explanation on, the application of the Reporting Principles Reporting principles
Principles (materiality, quantitative, and consistency) in the preparation of the ESG Report. B 3 R
EHRD HAABBERRRE HERELSHSERMAEAESRA(ZEM SN
1)
Reporting A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG report and describing the Reporting Period and scope
Boundary process used to identify which entities or operations are included in the ESG report. % 8/ k& E

ERGE BRERE HORELRRENERBE LEAKEVLERREZBAARSE i
RERBEMNBE -

Aspect Al: Emissions

BEA: HBY
General Information on: Chapter 2 Low-carbon
Disclosure (@) the policies; and Development

—REE (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on %= E &z & &
the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BRERRRERBHR MARLIMNES BEREZEENNELSHN:
@ BE R
b) BEFTHETABEAYENEWZERMAGINER -

REEBNERERBERAR 111
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KPI A11 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Appendix | Key Performance

BRENE HMMERLABESREE Indicators;

EALI Environmental aspect
Tor— B ERIEE:

KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in Tonnes) Mﬁf N Eﬁiﬁ; ial
REERER

MR ENE and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

BA12 EXEEVRERAZ @E)RERBAHNEECMARIR(WER)BE -

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (Tonnes) and where appropriate, intensity.

BRENE FELREEERVMLECIMAR)R(MER)XE -

BA13

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in Tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity.

BREXE FMEABEZEEMAEUMABENWEREBE -

RA14

KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Chapter 2 Low-carbon
BRENE HILMTUNHEREARRAZINELERMRRNSR - Development;

A5 Management of environmental
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a description objectives

BIRIEMIE  of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. gﬁ;fﬁfﬁg ;
AL HLEEEEREZEEVNR:  REAMIVNAEEER AR ELEEMKF RRARR
RE o

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EEA2:BERER

General Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water, and other raw Chapter 2 Low-carbon
Disclosure materials. Development;
—BRRE BRERER(BESR KREMRME)OBE - Resources conservation
F_EEMER:

A ER
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total (Kwh in ‘000s) and intensity. Appendix | Key Performance
BRENE ZREVESNERRIHELREREUITETRRAE)IREE - Indicators;
2A21 Environmental aspect
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Mﬁfj@i@% MR
BRERE @RKEREE - RRER
BA22
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KPI' A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Chapter 2 Low-carbon
BREWE HAMTYNEREANZEERAEELEEMERNSR - Development;
2A23 Management of environmental
objectives
FOERRER:
REARER
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water Chapter 2 Low-carbon
BREMIE  efficiency target(s), and steps taken to achieve them. Development;
ZA24 K BUER KR LA EAMBE  ARAFTIMAKIEEERAEIELEZEA  Management of environmental
RIS B o objectives

Resources conservation;

Water management
FoEEBRER:

REAGER:

EHAER:
KERER
KPI A2.5 Total packing material used for finished products (in Tonnes) and, if applicable, with The Company’s business does not
BiRENME reference to per unit produced. involve the use of packaging
2A25 ARmABEMANEE B E) R(NER) BEEBMGE - materials.
FRANRBUHETSREABE
R o
Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BEHA: BERAAER
General Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and natural Chapter 2 Low-carbon
Disclosure resources. Development
—BEE  AEETAURERRARERENEATENRE F_EERER
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural
BIEMIE  resources and the actions taken to manage them.
BA3 HUEBEHERERRAERNEAYERCRRERRBYENTD -
Aspect A4: Climate Change
EHAL: REZL
General Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which have Chapter 2 Low-carbon
Disclosure impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer. Development
—BEE  HBEOTAEAPENEARGEBEENRR - F_EEMER
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
BRIEMIE  which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
ZA4 B R R EHETAELR ENERRGEBEEE  REHTH -

REBNERBERBERD R 113
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Aspect B1: Employment

BEBI: ER

General Information on: Chapter 4 Gathering Talents
Disclosure  (a)  the policies; and FENEEBAT

—REE (o)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on

the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.

ERFMEEE BERER THEHE BRE FTERE STl REAAREM

FBREME:

(B HE:R

b) BEFHEOGABEAZENREZZRAGINEH -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region. Appendix | Key Performance
BREME Buh ERELY FREFNIEEISNESLL - Indicators;
£B1.1 Social aspect

o — B 18 R IE

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. MﬁfAEE“"& el
BRERE ZUN FRAFIRERESNESRKLE . LRRE

2B1.2

Aspect B2: Development and Training
EEB2: RERZ2

General Information on: Chapter 3 Work Safety
Disclosure ~ (a)  the policies; and FoERRHEE
—RKE (o)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards

FAREZ2THERARRERBELREMREN:

@ BER

b) BEBFHETABEAYENEBZERAGINESR -
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three years Appendix | Key Performance
BREMIE  including the reporting year. Indicators;
£82.1 BEZFOEREFE)BFAITHMARRILE - Social aspect

§ 48 — IEIETE -
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Py 55— B 58 170022

\ A He®HB
BRes HISBAIEAN- nehs
1%B2.2
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they are Chapter 3 Work Safety
BREMIE  implemented and monitored. E-ERREE

1£B2.3 WRMRROBERFREAZ2ER  UREBRATRERNE -
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R

B oHERELRRE

Aspect B3: Development and Training
BEB3: %R RE

General Policy on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.
Disclosure Description of training activities.
—REE AERAEEBRTILEBENAARKEONE - HRABEIED -
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category.
BRENE RZUFIREEEFEINIIEEADL -
1%B3.1
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee category.
BRERE RZRUFIRERRFES BRESTARINTIRE -
1%B3.2
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
BEB4: $IEH
General Information on:
Disclosure  (a)  the policies; and
—BREE (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.
BBRMEEIRBHETH:
@ BER
b) BEFHEOTABEAZENRBEZZRAINEH -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced
B E R labour.
12841 Ml ARENEEAREETIRARST
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.
BRENE HIEZRARRERNKEREBEERMEROSR o
1%B4.2

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
BEBS:ERER

General Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
Disclosure ~ ERHEEENRE Rt @ABRECR -

—REE

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.

BREWE BuEIDMHEEHE -

1851

Chapter 4 Gathering Talents;
Employee development and
training

EMEEBAS
BTHRERE]

Appendix | Key Performance
Indicators;
Social aspect

W —BMRENER:
HeHR

Appendix | Key Performance
Indicators;
Total workforce

Ptk — B SR B U 1Z
BT

Chapter 5 Win-win Cooperation;
Supply chain management
FOEHETAR:
HE@EE

Appendix | Key Performance
Indicators;
Social aspect

W —BRENER:
HeHE

REBHNIERFE RO AR A A
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R HERERRSE

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the

RGN E practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored.

12B5.2 HREEERAEENEN MENTABENNEERNE  URBHRENNRITR
EERE -

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the supply
B E R chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.

1%B5.3 HAEBBNRERGARSNRERLEARNEN  ARABRTRERTE -
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and

BIREMIE  services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.

1%B5.4 HiAEREREARRESARRERRBBOEN URABBOTRERTL -

Aspect Bé: Product Responsibility
EEBs:EMEM

General Information on:
Disclosure  (a) the policies; and
—RKE (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on

the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.

ERMREERNRBENREER 2  BE BERLBEEARBRIEN:

@ BER
b) BEFHEOTABEAZENBEZZRAGNES -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health
BREME  reasons.
12B6.1 EEACERERARTAR2ERFEAMARKNEDL
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are dealt

BEEME  with
1%B6.2 BEARERMRBENRFHEUARELE T -

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property rights.
BREWE HIEAERREMNZEEGHANED -

1£B6.3

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

BRERE HIEERTAEREMDUKER -

1%B6.4

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they are

BiRENE implemented and monitored.

1%B6.5 WRRBEEERRERLBICE  ARBEERATRERTE -

11 6 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2023

Chapter 5 Win-win Cooperation;
Supply chain management
FOEETAR:
HE@EE

Chapter 5 Win-win Cooperation
FIERETAR

Chapter 5 Win-win Cooperation;
Product Responsibility
FHEBETAR:
EmEf

Not applicable: The Company's
business does not involve product
recalls

TER:ARRAMEB IR
B mE K

The Company's business does
not involve intellectual property
rights.

FRAMEBUHETSRERMHE
Ef -

Our business does not involve
quality verification and product
recall.

ARAMEB TSR EANERR
EiBRE -

Chapter 5 Win-win Cooperation;
Customer service;
Customer Privacy
FHEBETFHAR:
PR
RELE



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE #HEREARE

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
EEB7:RAS

General
Disclosure

—REE

KPI B71
IR 4B e
ZB71

KPI B7.2
IR B e
1ZB7.2

KPI B7.3

B IR 48 e
ZB7.3

Information on: Chapter 1 Optimized Governance;
(a) the policies; and Compliance management
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on £—ERHE A

the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. BHRERE
FEMLER 9% HEREREN:
@ HBE:R

b) BTHETAREAYENRBERLRAMNES -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the issuer
or its employees during the Reporting Period and the outcomes of the cases.

RBEHAHBTASIEEEREIIEELENB SHARMNHBERFDRER -

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

HAmBEERBRER  AREBBIREERE -

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.

WEMEERETRENREFED -

Aspect B8: Community Investment

EBHEBS : HERE

General
Disclosure

—REE

KPI B8.1
BE s
1ZB8.1

KPI B8.2
EE
1Z£B8.2

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities Chapter 5 Win-win Cooperation;
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the ~ Community input
communities' interests. FREBFHE:

ERUMB2ERBEREEMEHERRNBREALBEDEERUBMENEEK . HERA

Focus areas of contribution.

FIEREE -

Resources contributed to the focus area.

EEIEBMPAER -

REBNENERHAERAR 117
2023 FiR



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
BYZHMBE

mazars

To the shareholders of
Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set
out on pages 126 to 247, which comprise the consolidated
December 2023,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

statement of financial position as at 31
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023 and of its financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the "Audlitor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2023
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42nd Floor, Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

BB BEBISEPRES42E
Tel E|3E : +852 2909 5555
Fax K : +852 2810 0032
info@mazars.hk

www.mazars.hk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to the "Going concern basis” section in
note 2 to the consolidated financial statements concerning the
adoption of the going concern basis on which the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared. As at 31 December
2023, the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities
of approximately HK$390,688,000 and HK$446,983,000
respectively. These conditions, along with other matters as set
forth in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, indicate
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and, therefore that it may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. The
directors, having considered the measures being taken by the
Group as disclosed in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, are of the opinion that the Group would be able
to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the directors have
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis. The consolidated financial statements do not
include any adjustments that would result from a failure of
achieving the measures. We consider appropriate disclosures
have been made in this respect. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
“"Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.

R T

FRGECENEARTHRERSR

BEERBIE  SEAVBHRRME2AEBRAR
BREEERUGAMBRENFELLEE

i

|—fi-RZBE-_=ZF+=-_A=+—8" =&
EENRDEEFEREAETFELRNOAE
390,688,000 JT 446,983,000/ 7T ° 21BN
DERE M RRMF2MmEMEMmEEBRTE
EATHETHE Y BEEEIEFELEE
NEEERER BANWEAREZEETER
BRPEHEEEYFSEHEL - KEE E
SERINANGR A B RERM T2 BB HERE -
EERA EEEBBEEIFELSE c Bt
EFCHRPBELEEEFGREAYBHRE - &7
G BHRETPIENESENEEETEELE
RB2EMNAR TERETCUFTECIEREE
BT - BEERYEREEHEELBR -

AREREZSERE

REBSZEXHAE  HAREZFE/ESE
ERAFEZREMBRRIZREEZER -
BEEFEEREAMBRREAULEERERE
RENFER MAERLEFEREFELRE
R-BRIEABELENERATHERNR] —&
PriEIRS  BEEEEE MEEARRES
MmEFBBNAREXER -

EEMENBEROERDT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
BYZHMBE

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
HREEREE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

WE - BERXEZHE

Refer to notes 4 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements

BREEI BRI iF4R15

The property, plant and equipment with carrying
amounts at 31 December 2023 in aggregate of
HK$114,028,000 as disclosed in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements were tested for
impairment in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting
Standard 36 “Impairment of Assets” and an impairment
loss on property, plant and equipment of HK$1,440,000
is recognised for the year then ended.
FEMBHREAMTISAEEDE BEARBR T
=+ A=1T-BZKHEEHARXR114,028000%E T E
RIEBEGAERNE6HEE ERME I ETRERNH
VTRBEZRIEFEERYVE BERKBREESRE
1,440,000/ 7T °

The Group engaged an independent professional
valuer to assess the recoverable amounts of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs"), which involved fair value
calculations.
EEBEZREBUEEGMEMTIEReELABEMN(REE
HENDMAREERE  HP PR A FERE -

The impairment test of property, plant and equipment
required significant judgement and estimations and the
determination of the level at which impairment should
be tested. Given the significance of the amount and
judgement involved, the impairment assessment is
considered as a key audit matter.

ME BEMRBZRENATEZERHE MEER
ETRETREINACZER -ERFRERSHE LA
i RMEFHRR S - REAREKEER -
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BREEXEEE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RERTFEEBERERSRZEE

Our procedures, among others, included:
EENREFEFBEEARR:

—  Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology in estimating the recoverable
amounts of those assets;

ARG ZFEEZAI RO BRER 2GE
HERBRE:

Assessing the competence, objectivity,
capabilities and results of the work of the
independent professional valuer that was
appointed by the management to assist
management in determining the recoverable
amount of relevant CGUs;

HHEEBMZEBLEXRMAEMCER FE

B ORISR BDHEEEECARAES
ELEBM A ROEER:

Challenging the independent professional valuer
the methodologies and judgements used in
valuing the recoverable amount of CGUs;
MBYERGEMMBEERSEEEM ZAIEIK
SRR TR R A 1R R

Engaging auditor’'s expert to assist us in
assessing the reasonableness of assumptions
and judgements used by management and the
independent professional valuer appointed by the
management; and

ZRCZEMER G ESHIHEEEREEREM

ZAEBUEEGEMABRIRAGEET SR
K
— Assessing the competence, objectivity,

capabilities and results of the work of the

auditor’s expert.
AERBMERER THE -
2o

BEN R TE#



Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
HREEREE

Impairment of trade receivables

B SN HE 2z HE

Refer to notes 4, 21 and 32(a) to the consolidated
financial statements

DRGSR EREZN T4 - 21K32(a)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables
amounted to HK$194,282,000 as at 31 December 2023
(net of loss allowance of HK$3,514,000).
RZBEZ=F+-A=+—H X E5EEFEWHKA
Z BRTE B /3194,282,0007% 7T (4% 1 Bk /&5 18 % 43,514,000
) °

Loss allowances for trade receivables are based on
management’s estimate of the lifetime expected credit
losses to be incurred, which is estimated by taking into
account the credit loss experience, ageing of overdue
trade receivables, customers’ repayment history and
customers’ financial position and an assessment of both
the current and forecast general economic conditions,
all of which involve a significant degree of management
judgement. Given the significance of the amount and
judgement involved, the impairment assessment of
trade receivables is considered as a key audit matter.
BORWKRFBEZEBRBEBHIUNEEEBHEESX 22
EHEEFER2EGARERE 2HRHAGEEHE DK
ZREEERLR BHESERUETEREK FTFPE
TAC R B P 2 B R O DA K ¥ B AT K TRORI B 88 O
MR A RRIEL G P EREENSREREE
RN - ERFRERCELALE  EHRKRFIAZ
MEFERES—REREXRESR -

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZEMEE

AREREXEEE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
REGTEEBERERSRZEE

Our procedures, among others, included:
EENREFREBEETRR:

—  Discussing with the management the Group’s
credit control policy and credit terms granted to
the customers;

HERENR BEEZEERRBELATP
BRHzEES:

Evaluating the management’s loss allowance

assessment of trade receivables, including
reviewing the ageing information, past repayment
patterns and the information of future economic
condition;
AZEREHEIREFEBRRBE TG 2
REFRKER  BEERT A LARKELEMRR
B

Assessing the critical judgements made by the
management regarding the factors considered
during the loss allowance assessment; and
HEEREERTAEREEERUMEREREL
ZERHE R

Inspecting subsequent cash receipts from
customers relating to those balances as at 31
December 2023, on a sample basis.

MERER T _=F+_A=1T—"RZZFHE
HRERBER 2 EPRERIE -

EEMENBEROERDT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
BYZHMBE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information in
the 2023 annual report of the Company but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement

of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

R T
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
BYZHMBE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance

regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a

statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate

with them all relationships and other matters that may

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 March 2024

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is:

So Chun Wai

Practising Certificate number: P07513
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEEWESER

Year ended 31 December 2023 #HE—ZE=-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2023 2022
—E2-= T
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET F& T
Revenue Iy &= 6 1,158,042 795,967
Cost of revenue U 75 Bk AR (1,148,906) (781,147)
Gross profit £ 7 9,136 14,820
Other income HAn g A 7 1,452 955
Administrative expenses TR X (30,410) (41,900)
Finance costs & AR 8 (33,874) (39,616)
Gain on disposal of an associate & — B & A F U = 17 108,909 -
(Impairment loss) Reversal of Y% - BER&ECIE
impairment loss on property, EBE)REEERD
plant and equipment, net F 58 15 (1,440) 7,334
Impairment of goodwill 2R E 16 - (956)
Provision for inventories GERE 20 (284) (4,799)
Profit (Loss) before taxation BRELRIEF (B E) 9 53,489 (64,162)
Taxation 1A 1 (7) (79)
Profit (Loss) for the year FRmA(EER) 53,482 (64,247)
Other comprehensive income Hit 2 EK A
ltems that are reclassified B EF 5 A gER
or may be reclassified to HERFEF HE
profit or loss in subsequent FHEBIHEA
periods:
Exchange difference arising BREBINEBELEZ
from translation of foreign MW =R
operations 1,838 2,795
Realisation of translation RS — B AR
reserve upon WP IRE R
deregistration of a
subsidiary 265 -
2,103 2,795
Total comprehensive income FREEWRA(BER) AR
(loss) for the year 55,585 (61,446)
Profit (Loss) attributable to: BUTALTEMER (EE):
Owners of the Company ZiN/NCTEZ PN 54,715 (61,967)
Non-controlling interests FE1E R #E 2 (1,233) (2,274)
53,482 (64,241)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REETEWESER

Year ended 31 December 2023 #HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2023

—_E2=-=

HK$'000
FERT

Total comprehensive income UTATEEZERE

2022

T =

HK$'000

T

7T

(loss) attributable to: (B8 #%:
Owners of the Company ViN/NCIEZ =N 57,907 (56,506)
Non-controlling interests FEE R ME (2,322) (4,940)
55,585 (61,446)
Earnings (Loss) per share AR ESEFEAEMN
attributable to equity holders BRER (E8)
of the Company
Basic and diluted HAN#E 4.25 HK cents  (4.81) HK cents
13 42571 (4.81)7%& 1L
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B BRI R

At 31 December 2023 RZZE-_=F+-_A=+—H

2023 2022
—=E_-= —_=E_- =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F& T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment WM MEREE 15 114,028 122,678
Goodwill S 16 340 340
Interest in an associate R—HEBE AR 2R 17 - -
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 36,437 38,873
Prepayments in relation to HE BERZREZ
property, plant and equipment ICENE O 19 6,086 4,993
156,891 166,884
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 - 977
Trade and other receivables E5 N E g WA 21 255,530 573,585
Bank balances and cash RITHEB AR S 22 158,274 17,863
413,804 592,425
Current liabilities REAEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H A fEAT B 23 297,867 592,240
Current portion of bank and other R1TR EAhfEE Z BN ER
borrowings S 24 473,409 606
Amount due to a former FE— AT S DA
associate/an associate /N Zﬁ( biz] 23(e) 33,216 34,179
804,492 627,025
Net current liabilities ERBAE (390,688) (34,600)
Total assets less current liabilities B EERABEE (233,797) 132,284
Non-current liabilities EFRBEE
Amount due to a connected JER—MBEERQR 2 HIE
company 23(c) 2,273 7,900
Non-current portion of bank and R1TN Hifg & 2 JERVHA
other borrowings i) 24 209,477 624,700
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE 25 1,436 1,477
213,186 634,077
NET LIABILITIES BEEM (446,983) (501,793)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R

At 31 December 2023 WZZE_=F+=-A=+—H

2023 2022
—E_= T
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#& T FH T
Capital and reserves BARARGE®

Share capital A% A 26 12,880 12,880
Reserves & (478,463) (536,370)

Total equity attributable to equity ANA A EmFA AL
holders of the Company M AR RE (465,583) (523,490)
Non-controlling interests JEE % i == 14 18,600 21,697
TOTAL DEFICITS B Al 4 EE (446,983) (501,793)

These consolidated financial statements on pages 126 to
247 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 28 March 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

Zhao Liang
i)
Director

EF

RER6EEFXUTENHEEMBRREN T
ME=ZA-T\BREFTSHELRET
WHATALTREREZ:

Zhang Shukai
RERE

Director

EF

REBHNIEREBRABERAA 129
2023 1R



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERREEHR

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FRARBRAARELS

(Note 26) (Note 28(a)) (Note 28(b)) (Note 28(c) (Note 28(d)) (Note 28(e))

(W3E20)  (Wits(a) (M&E28(0) (M&E28(c) (R&E28(d)) (R¥&E28(e))
Non-
Share Share Capital  Exchange  Statutory Other Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total  interests  deficits
Bx  BRHEE ExREE EXRE  AERE  RtEE  RHER ai FERER FA4AE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THT TR TRT TR THRRT TR TR TER TR THExn
At 1 January 2022 W-Z2-Z%-A-8 12,880 201,419 (7,337) (16,882) 1,720 (9,151) (649,633)  (466,984) 26,637 (440,347)
Loss for the year FRAER - - - - - - (61.967) (61,967) 2,278 (64,241)
Other comprehensive income (loss)  E 2 E W & (F8)
Exchange difference arising from BERNEBELEL
translation of foreign operations ERZSE - - - 5,461 - - - 5,461 (2,666) 2795
- - - 5461 - - - 5461 (2,666) 2795
Total comprehensive income (loss) 2 EW# (F8) B8 - - - 5,461 - - (61.967) (56,506) (4.940)  (61,446)
At 31 December 2022 WZE-ZF+-A
=t-H 12,880 201,419 (7,337) (11,421) 1,720 (9,151) (711,600)  (523,490) 21,697 (501,793)
At 1 January 2023 RZZZ=%-A-AH 12,880 201,419 (7,337) (11,421) 1,720 (9.151) (711,600)  (523,490) 21,697 (501,793)
Profit for the year FRER - - - - - - 54715 54715 (1233) 53,482
Other comprehensive income (loss)  E 2 E Y & (F8)
Exchange difference arising from BEBIEBELL
translation of foreign operations ERZER = - - 2921 - - - 2921 (1,089) 1,838
Realisation of translation reserve R -RRBARE
upon deregistration of a ERESHE
subsidiary = = = 265 = = = 265 = 265
= = = 3,192 = = = 3192 (1,089) 2,103
Total comprehensive income (loss) 2 W3 (§18) B8 = = = 3,192 = = 54,715 57,907 (2.322) 55585
Changes in ownership interests BEEREEZD
Deregistration of a non-wholly HE-BFE2ENE
owned subsidiary | = = = - - - - - (775) (775)
_ _ - = - - - - (775) (775)
At 31 December 2023 W=B-=%+=f
=t-f 12,880 201,419 (7,337) (8,229) 1,720 (9151)  (656,885)  (465,583) 18,600  (446,983)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2023 2022
—E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REREg
Cash used in operations REEXBARE 29(a) (346) (4,828)
Interest paid B A7 & (11,117) (30,733)
Tax paid BRI (7) (79)
Net cash used in operating RETHRAREFE
activities (11,470) (35,640)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREZH
Interest received 2 F B 84 222
Net cash inflow on disposal of an H& - & A a2 RE
associate mAE R 17 108,909 -
Purchase of property, plant and FBEEW%X - KE K& HE
equipment (5,365) 6,019)
Prepayment for purchase of BEWE BMEAREBZ
property, plant and equipment  FE{f 3K H (1,122) (109)
Decrease (Increase) in restricted PR H 4R 17 45 68 )8
bank balances (3 ) 3,372 (4,622)

Net cash from (used in) investing REZFE B (FTAES

activities e 105,878 (10,528)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEED
New bank loan raised MELSRITER 11,050 -
New loans from a connected KE—HEBEEQAZ

company HER 22,100 183,145
New loan from a third party KE—RE=ZFZHER 44,200 -
Advanced from connected TEU A N B R

companies 9,166 -
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEAaE (598) (541)
Repayment of bank borrowings  {EE R 7&K (44) (46)
Repayment of amounts due to BRI E S KA

connected parties (819) (131,984)
Repayment of loans from a BEKRE —HEAEQA

connected company ZER (30,683) (15,215)
Repayment of loan from a third {EEXRAB—RFE=-FH2E

party b (4,113) -
Net cash from financing activities BEEFEFME RS FE 29(b) 50,259 35,359
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2023 2022
—E-= ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Net increase (decrease) in cash ReRkHFEEMEM
and cash equivalents OR ) 3% 144,667 (10,809)
Cash and cash equivalents at FNHReRREEEY
beginning of year 13,241 25,493
Effect on exchange rate changes BEX & &) s & (884) (1,443)
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRIBE KRS EEY
of year 22 157,024 13,241
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

CORPORATION INFORMATION

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
13 September 2011 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The address of the registered office of the Company
is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal place of
business is located at Unit 1009, Exchange Tower, 33 Wang
Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are detailed in note
14 to the consolidated financial statements. The Company
and its subsidiaries are herein collectively referred to as
the “Group”. In the opinion of the directors, the immediate
and ultimate holding company of the Company is Dafeng
Port Overseas Investment Holdings Limited ("Dafeng Port
Overseas”), which is incorporated in Hong Kong.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand,
unless otherwise indicated.

1.

QRFEEH

LAENMEREROBRAR(EQT]
DRZZE——FNAT=-HREHESHES
NANEB22E (—NAN—FE3FEM - &
FEREIRASHEIMK T RER
PEREERR c RAFRMNDARELELE S
REGFABER AT (BRI GEM £ o &
NA) 2 5 % E B HE 4k A& Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands © £ 2
EEMBUNBEAENENEERRES]
SRBIFR A 5 FM009E -

ARBIRBREERAR - HWB AR ZE
BEBNEEMBRERME 14 - K
REMEMBRAANERIAKE]  EF
R ARRZEERBREERABBR
BEEMKILZ KEEBINREERE
RAR(TREEBI) -

2YEE
mBLE %

ZEFRAMBRRIREFZ BV BRELE
A((EBMB/EEN BEFT B
fhng((ERETEMAE])ABMHIAE
AABMBHRESEN - FESTEN(E
BEEADEERE) BELAREHR
AR RAMED 2 8B TR E MRS -
% B ER B BT WK I8 T B XX T GEM B
FEmRAI(GEMEm R A ) 2 @& A # 5=
iR -

%R AEREN -
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FEEBIONBERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2.

134

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting policies
adopted in the 2022 consolidated financial statements
except for the adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs that
are relevant to the Group and effective from the current
year as detailed in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements. A summary of the principal accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out in note 4 to the

consolidated financial statements.
Going concern basis

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately HK$390,688,000 (2022:
approximately HK$34,600,000) and net liabilities of
approximately HK$446,983,000 (2022: approximately
HK$501,793,000) respectively. These conditions indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt about the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern and, therefore, the Group may be unable to
realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business.

Notwithstanding the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on

aforesaid conditions, the

a going concern basis on the assumption that the Group
is able to operate as a going concern for the foreseeable
future. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Group can meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due within the next twelve months, after taking into
consideration of the measures and arrangements made by
the Group as detailed below:

(i) the Group is in negotiation with financial institutions
and connected parties for the renewal of the Group's
bank and other borrowings upon expiry, obtaining
new borrowings and applying for future credit
facilities;

(i)  the Company has obtained a RMB1 billion
financial support (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,100,000,000) in formal writing from )T &k &8
ARG EMEEBEFMR QA (Jiangsu Yancheng
Port Dafeng Port Development Group Company
Limited*” Dafeng Port Development Group”), a
connected company which has 40% equity interests
in Dafeng Port Overseas;

The official name is in Chinese and the English name is translated for
identification purpose only.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)
Going concern basis (Continued)

(i) the Group is expected to generate adequate cash
flows to maintain its operations;

(iv)  the Group has subsequently issued credit enhanced
guarantee bonds, amounting to US$31 million, which
are listed on the Stock Exchange on 7 March 2024.
The proceeds from the issuance of new bonds
issuance has been used to settle part of the listed
credit enhanced guarantee bonds which originally
matured on 23 March 2024. For further details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 7 March 2024 and 8 March 2024; and

(v} the Group has subsequently obtained a loan from
Dafeng Port (HK) Development Limited (“Dafeng
Port (HK)"), a connected party of the Company, of
US$27 million for liquidity purpose.

The directors have prepared a cash flow forecast covering
a period up to 31 December 2024 on the basis that
negotiation with financial institutions and connected
parties for the renewal of the Group's borrowings and
credit facilities would be successful, and are satisfied that
the Group will have sufficient working capital to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due within
the twelve months from 31 December 2023. Accordingly,
the directors consider that it is appropriate to prepare
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties
exist as to whether the directors of the Company will
be able to achieve its plans and measures as described
above. Whether the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern would depend upon the Group's ability to
generate adequate financing and operating cash flows
in the near future, and to obtain the continuous financial
support from its connected parties.

Should the Group be unable to continue to operate as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be made to
restate the values of assets to their estimated recoverable
amounts, to provide further liabilities that might arise and
to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities respectively. The
effects of these potential adjustments have not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

ENEEm)
BFEKEEE®E)

(i) ANEEFEHMEELIRARSTAS
FEZE:

(ivy ANEEPER TS % 431,000,000
ENLWEAERERES  ZESH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =

3.

136

Bt % R R M RE

FrZA=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following
new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 1
BEEGFEAE1RUEETR)
Amendments to HKAS 8
BB G EAIEER (BT A)
Amendments to HKAS 12

B RECHKE
El A fEn‘l’ZﬁEf;&#ﬁ

Transaction
BEXE G ERFE1295 (BETA)
Amendments to HKAS 12
BEE G EAE2FUEETA)

Amendments to HKAS 1: Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

The amendments require companies to disclose their
material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies.

The amendments have no effect on the measurement,
in the
Management has

recognition or presentation of any items

consolidated financial statements.
reviewed the disclosure of accounting policy information

and considered it is consistent with the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 8: Definition of
Accounting Estimates

The amendments clarify how companies should distinguish
changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting
estimates.

The adoption of the amendments does not have
any significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12: Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 so that
it no longer applies to transactions that, on recognition,
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

The adoption of the amendments does not have
any significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12: International Tax
Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules

The amendments provide entities with temporary
relief from accounting for deferred taxes arising from
the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development’s Pillar Two model rules. The amendments
also introduce targeted disclosure requirements to help
investors understand an entity’s exposure to income taxes
arising from the rules.

The adoption of the amendments does not have
any significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

4.

138

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical costs.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries. The financial statements of the subsidiaries
are prepared for the same reporting year as that of the
Company using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income and within equity in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in event
of liquidation, are measured initially either at fair value or
at the present ownership instruments’ proportionate share
in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. This choice of measurement basis is made on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are initially measured at fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to the owners of the Company and
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group's ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest
determined at the date when control is lost and (i)
the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests at the date when control is lost. The amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted for
on the same basis as would be required if the Company
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Any investment retained in the former subsidiary and
any amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are
accounted for as a financial asset, associate, joint venture
or others as appropriate from the date when control is lost.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group reassesses whether
it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the elements of

control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, which
is presented in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, an investment in subsidiaries is stated at
cost less impairment loss. The carrying amount of the
investment is reduced to its recoverable amount on
an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received and

receivable.
Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The Group's interest in associate is accounted for
under the equity method of accounting, except when
the investment or a portion thereof is classified as
held for sale. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter
for the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share
of the investee's net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment. Except to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee, the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses when
the Group's share of losses of the investee equals or
exceeds the carrying amount of its interest in the investee,
which includes any long term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the investee.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Associates (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group's interest in the investees,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
measured at the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the fair value of any previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the acquisition date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed of
the acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or
loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units. An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed.

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition date
amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed of the acquired business over the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree, if
any, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as an income from bargain purchase.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected
to be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant
and equipment, and where the cost of the item can be
measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an
additional cost of the asset or as a replacement.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over their
estimated useful lives from the date on which they are
available for use and after taking into account of their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line method,
at the following rates per annum:

Buildings

BF

Storage facilities

BRI

Leasehold improvements
HEMEREE

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
B KERRE

Motor vehicles

nE

Computer equipment

BIRE

Terminal and related auxiliary facilities

%5 98 K2 19 BA 4 B) 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item is
included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Cost includes all construction expenditure and other
direct costs, including interest costs, attributable to
such projects. Costs on completed construction works
are transferred to the appropriate asset category. No
depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress until it is completed and ready for its intended
use.

Impairment of other assets, other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indicator that its property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets may be impaired or
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the smallest group of assets that
generates cash flows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of other assets, other than goodwill
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversal of impairment losses is
recognised as income in profit or loss immediately.

The accounting policy for recognition and reversal of
impairment loss for goodwill is stated in the accounting
policy for goodwill in the earlier part of this note.

Financial instruments
Financial assets
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments and on a trade date basis except for financial
assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or
loss ("FVPL") which are accounted for on the settlement
date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group's contractual rights to future cash flows from
the financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the
financial asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
or (b) it neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset but
it does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Recognition and derecognition (Continued)

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises the
financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised
at their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets
not carried at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets. Such
trade receivables are initially measured at their transaction
price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt investment measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
("“Mandatory FVOCI"); (iii) equity investment measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
("Designated FVOCI"); or (iv) measured at FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group's business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the
first day of the first annual reporting period following the
change in the business model (the “reclassification date”).

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which a host
is an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated
from the host. Instead, the entire hybrid contract is
assessed for classification.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets
both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose objective is
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising from
impairment derecognition or through the amortisation
process are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when
the liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue
of the financial liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Classification and measurement (Continued)

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, bank and other borrowings and amounts due
to connected companies and an assoicate. All financial
liabilities, except for financial liabilities at FVPL, are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses ("ECL") on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost, Mandatory FVOCI, lease receivables,
contract assets, loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts issued to which the impairment requirements
apply in accordance with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific
treatments as detailed below, at each reporting date, the
Group measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at
an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on
that financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e.
the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected
life of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of
the difference between the contractual cash flows that are
due to an entity under the contract and the cash flows
that the entity expects to receive.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within
12 months after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or
more shared credit risk characteristics:

(i) past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(iii)  nature of collateral

(iv)  industry of debtors

(v}  geographical location of debtors
(vi)  external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to
the carrying amount of the financial instrument, except
in the case of Mandatory FVOCI, the loss allowance
is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that the Group may
not receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full if
the financial instrument that meets any of the following
criteria.

(i)  information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group); or

(i)  there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

4.

150

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account in the assessment:

o the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or
interest on the due dates;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

J actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if:

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations.

Simplitied approach of ECL

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group
applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL. The
Group recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL
at each reporting date and has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

4.

152

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Credit-impaired financial asset (Continued)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at
a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit
losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount when the financial asset is 1 year past
due based on historical experience of recoveries of similar
assets. The Group expects no significant recovery from
the amount written off. However, financial assets that are
written off could still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group's procedures for recovery of amounts
due, taking into account legal advice if appropriate. Any
subsequent recovery is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value, net of bank overdrafts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group
is as follows:

Trading business
Petrochemical products storage business

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods
or services promised in a contract with a customer and
identifies as a performance obligation each promise to
transfer to the customer either:

(@) a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same
pattern of transfer to the customer.

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct
if both of the following criteria are met:

(@)  the customer can benefit from the good or service
either on its own or together with other resources
that are readily available to the customer (i.e. the
good or service is capable of being distinct); and

(b)  the Group's promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of
the contract).

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies
a performance obligation by transferring a promised
good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is
transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of
that asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

4.

154

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

The Group transfers control of a good or service over
time and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation
and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following
criteria is met:

(@)  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance
as the Group performs;

(b) the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset (for example, work in progress) that
the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

(c) the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the promised
asset. In determining when the transfer of control occurs,
the Group considers the concept of control and such
indicators as legal title, physical possession, right to
payment, significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset, and customer acceptance.

Sale of goods is recognised at a point in time at which
the customer obtains the control of the promised asset,
which generally coincides with the time when the goods
are delivered to customers and the title is passed.

Service income of petrochemical products storage services
is recognised over time when services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15,
provided the outcome of the performance obligation
can be reasonably measured, the Group applies the
output method (i.e. based on the direct measurements
of the value to the customer of the goods or services
transferred to date relative to the remaining goods
or services promised under the contract) to measure
the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation because the method provides a
faithful depiction of the Group's performance and reliable
information is available to the Group to apply the method.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
the costs incurred until such time that it can reasonably
measure the outcome of the performance obligation.

The principal input applied in the output method is:

—  Storage services for petrochemical products: number
of days of the usage of the storage services

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised
using the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the assets while it is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount net of loss allowance)
in case of credit-impaired financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

4.

156

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services
to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, the contract is presented as
a contract asset, excluding any amounts presented as a
receivable. Conversely, if a customer pays consideration,
or the Group has a right to an amount of consideration
that is unconditional, before the Group transfers a good
or service to the customer, the contract is presented
as a contract liability when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is the
Group's right to consideration that is unconditional or only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts,
either a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. Contract assets and contract liabilities of
unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

For the trading business, it is common for the Group
to receive from the customer the whole or some of the
contractual payments before the services are completed or
when the goods are delivered (i.e. the timing of revenue
recognition for such transactions). The Group recognises a
contract liability until it is recognised as revenue. During
that period, any significant financing components, if
applicable, will be included in the contract liability and
will be expensed as accrued unless the interest expense
is eligible for capitalisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of
purchase and, where applicable, other costs that have
been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition, is calculated using the weighted
average cost method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period of the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Foreign currency translation

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in the currency of Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency of each of the Group's entities
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.
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4.

158

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

The results and financial position of all the group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

—  Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the end of reporting period;

— Income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
rates;

— Al resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group's
net investment in a foreign operation are recognised
as a separate component of equity;

— On the disposal of a foreign operation, which
includes a disposal of the Group's entire interest
in a foreign operation, a disposal involving the loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which
the retained interest is no longer equity-accounted
for, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to the foreign operation that
is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the separate component of equity
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the
gain or loss on disposal is recognised,;

—  On the partial disposal of the Group's interest in a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in
the separate component of equity is re-attributed
to the non-controlling interests in that foreign
operation and are not reclassified to profit or loss;
and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

—  On all other partial disposals, which includes partial
disposal of associates that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence, the proportionate share
of the cumulative amount of exchange differences
recognised in the separate component of equity is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the amount
of obligation can be made. Expenditures for which a
provision has been recognised are charged against the
related provision in the year in which the expenditures
are incurred. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money
is material, the amount provided is the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. Where the Group expects a provision
to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as
a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain.
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4.

160

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains,
a lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-
term leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments
associated with these leases are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components from lease components, and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a
separate component are considered to be part of the total
consideration that is allocated to the separately identified
components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the commencement date of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises

(@)  the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

() any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless the
lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the
Group by the end of the lease term or if the cost of the
right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise a
purchase option — in which case depreciation is provided
over the estimated useful life of the underlying asset) as
follows:

Office premises 2-3 years
Prepaid lease payment 45 years
Warehouse 2 years

The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date of the contract.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

The lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following payments for the right
to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date:

(@) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(b)  variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate;

(c) amounts expected to be payable under residual
value guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e)  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option
to terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable,
the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount
rate when there are changes to the lease payments arising
from a change in the lease term or the reassessment of
whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original
discount rate when there is a change in the residual value
guarantee, the in-substance fixed lease payments or the
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or a rate (other than floating interest rate). In case of a
change in future lease payments resulting from a change
in floating interest rates, the Group remeasures the lease
liability using a revised discount rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use
asset. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is
reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the
measurement of the lease liability, the Group recognises
any remaining amount of the remeasurement in profit or
loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease

if

(@) the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

(b)  the consideration for the lease increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

When a
a separate lease, at the effective date of the lease

lease modification is not accounted for as

modification,
(@) the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract on the basis of relative stand-

alone price as described above.

(b)  the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

(c) the Group re-measures the lease liability by
discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate over the revised lease term.

(d) for lease modifications that decrease the scope
of the lease, the Group accounts for the re-
measurement of the lease liability by decreasing
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to
reflect the partial or full termination of the lease and
recognising any gain or loss relating to the partial or
full termination of the lease in profit or loss.

(e)  for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the re-measurement of the lease liability by
making a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-
use asset.

Sale and leaseback transactions

The Group applies the requirements for determining
when a performance obligation is satisfied in HKFRS 15 to
determine whether the transfer of an asset is accounted
for as a sale of that asset.

If the transfer of an asset by the seller-lessee satisfies the
requirements of HKFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale
of the asset:

o the seller-lessee measures the right-of-use asset
arising from the leaseback at the proportion of the
previous carrying amount of the asset that relates
to the right of use retained by the seller-lessee.
Accordingly, the seller-lessee recognises only the
amount of any gain or loss that relates to the rights
transferred to the buyer-lessor.

J the buyer-lessor accounts for the purchase of the
asset applying applicable HKFRSs, and for the lease
applying the lessor accounting requirements in
HKFRS 16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Sale and leaseback transactions (Continued)

If the fair value of the consideration for the sale of the
asset does not equal to the fair value of the asset, or
if the payments for the lease are not at market rates,
the following adjustments are made to measure the sale
proceeds at fair value:

o any below-market terms are accounted for as a
prepayment of lease payments; and

o any above-market terms are accounted for as
additional financing components provided by the
buyer-lessor to the seller-lessee.

If the transfer of an asset by the seller-lessee does not
satisfy the requirements of HKFRS 15 to be accounted for
as a sale of the asset:

o the seller-lessee continues to recognise the
transferred asset and recognises a financial liability
equal to the transfer proceeds. The financial liability
is accounted for applying HKFRS 9.

o the buyer-lessor does not recognise the transferred
asset and recognises a financial asset equal to the
transfer proceeds. The financial asset is accounted
for applying HKFRS 9.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as incurred. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund.

Contributions to the state-managed retirement schemes in
jurisdictions other than Hong Kong, which are calculated
on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs,
are charged as expenses when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions. No forfeited
contributions for the above plans may be used by the
employer to reduce the existing level of contributions.

Shared-based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The Group’'s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions with employees is measured by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a reserve within equity. The fair value is
determined using the binomial model, taking into account
any market conditions and non-vesting conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Equity-settled transactions (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the entitlement of relevant
employees to the award is no longer conditional on the
satisfaction of any non-market vesting conditions (“vesting
date”). During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
periods is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year
of review, with a corresponding adjustment to the reserve
within equity.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for awards that are conditional on a market
condition or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vested irrespective of whether or not the market condition
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all non-
market vesting conditions are satisfied.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at fair value
of the goods or services received, except where the fair
value cannot be reliably estimated, in which case they
are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted. In all cases, the fair value is measured at the date
the Group obtains the goods or the counterparty renders
the services.

Cash-settled transactions

A liability is recognised for goods or services acquired,
measured at the fair value of the liability. Until the liability
is settled, the fair value of the liability is remeasured
at the end of each reporting period and at the date of
settlement, with any changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss for the period.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arises from initial recognition
of goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss, it is not recognised.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investment in subsidiaries, except where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2023 #;

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of the parent of the Group.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v} The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(a) that person's childre and spouse or domestic
partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their best economic interest.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2023

BAMEEEE TMERKE
AAAEENAEEG AT
RHEETBEEABRSE -

(viii)

o )m}
J kmm

p

FATZHHRIEEZEE RS RETEH
T%Z’E‘Ei%}\iﬂzﬁé ATEEZ Rk
ME 81

b=lll

@ ZBAALTZTFREREBIFEHE:
b) ZABEALZEBIREMFEZFL:
54

© ZBALTHEEBIREHRBZX
BEAe

R < EETEH Hs%@ﬁ@%ﬂ
REIZHMBLRAR  MELRARBESE
AlZMBRRA -

AV EHE

D) DﬂK

b
]]

RFEATH2EERFEANEEFR
STRHEEEMBRM BRI ERAEM
X2 ER - RFEFEDREMRE
EEERBERREIRHIRNEESLAR
I%ﬁ%i%ﬁiﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ

BMGETMIEL - TBRKABEMS
ARAKENEAZTS - BERABEL
FEDERRMELEENREEXRARE
TEREURERLBENRTENE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can
access at the measurement date

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the

consolidated financial statements on a recurring

basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at

the end of each reporting period.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
which are described above, management has made various
estimates and judgements which are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated. The key source of estimation uncertainty
and accounting judgements that result in significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the next financial year
or significantly affect the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements are discussed below:

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(i) Going concern

As disclosed in note 2, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis. The appropriateness of the going concern
basis is assessed after taking into consideration all
relevant available information about future of the
Group, including cash flow forecasts of the Group.
Such forecasts inherently involve uncertainties.
Actual results could differ significantly and hence
render the adoption of the going concern basis
inappropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

FESHEE@

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(ii)

(ii)

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The management reviews the useful lives and
depreciation method of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets at the end of
each reporting period, through careful consideration
with regards to expected usage, wear-and-tear and
potential technical obsolescence to usage of the
assets.

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the
event previously causing the impairment no longer
exists, the management has to assess whether an
event has occurred that may affect the asset value
or such event affecting the asset value has not
been in existence. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amounts of the asset would be
determined by using higher of the value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal. Value in use is
determined using the discounted cash flow method.

Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss
allowance for trade receivables by using various
inputs and assumptions including risk of a default
and expected loss rate. The estimation involves high
degree of estimation and uncertainty which is based
on the Group's historical information, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of
trade receivables. Details of the key assumptions and
inputs used in estimating ECL are set out in note
32(a)(iii) to the consolidated financial statements.

EE
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

4.

174

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iv)

v)

Fair value of property, plant and equipment

The Group estimates the fair value of its certain
property, plant and equipment (for impairment
purpose) with reference to valuations performed by
an independent professional valuer. The valuation
of property, plant and equipment is performed
using the depreciation replacement cost (“DRC")
approach. The DRC approach includes estimation
of construction as if building the similar structures,
adjusting for physical deterioration, obsolescence
and optimisation or referring to current market price
of the similar assets.

Impairment of investments and receivables

The Company assesses annually if investment
in subsidiaries has suffered any impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 and follows the guidance
of HKFRS 9 in determining whether amounts due
from these entities are impaired. Details of the
approach are stated in the respective accounting
policies. The assessment requires an estimation of
future cash flows, including expected dividends,
from the assets and the selection of appropriate
discount rates. Future changes in financial
performance and position of these entities would
affect the estimation of impairment loss and cause

the adjustments of their carrying amounts.
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

FESHEE@

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Future changes in HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current
year, which the Group has not early adopted.
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current
i
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants
Amendments to HKAS 7 and

HKFRS 7

Supplier Finance
Arrangements [
Amendments to HKFRS 16  Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback 1
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability ?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of
and HKAS 28 Assets between an
Investor and its Associate

or Joint Venture P

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

Bl The effective date to be determined

The directors do not anticipate that the adoption of the
new/revised HKFRSs in the future periods will have any
material impact on the results of the Group.
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5.

176

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company are identified
collectively as the chief operating decision maker. An
operating segment is a component of the Group that
is engaged in business activities from which the Group
may earn revenue and incur expenses, and is identified
on the basis of the internal management reporting
information that is provided to and regularly reviewed by
the Company’s executive directors in order to allocate
resources and assess performance of the segment.

For management purposes, the Group is currently
organised into the following operating segments:

Operating segments

7 BB & #

BREARERZEARAATES - &
M’\ﬁBTJZlK’EIZ—*B + fE S AT BREUK
BNELERZBERY  YERART
HITEER I REREFAEDBREAM
BRELRENEMNZALEEZREH
i #E5E e

Al
i

RERME  AKEANSAUT
i

2

Principal activities

Petrochemical products storage business

AlLEmB FMER

REDE FEEK
— Trading business — Trading of electronic products, petrochemical
— BH5E® products, medical treatment products, soybean

products etc.
— Provision of supply chain management services
— EEETEm AtER BEER XTERF
— RHEEREERY

— Provision of storage services for petrochemical
products

— RHALCERE RS

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Company’s
executive directors monitor the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segments assets include all assets except for corporate
assets which are managed on a group basis. All liabilities
are allocated to reportable segment liabilities other than
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities which are
managed on a group basis and certain other payables and
accrued charges.

Revenues and expenses are allocated to the operating
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation of assets
attributable to those segments. The measure used for
reporting segment results is profit/loss before taxation
without allocation of share of results of associates and
other unallocated corporate expenses and income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5.

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

For the purposes of assessing the performance of the

operating segments and allocation of resources between
segments, the Group's results are further adjusted for
items not specifically attributed to individual segments

and other head office or corporate administration costs.

Inter-segment sales transactions are charged at prevailing

market prices.

Operating segments

Segment information is presented below:

For the year ended 31 December 2023

TEHE R (#®)
RAGECLIBEBRRESBZEHE
BREME  AEEEERTIEETERNE

Ao EZIEB R EMARERKDFITH
A — S EH T E -

DHEHERZHBRITHETA -

S& D

3|

DEERZHNWT :

BE-fg-=%+=-B=+—-HIEE:

Petrochemical

Trading products
business storage business Total
RIEER
BREK ERER ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Revenue (from external ¢ NCI=EIN:
customers) zF) 1,141,933 16,109 1,158,042
Results B4
Segment results DESEE (5,385) (11,905) (17,290)
Other unallocated corporate  Eth 5k %5 Big A &)
income WA 28
Gain on disposal of an HE— M
associate UNET s 108,909
Other unallocated corporate  Efth 7k % B A &)
expenses 3 (38,158)
Profit before taxation B %2 B A 53,489
Taxation WA (7)
Profit for the year F A F 53,482
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. oEIER @)
Operating segments (Continued) K& )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_ZE-_—_F+-A=+—HLEE:

Petrochemical

Trading products storage

business business Total
AL E &
B 5% B REE FEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTBT T3 7T T&T
Revenue (from external L&A CIEEIN=
customers) =P) 787,206 8,761 795,967
Results E
Segment results DESEE (18,392) (11,559) (29,951)

Other unallocated corporate  E b & 5 B 2 A

income A 1
Other unallocated corporate  Efib & 7 fit 2 A

expenses -2 (34,212)
Loss before taxation B % A1 B 18 (64,162)
Taxation I8 (79)
Loss for the year FRNERE (64,241)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Operating segments (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023

5. D EEE @
K& DB E)

R-ZF-=%+=ZA=1+—H:

Petrochemical

Trading products
business storage business Total
RILE M
ESEK R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TH& T FH& T FHExT
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DELE E 378,994 158,434 537,428
Unallocated corporate assets 7 B AR EE - - 33,267
Consolidated total assets A BEMRRE 570,695
LIABILITIES afE
Segment liabilities DEBE (430,958) (148,878) (579,836)
Unallocated corporate ROMAFIEBE
liabilities = = (437,842)
Consolidated total liabilities mAEBaBERE (1,017,678)
REBHNIEREBRABERAA

2023 1R 179



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. oEIER @)
Operating segments (Continued) K& )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-_Z_=+-A=+-—HLEE:

Petrochemical

Trading products
business storage business Total
RILER
BESEK ERER ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
OTHER INFORMATION Hftb &
Capital additions &R IE AN - 5,365 5,365
Depreciation of property, plant #1% + B 5 & &
and equipment BT E 210 8,682 8,892
Depreciation of right-of-use CREEENE
assets 204 960 1,164
Depreciation of right-of-use  FHAEEENE
assets (unallocated) (X5 H) = - 416
Finance costs B & K AR 50 3,094 3,144
Finance costs (unallocated) B & A AN
(RHE) = = 30,730
Impairment loss on property, % BEX&
plant and equipment, net HERMEERE
HER = 1,440 1,440
Provision for inventories FTEBH 284 - 284
Interest income FEYA (75) (7) (82)
Interest income (unallocated) | B & A
(K7 B = - 2)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Operating segments (Continued)

At 31 December 2022

5. D EEE @
K& DB E)

R-ZF--_f+=-A=t—-8:

Petrochemical

Trading products storage

business business Total
AL E
B 5% B REER FEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FH& T TBT
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DELE E 554,685 169,214 723,899
Unallocated corporate assets F 2 B AR & E - - 35,410
Consolidated total assets A BEMRRE 759,309
LIABILITIES =R
Segment liabilities DEBE (735,098) (117,269) (852,367)
Unallocated corporate ROMAFIEBE
liabilities - - (408,735)
Consolidated total liabilities mAEBaBERE (1,261,102)
REBMEREROERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. oEIER @)
Operating segments (Continued) K& )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_ZE-_—_F+-A=+—HLEE:

Petrochemical

Trading products storage

business business Total
AILE
EEES B = et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FA& T FAT
OTHER INFORMATION Hftb &
Capital additions NI - 6,019 6,019
Depreciation of property, plant #1% + B 5 & &
and equipment BT E 135 9,675 9,810
Depreciation of property, mE - BEIR
plant and equipment HBITE
(unallocated) (K5 - - 70
Depreciation of right-of-use  FRAEEEFNE
assets 115 1,008 1,123
Depreciation of right-of-use  {FHAEEETE
assets (unallocated) (XHE) - - 416
Finance costs & AR 6,999 3,318 10,317
Finance costs (unallocated) B & K AN
(K7 B - - 29,299
Impairment loss on goodwill 72 5 & &5 18 956 - 956
Reversal of impairment loss M BERR
on property, plant and HRE B E&
equipment, net EPE- - (7,334) (7.334)
Provision for inventories FE#E 4,799 - 4,799
Interest income F B A (210) (4) (214)
Interest income (unallocated)  F B & A
(RnEe) - - (8)
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information

Geographical segment

The Group operates and derives revenue in two principal
geographical areas: Hong Kong and the People's Republic

of China (the "PRC"). The following table sets out the
revenue derived from geographical areas which are based

on the geographical location of the customers:

5.

7 WE R &)

i & & K

1B 5 5

7% 22 8 5 PR 1] 35 5 000 1B A 45 2 75 36 JE B

w®oBBERPEARANBE(HEA] - TX
FEIREEPHEUES DRI

2023
—g==

HK$'000 HK$'000
F#& T FB T

Revenue from external customers: KEIILEPLUE :
Hong Kong &5 24,641 129,620
The PRC + 1,133,401 663,784
Others (Note) Bt (1 aE) - 2,563
1,158,042 795,967

Note: The locations of others include Dubai, Asia (other than Hong Kong
and the PRC) and others.

MisE: HfsiwEeEai - M (EFE RSP ERIN &
Hitih & -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. o#HER @
Geographical information (Continued) HE & ¥ @)
Geographical segment (Continued) WE DI (E)

FRBEEZHBUNENZEE(ED
X BMEERBREL WWE - BEER
BeENRB EREEE) CERUE
REEUE(FEEERBN) - ARERMIE
NEHFRDEEMEINAOT:

The geographical location of non-current assets is based
on the physical location of the assets, in the case of
property, plant and equipment, prepayments in relation
to property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, and
the location of the operation, in the case of goodwill. The
analysis of the Group's non-current assets by geographical
location is as follows:

2023 2022
—_E_= —_=E=-=
HK$'000
FAT

HK$'000
FER

Property, plant and equipment ME - BERFZE

The PRC F 114,028 122,678
Prepayments in relation to property, MME BERZREZE

plant and equipment NS5

The PRC a3 6,086 4,993
Goodwill R

The PRC s 340 340
Right-of-use assets CREEE

Hong Kong BE 327 743

The PRC a3 36,110 38,130

36,437 38,873

Total non-current assets ERBEEMTE 156,891 166,884

1 8 4 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

mEM KRR

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE
7 WE R &)
FEEFEH

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers contributing individually over
10% or more of the Group's revenue are as follows:

EBEEBAEE K ZBIO%IIA LTS
Wz

Customer A Z2EA
Customer B ZFB
Customer C EFC
Customer D %FD
Customer E =PFE

2023 2022
—E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
394,642 370,082
174,995 N/A 7~ iE A
144,996 N/A T~ iE A
159,327 N/A 77 i@ A
N/A A~ 3 A 107,021

All above customers are from trading segment. The
revenue from Customer E was less than 10% of the Group's
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023. The
revenue from Customer B, C and D were less than 10%
of the Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December
2022.

REVENUE

FRAERFEHREESDE - BRFE
EEZBRAILRASEEHEZE-_T-_=-F
T+ A=t BLEFERZEZI0% - BF
FB CERDEAZWALRAEBRHZE
—E-F+-A=t+—HIEFEkKEZ
10% o

iy &=

2023 2022
e

—cr ==

HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR

Revenue from contracts with customers % 8 Bt % 3R & Bl 55155

within HKFRS 15 HEEAEFAARES
Trading business BE5E% 1,141,933 787,206
Petrochemical products storage AftEmBRER
service 16,109 8,761
1,158,042 795,967
Timing of revenue recognition T R Uk 2 B R
At a point in time A — & B S 24 1,141,933 787,206
Over time R — BB 16,109 8,761
1,158,042 795,967

The revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS
15 is based on fixed price.

BB RS LB SHRBENES AL
Uy 24 A B 2 1 7 O
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

7.

186

OTHER INCOME 7. Hfpug A

2023 2022
—E_= —E-_—

HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET F&E T
Bank interest income RIT R B WA 84 222
Exchange gain, net P 5 U & 0% 58 381 190
Sundry income FIEMA 987 543
1,452 955

FINANCE COSTS 8. WEMK

Interest on borrowings wholly repayable ERAFALEHEE 2 &

2023

—_E2=-=

HK$'000
FERT

2022
—_F_—

HK$'000

TH T

within five years B 2R A 3,091 2,460
Effective interest on listed credit EHERAERERESD
enhanced guaranteed bonds BB F) B (K 5E24(c)
(note 24(c)) 30,716 29,274
Interest on amounts due to connected JEf & A A FIE 2 F &
companies = 2,848
Interest on loans from connected RKABEQRZEZRFE
companies 36 4,992
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGNE 31 42
33,874 39,616
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mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

BR % AT & A (B 1R)

RANBTIREBEZ2:

PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 9.

This is stated after charging:

Staff costs
Salaries, allowances and other short-
term employee benefits including

SEIMAE
o RMREMEHE
@M BREE5H

2023

—E-=

HK$'000
FTEx

2022
—E-—fF
HK$'000
THT

directors’ emoluments 12,019 14,479
Contributions to defined contribution %8 Z 5T &I 3
plans 2,556 3,152
14,575 17,631
Other items Hih1g e
Auditors’ remuneration ZEE 2
— Audit-related assurance services — B RAZERS 1,450 1,450
— Other services — EM AR 59 59
Cost of inventories FERAN 1,140,972 773,830
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BEIREITE
equipment 8,892 9,880
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CTREEERE 1,580 1,539
Loss on written off of property, plant ~ #MiSEM % - MERFZHE 2
and equipment & 8 3 -
Lease charge — short term lease HERX —EHHEE 326 379
REBHNIEREBRABERAA
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RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND 10. EERAERBEFA LT ZHMH
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(i) Directors’ emoluments (i) EEHH
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and AEERAFERNREMNERT
payable to the directors of the Company by the EEEFBAENT:

Group during the year are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2023 B _-_=F+-A=+—HIL#E
E

Salaries, Contributions
allowance to defined

Appointed Resigned during and benefits Discretionary  contribution
during the year the year Fee in kind bonus plans Total

& EER ERHEH
FRER FRRE e EWFE  BETA HEEX &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR

Executive director HiEs
Mr. Zhao Liang R - - = = = = =

Non-executive directors ~ FHTES

Mr. Ji Longtao ERELE - - 240 - - - 240
Mr. Yang Yue Xia BHELE - - 240 = = = 240
Mr. Zhang Shukai RELLE 11 January 2023
“R-Z%-At-H - = = = = =
Mr. Miao Zhibin BEREE 11 January 2023
- IZZZ=F-A1+-H 6 o - - 6
Independent non- BUFHNES
executive directors
Mr. Zhang Fangmao RHREE 11 January 2023
- ZE-zf-A+-H 3 - - = 3
Dr. Bian Zhaoxiang TREEL - - 120 = = - 120
Mr. Lau Hon Kee BEELE - - 180 = = - 180
Mr. Yu Xugang TEREE - - 120 = = = 120
909 - - - 909
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 &

10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

(i)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2022

Et=

=F+A=t—HILLFE

10. EERAERBEFA LT ZHMH

(&)

(i)

Esyma

HE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HILEFE

Appointed
during the year

Resigned during
the year

FREE

Fee

HK$'000
a7

Salaries,
allowance
and benefits

HK$000
TEL

Contributions
to defined
Discretionary  contribution

bonus plans

HK$'000

Total

&zt
HK$'000

B

Executive directors HTES
Mr. Zhao Liang BRAE 27 May 2022
ZZ-ZFRA-HtA - - - - - -
Mr. Yuan Qingfeng REBEE 25 February 2022 27 May 2022
ZE-CE-RCYRHE ZBCCZFRA-THH - - - - -
Mr. Tao Ying Beist 25 February 2022
- ZF-Z¥-A-+EA - - - - -
Non-executive directors ~ FHTES
Mr. Ji Longtao ERERE - - 240 - - - 240
Mr. Yang Yue Xia BHELE - - 240 - - - 240
Mr. Miao Zhibin BEREE - - 240 - - - 240
Independent non- BUFHAES
executive directors
Mr. Zhang Fangmao RARAE - - 120 - - - 120
Dr. Bian Zhaoxiang TkEEL - - 120 - - - 120
Mr. Lau Hon Kee EHEE - - 180 - - - 180
Mr. Yu Xugang FERRE - - 120 - - - 120
1,260 - - - 1,260
REBNENRROBRLA 189
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

190

(i)

(iii)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
no emoluments were paid or payable by the Group
to any of the directors as an inducement to join the
Group or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

The following directors have waived or agreed to
waive their emoluments during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022:

Mr. Zhao Liang i Bt
Mr. Zhang Shukai REIEKE
Mr. Yuan Qingfeng REHLESE
Mr. Tao Ying B &S A

10. EERAERBEFA LT ZHMH

(&)

(i)

EEFM @

HE_ZT-=FK-_FT-_F+=-A
Tt HLEEE AEETERT
MEEXINHIENSFHH - 1FAEKS
MAREBMEMALAEE R 2 HEE
SRIERBEREE -

WTEEEREXRERERETE
ETE_=FR T _F+ A=
+—BHIFEZ2HM:

2023 2022
—=E2-= -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
960 480

240 -

- 320

- 160

Loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors

There were no other loans, quasi-loans or other
dealings in favour of the directors that were
entered into or subsisted during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

After consideration, other than disclosed in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are of the opinion that no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company, or an entity connected with the directors,
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the years or at any time
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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(ii)

(iii)
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KEZE  BESVERENEI0
FEBEEN EFRE RFRK
HE_ZT-=FK-_FT-__F+=A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

(iv) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals included three
directors (2022: three directors) for the year ended
31 December 2023. The aggregate amounts of the
emoluments in respect of the two (2022: two) non-
director individuals are as follows:

10. EERAERBEFA LT ZHMH

(ivy AB&SHAL

HE-_ZT_=—F+_-_A=+—HL
FE AEAmaHGATRE=Z2E=F
(ZE-—F :Z8EF) - ME(ZE
ZZF MAB)FEBEALTZHFIE
R

2023 2022
—E=-= g

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FB T

Salaries and allowances e MER 929 963
Contributions to defined TERA KA B AR

contribution plans 46 58

975 1,021

The numbers of the non-director individuals whose
emoluments for the year were within the following
band:

FAFMNTFUTEEZIFEEA
TAE:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 1,000,000 JT

No remuneration was paid or payable by the Group
to any of the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join the Group or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office during
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

HE_Z-_=FK=_FT-__F+=H4
=t+—ALFE -AEELERMT
BEEBFALTIN S EMNTM - E
ARSI A E B k0 A KK EH ik
2 RENSIERBRBEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRHME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

11. TAXATION

M. HE

2023 2022
—E-= —E—_—
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Current tax: B EATR 1A
Under provision in prior BAEFERETRE
year 7 79
Total income tax expenses RESBRAZAEB
recognised in profit or loss ~ BIX # %8 7 79
(i) Hong Kong Profits Tax iy BANEH

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated in accordance
with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. Under
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the profits tax
rate for the first HK$2 million of estimated assessable
profits of the qualifying group entity is lowered to
8.25% while the estimated assessable profits above
HK$2 million continue to be subject to the rate of
16.5% for corporations. The profits of other group
entities in Hong Kong not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime continue to be taxed
at a flat rate of 16.5%.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made as the Group's entities either had no estimated
assessable profits or incurred tax losses for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. TAXATION (Continued)

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

(i) Income taxes outside Hong Kong

The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT"). PRC EIT is calculated
at the prevailing tax rate at 25% on taxable income

determined in accordance with the relevant laws and

regulations in the PRC.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI") and the Cayman Islands,
the Group is not subject to any taxation under those

jurisdictions.

Reconciliation of tax expenses

The tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the
profit (loss) before taxation per the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income as follows:

11. BIE @)

(i)

BERBEMIZRER

ARAZHEHBANAMMEE
AR %FBB) - PEG %
P 49 B T 48 18 o B 4 B 1 2 A
B 5 2 6 SR B M A $25% 2
RITBEHE -

BREABEZHEE(EBELH
B RAEBRBZRARRH K
SEHABMNERRDEER 2EMA
MR o

BiIE B X ¥ iR

FARBERAXBEA2EKRER ZHHR
Al A (B 1) Bk a0 T

2023 2022
—s—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAET
Profit (Loss) before taxation B B AT @ A (B 18) 53,489 (64,162)
Income tax at applicable tax rate of =i AT E16.5%
16.5% (2022: 16.5%) (ZZT = =% 1 16.5%)
HEZMER 8,826 (10,587)
Effects of different tax rates of R E At B AR [ A 2 Bt
subsidiaries operating in other BRAIZTRABERZE
jurisdictions 7,054 (3,358)
Non-deductible expenses DGR 6,069 6,742
Tax exempt revenue &= (27,285) (661)
Unrecognised temporary differences AERERHZE=% 238 (1,153)
Under provision in prior year BEFEBRETE 7 79
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised AERHIBEEEZ
BB EE 4,836 9,017
Others Hin 262 -
Tax expenses for the year FAMRIEBERX 7 79
KB ERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRHME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

12. DIVIDENDS 12.

The board does not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

13. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 13.

Basic earnings (loss) per share for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 are calculated by dividing the
profit (loss) attributable to the owners of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue.

=\

EFglfEamEB =S -_=F+=-A=
+—BLHFERNBRE (- —F 1 #E)-

BEREFNEE)

HE-ZT-_=FR-F-__F+=-A=+
—BIFEZERELRZN (BB EAR
AmEANEGERN (BB BRASETETE
B miEFHEEHE -

Profit (Loss) attributable to the owners A A B A A FE(5 % F
of the Company (HK$'000) (B#E)(FTET)

54,715 (61,967)

Weighted average number of ordinary B %77 % i i% 10 # 39 1

shares in issue

1,288,000,000 1,288,000,000

Basic earnings (loss) per share (HK cents) & & A2 (E18)
(B

4.25 (4.81)

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share are the same as
the Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary
shares during the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE
14. RIERRAIZRE

ARRMBANN-E-=E+=A=+
—BZHEMT

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December
2023 are as follows:

Effective

Place of incorporation/

operation and legal ownership

form if established in interests held
the PRC
#r (e )

Issued and paid-up
Name of subsidiary capital/registered capital Proportion of ownership interest by the Group Principal activities
EnERE BRTRBRRE/ FREAERR
ERER KR L FEgERER

Directly held Indirectly held

EEKE HEEs

MEARER

Dafeng Port Heshun International Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100% 100% Investment holding
REERERRREARAR N 1B REER
Dafeng Port Heshun Technology (China) Company Limited ~ The BVI Us$t 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Dafeng Port Heshun Technology (China) Company Limited RERLES EID RERR
Luck Sign Investment Development Limited The BVI US$1,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding
HEREZRRARAR RERANE 1,000% 7T REER
Worldly Development Limited ("Worldly") Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% 100% Trading and
ENLEERRAR(EAE]) BN 10,000/ 7T provision of
supply chain
management
services
AARRURERE
BR%
THENEENERESERAF (Jiangsu Yancheng Port Port  The PRC, wholly Registered capital and paid- - 100% 100% Trading and
Shipping International Trade Co., Limited*, “Port Shipping  foreign owned up capital US§64,500,000 investment
International") (Formerly known as B AZFIEERES  enterprise AMEAR SR RA 2HRKE
BRA7 (Yancheng Dafeng Heshun International Trading & 2 A ¥ 64,500,000% 7
Company Limited®))
THENEEREREIERAR(ERAR)FIRER X
CENRERESERAT)
BIBH A (L E R I)ERAE (Qianhai Mingtian Supply  The PRC, sino-foreign  Registered capital - 51% 51% Trading and
Chain (Shenzhen) Company Limited*, "Qianhai Mingtian”) equity joint venture 15$8,000,000 provision of
AERAEEERINERAR (AIEREK]) hE - BHNAELE  Paid-up capital supply chain
US$6,401,360 (note (i) management
# fft & 78,000,000% 7T services
R BA6,401,360 BALRHHEEE
ESM(iE0 2 R 7%
IHHEHEEEAARAR iangsu Yancheng Port The PRC, wholly Registered and paid-up - 100% 100% Provision of
Port Storage Petrochemical Co., Limited*, "Port Storage domestically owned capital RMB200,000,000 petrochemical
Petrochemical) enterprise d RS R RAARE products storage
THEREERRLBRAA(RRAL] FERRELE 200,000,000 services
REALERER
TR
REBHNEREBRGERAE

2023 1R

195



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRHME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

MEAREE

%8 HER{LER A (Zhuhai Yangang Petrochemical Co.,
Ltd*, "Zhuhai Yangang Petrochemical”) (Formerly known
as HGEEMIERILARAA (Zhuhai Heng Feng Heshun
Petrochemical Company Limited?)

HEERRMERAA(HREEBAL)AIEAKSE
BERERLERAH)

Evertime Management Limited
EZEEBRAA

Million Sky Business Limited
ERCEARAR

BEBEEERI)ABRE (Vi Si Te Industrial (Shenzhen)
Company Limited*, ("YST"))

EHREZ(RINERLAA(EES)

Place of incorporation/

operation and legal

form if established in  Issued and paid-up

14. AMBARIZEBE @)

Effective
ownership
interests held

the PRC capital/registered capital Proportion of ownership interest by the Group Principal activities

ERRY/EEHERE BRORARRE/
BRA(EFERY) HREX

The PRC, wholly Registered capital
domestically owned RMB10,000,000
enterprise Paid-up capital

PE2RELE RMBS500,000 (note (i)

&R AR 10,000,0007T
HUR BN RH500,0007
(Bt

Hong Kong HKS1

BB 1A

The BVI US$t

RERAHE %7

The PRC, wholly Registered capital
domestically owned RMB5,000,000
enterprise Paid-up capital

RMB1,200,000 fnote (i)
hE2RERE FEf & & A K #5,000,0007C

B R R A K #1,200,0007T
(1 2 i)
* The official name is in Chinese and the English name is translated
for identification purpose only.
Note

(i) The remaining registered capital of US$1,598,640 are committed

to be injected by the non-controlling interests.

(ir) The remaining registered capital of RMB9,500,000 are committed
to be injected by the Group on or before 31 January 2067.

(iii) The remaining registered capital of RMB3,800,000 are committed

to be injected by Qianhai Mingtian.

(iv) Dafeng Port Heshun Technology (Indonesia) Company Limited and
RN T732 G- BER A A] (Shenzhen Fanhai Holdings Company
Limited*) ("Shenzhen Fanhai”) were dissolved during the year.

All of the above subsidiaries are limited liability companies
and none of the above subsidiaries issue debt securities.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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FREAERE
Fidb Fr R R & FERER TEXH

Directly held Indirectly held
EEEE MEsE

k=3

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

- 100% 100%  Trading of
petrochemical

products

RERES

- 100% 100%  Inactive
EXH

100% - 100%  Investment holding
RARRK

- 51% 51% Trading

2%

FXEBBELTEW BXBHELEHEHRS
o

BR T A 7 B AN1,598,6405 T d FE 15 R #E 25 &
R

B8R T At AR A R #9,500,0005T H 7K 2 [ 7#
FR-ZENtEtF—HA=F—HHLZFTE -

BT i A& A A R #3,800,000T /1 51 & B X
EEEFE o

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology (Indonesia)
Company Limited & F 112 )G 12 iR & IR 2 7]
(IR Z 8 ]) 1 F R BEA -

tRmEHBAREREREERA R E
AMBRAAMERTERES



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Financial information of subsidiaries with non-
controlling interests (“NCI")

The following table shows the information relating to all
non-wholly owned subsidiaries, Qianhai Mingtian and
its subsidiary (together the “Qianhai Mingtian Group”)
that have material NCI during the year. The summarised
financial information of each of the NCI for the period
from the later of the beginning of the reporting period
and the date of acquisition to the earlier of the date of
disposal and the end of the reporting period represents
amounts before inter-company eliminations and excluding
the related goodwill.

At 31 December 2023

Proportion of NClI's ownership interests

14. AMBRAEIZEBE @)

BEEFERES((FEREST DY
MEARNMBER

TRINTFANRBEERFERER 2
BHRZ2EWMBRRAERARREKNE AR
(AR ARKE) 2BEBER - B
SHRGEEERP(ARKRERSE)EH
ERMEREHTEUREELE) HE
BEHERERZMBERBEINRAA
FMERzeE BT BEEEEE -

Qianhai Mingtian

Group
ABRRE
(Note a)

(Kt 5Ea)

R-ZZE-_=F+=A
=+-—H

JE1E R b S R S R 2
31 49%

HK$'000
TERT

Non-current assets EMBNE E 828
Current assets mB & E 127,082
Current liabilities mEARE (70,408)
Non-current liabilities EmEBEE (43)
Net assets BEFRE 57,459
Carrying amount of NCI FIEREREEA 18,600
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Financial information of subsidiaries with non-
controlling interests (“NCI") (Continued)

At 31 December 2022

R=-ZE-_—F+=AH

RBAR 2R E @)

EEFERES((FEREST DB
s AR WM K E R ®)

Shenzhen Qianhai Mingtian

Fanhai

Y2k

Group
AERAXRE
(Note a)

(Bff 5% a)

=+—H

Proportion of NClI's ownership R ERERRE
interests E 25 L 49% 49%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T&T
Non-current assets ERBEE 2 1,010
Current assets REEE 3,105 143,949
Current liabilities BB E (40) (84,143)
Non-current liabilities IERBAaFE = (102)
Net assets BEFHE 3,067 60,714
Carrying amount of NCI R ERETAE 1,503 20,194

Note a:

198

Qianhai Mingtian Group's total equity disclosed above included
the accumulated profits up to disposal of 49% equity in Qianhai
Mingtian of HK$6,470,000 (the “Pre-acquisition Profits”) in 2017.
However, the non-controlling interests are not entitled to the
Pre-acquisition Profits in accordance with the agreement entered

into between the shareholders.

In 2018, the Group and the non-controlling interests had injected
HK$24,006,000 and HK$2,354,000 respectively. In 2019, the NCI
had injected HK$8,169,000. The non-controlling interests are
not entitled to the excess contribution made by the Group of
approximately HK$13,033,000 in accordance with agreements

entered into between the shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14. RIERR 2R E @)

Qianhai Mingtian

Group
AIEAXER
HK$'000
FET
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-Z-=%+=A
=+—-HLEHFE
Revenue W %5 27,940
Cost of sales 85 & K AR (28,345)
Other income N N 1,252
Expenses i X (2,398)
Loss for the year FRNEIE (1,551)
Other comprehensive loss Ht2HEEE (1,704)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRE2MEEBEAE (3,255)
Loss attributable to NCI e RS EREE (760)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to NCI FIEREREEEZEEBRE
BEE (1,595)
Net cash flows from (used in): KB AR U TRIEZES
mEFEE
Operating activities g ER (7.799)
Investing activities RERE 14
Financing activities MEEE (165)
Dividends paid to NCI EREERER 2R E =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 14. RIERA 2 RE @)

Shenzhen Qianhai Mingtian

Fanhai Group
FIZ 8 AR RXEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TBT

Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-E-—_+=-A

=+—HLEE

Revenue W = - 247,422
Cost of sales i=R=3 N - (238,970)
Other income =N 8 348
Expenses % (1,056) (12,394)
Loss for the year FANEE (1,048) (3,594)
Other comprehensive loss Ht2HEEE (306) (5,134)
Total comprehensive loss for the year N2 M §5 18 4258 (1,354) (8,728)
Loss attributable to NCI JEPE AR R = FE(E B 1B (513) (1,761)

Total comprehensive loss attributable to FEIFREm EIEE EE B

NCI m e (663) (4,277)
Net cash flows from (used in): RKEAR)UTEEZRS
ME R
Operating activities KETEY (1,072) (3,942)
Investing activities KEES 7 2,514
Financing activities BEED - -
Dividends paid to NCI EftFEERER 2R E - -
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15. PROPERTY,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15.

MK BERSKE

Terminal
Furniture, and related
Storage Leasehold fixtures and Motor Computer auxiliary ~ Construction
Buildings facilities improvements ~ equipment vehicles  equipment facilities in progress Total
B %8 FEREEH
B ERRE BENEEE SEL RE ERRE B i ERIE Az
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000
TR FET TR TET TET TR FET FET FET
At cost RERE
At 1 January 2022 WZF--&-f-8 7,003 229459 2959 17967 390 4834 12,197 13 274922
Additions NE - 5615 - 150 - 32 - 222 6,019
Transfer 33 - 15 - 51 - - - (66) -
Exchange realignment EXEE (497) (17.914) (408) (839) (26) (34¢) (807) (12) (20,849)
At 31 December 2022 and RZZZZ%+28
1 January 2023 =t+-Ak
—T-=%-f-H 6,506 217175 2,551 17,329 364 4,520 11,390 257 260,092
Additions RE - 39 50 257 - 114 - 4,905 5,365
Transfer 25 786 2761 - 508 - 1,101 - (5156) -
Written off i - - - © - (34 - - #3)
Exchange realignment EXE% (176) (6,557) (272) (298) © (126) 219 (6) (7723)
At 31 December 2023 W-B-=f+=R8
=t-H 7116 213,418 2,329 17,787 355 5,575 nm = 257,691
Accumulated depreciation RARERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2022 RWZE--f-f-8 2,059 117,750 1,642 13,611 17 3,854 6,343 - 145,376
Charge for the year FRk 131 8,415 - 636 1 4% m - 9,880
(Reversal of impairment) (BERE)RE
Impairment - (7,194) (56) (293) - (311 520 - (7,334)
Exchange realignment ERAE (30) (9,220) (209) (541) (24) (314) (170) - (10,508)
At 31 December 2022 and WZZZZF+ZR
1 January 2023 =+-Bk
ZZ-=5-f-8 2,160 109,751 1377 13,413 94 3,653 6,966 - 137,414
Charge for the year FRAE 127 7375 17 750 1 48 204 - 8,892
(Reversal of impairment) (BERE) RE
Impairment - 1,661 724 (557) - (190) (198) - 1,440
Written off s - - - 8) - (32) - - (40)
Exchange realignment ExEE (13) (3,590) (7 (202) ®) (78) 81 - (4,043)
At 31 December 2023 W=B=-=f+=R8
=t-H 2,274 115,197 2,047 13,396 87 37N 6,891 = 143,663
Net book value REEH
At 31 December 2023 W=B-=f+=R8
=t-H 4,842 98,221 282 4,391 268 1,804 4,220 = 114,028
At 31 December 2022 RZZZZF+ZAR
=t+-A 4,346 107,424 1174 3916 210 867 4,424 257 122,678

Note:

As at 31 December 2023, the storage facilities with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB33,143,000(equivalent to HK$36,458,000) were pledged to

secure loan from a third party as stated in note 24(d) to the consolidated

financial statements.

i3]

RZZZ=F+=-A=+—HB BEEEAARE
33,143,0007¢ (#H & 1436,458,0008 L)W E R i E
BEER—ME=ZFERNER FBEREEUHK
& MY 5E24(d) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

15.

202

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The directors of the Company have reviewed the
carrying value of property, plant and equipment (storage
facilities and construction in progress) and right-of-use
assets (note 18 to the consolidated financial statements)
of Petrochemical Products Storage Business as at 31
December 2023, as their overall performance is worse than
expected and determined that the recoverable amount
from the use or sale of certain of these assets has declined
below their carrying amounts.

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating unit
("CGU"), including property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets of Petrochemical Products Storage
Business (collectively known as the “Assets”) as at 31
December 2023 were lower than their respective carrying
amounts. The recoverable amounts are determined by
the management, with assistance from an independent
professional valuer, based on fair value less costs of
disposal for the Assets, which are significantly higher than
that using value-in-use calculation.

The recoverable amounts of the property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of Petrochemical
Products Storage Business were HK$117,045,000 and
HK$51,247,000 respectively (2022: HK$130,361,000 and
HK$61,046,000 respectively). Accordingly, net impairment
losses of HK$1,440,000 (2022: net reversal of impairment
losses of HK$7,334,000) were provided for property, plant
and equipment and no impairment losses were provided
for right-of-use assets in relation to this CGU respectively.

The key assumptions used in estimating the fair value of
the Assets under depreciation replacement cost approach
include estimation of construction as if building the
similar structures, adjusting for physical deterioration,
obsolescence and optimisation or referring to current
market price of the similar assets. The valuation was
categorised as Level 3 fair value measurement.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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AR EEEBEHNEE-_ZS-_=F+=A
“+—HELERERERZDE BE

HHEERRERERIR)UARMEAE
BEWGEYBREMEID ZEAE R
HARMMOEERSEBHERBEERE
R EZEEE 2JRBFEERELR
H1E -

HE_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HZH<E
FEN((ReELEEN)RERILERE
BEB2YE BMERZEBEURGAEE
EHBZEEED) 2 TRESEHRE
BERESEMNERAE mEEELEBL
HEMZHBEB TREATFERZSEEZ
HERABEZ2AT MBS ERESRE
FREBEFEZTRESEE -

ErtERRREBSODE BERR
BEUARFERBBEEMNTKE D5
117,045,000 7T K% 51,247,0007 JT(=
T = = F: 5 B 5130,361,000% T &
61,046,000 7C) - At - R EL S
UAREME - BERZHEFTIRBAE
8% 581,440,000 L (ZE - —_F : B A
&5 48 # 2] 7% 587,334,0005%8 7T) © 1B K ${F
BEEAEIRREEIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

16. GOODWILL

16. BE

2022
T
HK$'000
FHET
Reconciliation of carrying amount FR ] 18 #5187

At beginning of reporting period RSB 340 1,296
Impairment loss A & B - (956)
At the end of the reporting period RB|EH R 340 340

At 31 December R+=A=+—8H
Cost (DN 15,184 16,140
Accumulated impairment loss ZitREEE (14,844) (15,800)
340 340

Goodwill arose because the consideration paid for the
acquisitions effectively included amount in relation to the
benefits originated from future market development and
the assembled workforce of the acquired business. These
benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill
because they do not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets. None of the goodwill
recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax
purposes.

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the
Group's CGU as follows:

ELBERHNARBINZREERE
EARRMBERREBEBEMELSD
NFAERMNBEZ SR - HRZFN=E T
MAABMAETLEE ZHRBZE  BA
BEFEORER FENRECHEAR
EARARMEAEN -

BECEEEIREAEERSELS
fzF

2023 2022
—E_-=F —E-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Petrochemical Products Trading AtERBESED
Business
Zhuhai Yangang Petrochemical KEEEAL 340 340
Shenzhen Fanhai (Dissolved during RYZ 8 (P 1A R AR
the year) - -
340 340

The goodwill in relation to Petrochemical Products Storage
Business of HK$14,844,000 has been fully impaired in

previous years.

BB ARLEME FEK 2 /214,844,000
BILTERBEFE2EURE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

16.

17.

204

GOODWILL (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the Petrochemical Products
Trading Business of Zhuhai Yangang Petrochemical as at
31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 have been
determined on the basis of value in use. These recoverable
amounts are based on certain key assumptions. The value-
in-use calculation uses cash flow projection based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a
5-year period by applying certain key assumptions below:

16. BE®m)

KEEERAENALERESEBR_-F
=S A=+ —HBRZIEZZF+=
A=t—BzrkmeRICREERE
EEE YEERETIEREK - £AE
ENREEEMtERFRUBRE LR
CRERARAUTETEERRFE:

Petrochemical Products Trading Business|

of Zhuhai Yangang Petrochemical
KEEBALZALERESEYK

2022
—m——

Pre-tax discount rate B B 38 & 1% 1%
Average growth rate TR 2% 2%
Perpetual growth rate KAERE 1% 1%

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

17. R—HEEBEITRzER

2023 2022
—E-= —T—_—
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET
As at 1 January and 31 December W—A—BE+ZA
=+—H - -

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—F-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Details of the associate at the end of the reporting period
is as follows:

Principal place
of business

and place of
incorporation
FRXEBHAR
af 1 B 3L 4t B

Name of associate

LA NCER

THEWAGRANLTE  The PRC
AR AT (Jiangsu ]
Yancheng Port Hairong
Petrochemical Terminal
Co. Ltd*, ("Jiangsu
Hairong”)

TEHENE SR ALIEE
BRAR(DIEE®])

* The official name is in Chinese and the English name is translated

for identification purpose only.

The above associate is accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

On 30 November 2023, the Port Shipping International
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with &
HmAREEANLEHEGERZEERER QA (Yancheng
Dafeng District Dafeng Harbor Development and
Construction Co., Ltd.*, “Dafeng Harbour Development
and Construction”), an independent third party, pursuant
to which Port Shipping International had conditionally
agreed to sell, and Dafeng Harbour Development and
Construction had conditionally agreed to purchase,
the 40% equity interest in Jiangsu Hairong, at total
consideration of RMB98,560,000 (equivalent to
HK$108,909,000). The disposal was completed on 26
December 2023 and the consideration settled in cash. As a
result, a gain on disposal of an associate of HK$108,909,000
was recognised during the year.

Issued and paid-up
capital/registered
capital
CBRTRAR
BRA&/ERER

—E-=EF

RMB250,000,000
A K#250,000,0007T

17. RA—EBEQIT2ER @)

NS EROBE AT HEDT

Proportion of effective

ownership interest

held by the Group Principal activities

AEMAEERAEE

Rl

2023 2022
S

—=

TEER

= 40% Provision of terminal
handling and
berthing services
RETBHEEER
N Y

* TXABAEIERE RAXBELEEHRS
= .

P ERB D RAEDIEAREEWH
BRBARK -

RZE-_=F+—A=+H BAMHEH
BYF-—HEEMTALEREREERSE
FZERERAR((REBARERD
VESEHE B AMEZEERGERE
HE MALEMBEEREKGERER
BI#SRMA0%KIE  BREAARE
98,560,0007T (8 & #108,909,000/% JT) °
ZHERRZIE-_=F+_-_A=-+< AR
B REURSEE - At - FAER

=B 4 N T 2 U2 25108,909,00058 7T o

REBNMENEBRBERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE
18. LEASES 18. &
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE

Prepaid
lease Office
payments premises Warehouse
(note a) (note b) (note b) Total
ANHEE WRE

e 2 aE

(ia)  (Mib)  (Hib) 3

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE  FART TR TAT

Reconciliation of carrying amount — HREIEHE — # 2=

year ended 31 December 2022 —E-—F+-A

=+—HIEFE
At beginning of the year RE ) 41,989 1178 - 43,167
Addition S - 387 - 387
Depreciation e (1,008) (531 - (1,539
Exchange differences [ERER (3,134) (8) - (3,142)
At the end of the reporting period 1 % & Hi & 37,847 1,026 - 38,873
Reconciliation of carrying amount — BREEHE — 8Z

year ended 31 December 2023 —E-=%+ZAH

=+—BHLEE
At beginning of the year REH) 37,847 1,026 - 38,873
Addition Bm - 99 331 430
Depreciation e (960) (510) (110) (1,580)
Reassessment of lease liabilities EHHEEAR = 2 - 2
Disposal e = (215) = (215)
Exchange differences &R E% (1,061) (7) () (1,069)
At the end of the reporting period R WEH K 35,826 391 220 36,437
At 31 December 2022 NZE=-—

+-F=+—-8
Cost B AR 41,873 2,936 - 44,809
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (4,026) (1,910) - (5,936)
Net carrying amount REFE 37,847 1,026 - 38,873
At 31 December 2023 R-ZEZ=F

+=ZA=t+-—H
Cost RN 40,812 1,343 330 42,485
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (4,986) (952) (110) (6,048)
Net carrying amount REFE 35,826 391 220 36,437
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 #HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

LEASES (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)
Note a: Prepaid lease payments

Upon acquisition of Port Storage Petrochemical by the Group in 2016, the
prepaid lease payments in relation to a piece of land in the PRC were
valued at RMB38.7 million. The prepaid lease payments are amortised over

the remaining leasehold period of 45 years since acquisition.
Note b: Office premises and warehouse

The Group leases various office premises and warehouse for its daily
operations. Lease terms range from 24 to 36 months. Lease payments

were usually increased annually to reflect current market rentals.

Restrictions or covenants

Most of the leases of office premises impose a restriction
that, unless the approval is obtained from the lessor,
the right-of-use asset can only be used by the Group
and the Group is prohibited from selling or pledging the
underlying assets. For the lease of properties, the Group
is required to keep those properties in a good state of
repair and return the properties in their original condition
at the end of the lease.

The Group has recognised the following amounts for the
year:

18. #HE&E#®)

EREEE@)
fisEa: EMNHEEMNRK

AEERZZE-RFURBERBOLCR SHETEZ
— g+ M TR &R 2 BB A A R #38,700,000
JT e A E N R MR AR A R SR B3 (BI45 )

b MAEWEREE

AEERHEAREENEZRBAENERRE
HEN FUE36EA - HENFTBESFEMUR
REHMTHHEE -

PR 2% 32 5%

ZEMAMEROBHBRE  RIFER
HEARILE  TAEREEEEEAN
SEER BAKETSHEREREH
BE MEHEMS  AKEAERY
ERFMEERE AR EEAREIZ

AEBRFARR NI

2023 2022
—g—=

HK$'000
FTER

HK$000
TAET

Lease payments: HERNK:

Short-term leases EEHEE 326 379
Expenses recognised in profit or loss ~ REZERZHAX 326 379
Total cash outflow for leases HERSRLBE 924 920

Commitments under leases

At 31 December 2023, the Group was committed to
HK$153,000 (2022: HK$184,000) for short-term leases.

HEAE

MNR-ZE-—_=F+-_A=+—H K&EEHR
%S OEATE & AHE153,00008 T (ZE = —
F 1 184,000/ 7T) °

REBNMENEBRBERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

19. PREPAYMENTS IN RELATION TO 19. BVE BERRXRBZEMNR
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15

2023 2022

— = — = — = =

—_—=< — — —_—<— —

HK$'000 HK$000
TERT TAET

Advances to suppliers for purchase of FEEWZE - BE &K

property, plant and equipment ) £ 8 7 B K 6,086 4,993
20. INVENTORIES 20. #&
2023 2022
—E-= -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Finished goods — TR — BEEmM
medical treatment products = 966
Finished goods — textile products TR — FIEE S = 11
= 977
The management expects that the future demand of EREEHAKREETEREMNTS
certain medical treatment products would be decreased kgL AEFRAECRIAFERE
and therefore a provision for inventories of HK$284,000 284,000/ 7T (ZZF = — 4 : 4,799,000/ 7T)
(2022: HK$4,799,000) has been recognised as expense RAX -

during the year.

208 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 #HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. ESRHMERRKE
2023 2022
—_E—-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T THT
Trade receivables BEZEWRE
Third parties F$=5 32(a)(iii) 197,796 419,580
Less: Loss allowance T B 1R B E 32(a)(iii) (3,514) (3,514)
194,282 416,066
Other receivables HibEWRIE
Deposits, prepayments and other &4 - R E & H
debtors i, & U BR 3K 3,935 41,525
Advanced payments to suppliers [A] { fE 75 2 3% 51,080 108,160
Value added tax refundable ] iR [O] 32 (A & 6,222 7,599
Interest receivable J& W H) B - 224
Due from a connected company [ i — & 8 i&
NGIE @ 21(a) 1 1"
61,248 157,519
255,530 573,585
21(a) Due from a connected company 21() EW— R E QAT FKIE

2023 2022
e =

— ==

HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TAET

THENEEZEOARR IEHERAEERE

A R](Jiangsu Yancheng BAERAR(T
Port Smart Port Co., Ltd*, HERBEEER
“Jiangsu Yancheng Port AD(RIE A EE
Smart Port”) (Formerly BAEOEREE

known as K €/8EEOH ~al)
IR FE{E A7) (Dafeng Port
Harbour Limited Liability

Company)*) (i) 1 1"
(i) The company is controlled by a substantial shareholder and (i) ZRAREERREGREELESR
the amount is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed term mEA - 2R RWEEEERE -

of repayment.

* The official name is in Chinese and the English name is * PXNEBAEIAE KXBELSE
translated for identification purpose only. EBH2E -

REBNMENEBRBERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

22.

210

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

22. RERBEEEY

2023 2022

=

HK$'000
TAET

HK$'000
FER

Cash and bank balances He MIRTTES 158,274 17,863
Less: Restricted bank balances (Note) ¥ - XPRHIER1T 4584 (1,250) (4,622)
(B a2)

Total cash and cash equivalents (as HRERBEEEYD

stated in consolidated statement of A (REAIR D

cash flows) mEXRHER) 157,024 13,241
Note: B &
As at 31 December 2022 R=ZT-——F+—-_A=+—8H

Restricted bank balances represents the bank balance being frozen due
to the legal case with an independent third party (the “Plaintiff A”). On
12 January 2021, the Plaintiff A lodged a petition in The Primary People’s
Court of Qianhai Cooperation Zone of Shenzhen City of Guangdong
Province (“QianHai Court”) for the dispute on the sales and purchase
contract entered into between Qianhai Mingtian and the Plaintiff A.
The Plaintiff A has claimed for the refund of the contract, amounting to
RMB9,500,000 and other, including the cost of delivery of the alleged
refunded inventory, amounting to RMB186,000, insurance cost of
RMB24,000, legal fee of RMB800,000, breach penalty of RMB1,900,000
and other associated costs. On 6 September 2021, the QianHai Court has
dismissed the claim from the Plaintiff A other than the breach penalty of
RMB186,000, which was determined by the QianHai Court.

During 2022, the Plaintiff A has lodged an appeal in Shenzhen
Intermediate People’s Court of Guangdong Province (the “Intermediate
Court”), claiming to withdraw the verdict issued by the QianHai Court
and to amend the judgement or remand for a retrial. The Plaintiff A also
applied to freeze the bank balances of Qianhai Mingtian, amounting to
RMB4,083,000 (equivalent to HK$4,622,000). On 29 November 2022, the
Intermediate Court has upheld the verdict issued by the QianHai Court.
On 4 January 2023, Qianhai Mingtian has applied for the discharge of the
freeze and it was discharged on 26 April 2023.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

22 BEeERBEEEY @)

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023

(i)

(if)

Case A

Restricted bank balances of RMB56,000 (equivalent to HK$61,600)
represents the bank balance being frozen due to legal case with
other independent third party (the “Plaintiff B").

On 9 February 2023, the Plaintiff B lodged a petition in the Futian
District People’s Court of Shenzhen Municipality (“Futian Court”)
for the dispute on the sales and purchase contract entered into
between Qianhai Mingtian and the Plaintiff B. The Plaintiff B
has claimed for the refund of the deposit of RMB821,000, and
others costs, including the breach of penalty of RMB213,000 and
associated costs. On 17 August 2023, Futian Court issued a verdict
that Qianhai Mingtian is liable for the refund of the deposit of
RMB821,000 and the penalty for breaching the sales and purchase
contract of RMB100,000, which was determined by the Futian
Court.

On 11 September 2023, the Qianhai Mingtian has lodged an
appeal in Intermediate People’s Court of Shenzhen Municipality,
Guangdong Province (the “Intermediate People’s Court of
Shenzhen”), claiming to withdraw the verdict issued by Futian
Court, and demand for a retrial in Futian Court. The Plaintiff B
also applied to freeze the bank balance of Qianhai Mingtian. On
18 December 2023, the Intermediate People’s Court of Shenzhen
has upheld the verdict issued by the Futian Court.

Case B

Restricted bank balances of RMB1,080,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,189,000) represent the bank balance being frozen due to
criminal litigation cases from an independent third party.

On 14 April 2021, YST received an advance payment of
RMBS5,050,000 (equivalent to HK$5,555,000) from a ultimate
customer (the “Customer”) for the purchase of solder wires. On 14
May 2021, YST lent part of the sum received from the Customer
amounted to RMB1,080,000 to Qianhai Mingtian (the "Advance”)
for operating use.

One of the creditors (the “Creditor”) of the Customer was involved
in a criminal litigation case which the Shenzhen Public Security
Bureau suspects that the Advance has been transferred from the
Creditor to Qianhai Mingtian ultimately and the Advance was
related to the capital chain of the Credtior. As such, the Shenzhen
Public Security Bureau applied to freeze the bank balance of
Qianhai Mingtian.

In the opinion of the directors, the Advance was only part of the
contract sum related to normal business transaction between the
Group and the Customer. After consulted the legal counsel, the
directors considered that the freezing of the balance was erroneous
and has applied for discharge of the freeze of bank balance. The
Shenzhen Public Security Bureau has rejected the application of
discharge of the freeze of the bank balance due to the criminal
litigation case related to the Creditor has yet finalised. The
directors, after consulted the legal counsel, considered that the
Group is not liable to the criminal litigation case of the Creditor

and hence no provision for liabilities has been made accordingly.

MR- ()

R=

T_—F+-_A=+—H

(i)

ZAIEA

=R IR 17 4 82 A R #56,0007T (48 B ©
61,6008 7T ) 2 22 K87 5 =75 ([ R&BI)
FORRRMMBRBHRITHEER -

RZTZ=F_ANRA EEBHAEHEXH
REBITUMEZSRAUDN R TEAREA
RZER ((BEERDIRBFA - REBEHRR
REW S ARS21,0007T K EAMAK A - B
E S FAREE213,000T RABBIRK A o =
TZ=FNA+tB  BERABRRELFIR AT
BRXEBEREBIZS ARMS21,000T & i#
& B E&AR SR ARE100,0007T (& B %
BREE) °

RZZE-=FAA+—RB FEAREMER
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HR

B
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i RERITE R -
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HaEREP(ZEPDUMEMKARE
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") 309 BB A R #1,080,0007T & F ATE A K
((ZBRDIEEERE -

ZEPHER—ZERATZEREAD R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. EZRHMENRIE
2023 2022
—E=-= T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH& T THT
Trade payables BESENFRE 23(a) 194,289 415,047
Other payables H ftb P& RRE
Accrued charges and FEAERANEMERNER
other creditors 18,556 63,246
Construction cost payables FE < 32 5% AN 23(b) 17,955 22,398
Contract liabilities A EE 23(d) 14,358 52,361
Salaries and bonus payable FEt &5 & RIEAT 1,472 935
Amount due to a director EN—%2EFH R\ 23(f) 920 660
Amounts due to connected  FE{ i iE N T R IEH —
companies-current portion BN ER R 4 23(c) 50,317 37,593
103,578 177,193
297,867 592,240
23(a) Trade payables 230 EZENRIE
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on BORNREREZEHZERS
invoice date, is as follows: MranT:

2023 2022
==

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT FET

90 days or below 90K IAT 175,297 407,905

More than 365 days 365K Ak 18,992 7,142

194,289 415,047
The Group was allowed a credit period of up to 90 AEBEEZESEEARINES
days by its trade creditors. The trade payables are VAW EEH - ZEHENRERAR
interest-free and are normally settled on terms of one BEEBER—ERNEAPHLEEHE -

to six months.

23(b) Construction cost payables 23(b) EEAS R B A
The amounts due are interest-free and repayable ZEEREAES B RAWEIFEHE
upon the receipt of the invoices issued by the HEMBEREIZA -
constructors.

212 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2023 #;

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

23(c) Amounts due to connected companies

mEMBRRME

E-E-=F+-A=+—HLFE

23. EGREMEMSRE R
23(c) ENBEQATRIE

—EBEC-=F

2023 2022
—E-—fF
HK$'000
TH T

HK$'000
FTER

Current portion B 2 38
Dafeng Port Development AREBEREEH
Group 23(c)(i) 42,537 37,593
New Fortune International MBERERBRAF
Development Limited 23(c)(ii) 780 -
Dafeng Port (HK) KEEEH) 23(c)(iii) 7,000 -
50,317 37,593
Non-current portion A
Dafeng Port Development EAEREEH
Group 23()(i) 2,273 7,200
52,590 45,493

(i)

(iii)

Dafeng Port Development Group has 40% equity interests
in Dafeng Port Overseas. The amount of RMB34,449,000
(equivalent to HK$37,913,000) is unsecured, repayable
on demand and interest-free. With reference to loan
agreements dated 16 March 2022 and 7 September 2022
which were stated in Note 24(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, the interest payables of RMB4,203,000
(equivalent to HK$4,624,000) and RMB2,067,000 (equivalent
to HK$2,273,000) are repayable on 31 October 2024 and on
8 September 2025 respectively. The interest payables are

unsecured and interest-free.

Dafeng Port Development Group has 100% equity interests
in New Fortune International Development Limited. The
amount is unsecured, repayable on demand and interest-

free.

Dafeng Port Development Group has 100% equity interests
in Dafeng Port (HK). The amount is unsecured, repayable
on demand and interest-free.

(if)

(iii)

AU BHEBEEBEERNLHEEIN%
BB AE - A R 534,469,000 (F & 7
37,913,000 70) A EE T - BREK
BERREE {LESZEAH AT
—FE=A+R"BRZE-_-_FhA+tH
BB R e (B R 4R B B R R T
FE24(b)) - FE A F B A R #4,203,000
7L (18 & 74,624,000 7T0) B A R ¥
2,067,0007T (18 & 742,273,000 JT) 78
SRR =ZZE_WF+A=F+—HR=F
—HFEALANBERE ZEEMFE
BEEFARRE -

AREERBEEEEANHERERE
PR A B #9100% AL HE - A B 3R R R
A RRBEKREERRS -

LEHBREEBRAEAREE(FBIN
100% A% - BRI AAEER - AR
EREERRE -

REBRENEROERDT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE
23. EZRHEHMENREM®
BdEHNEE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
23(d) Contract liabilities

FR - BEEYE RS ERFEI55
HEATPENZANAGBEE (T
BERE—FEERMAELES) N
customers within HKFRS 15 during the year are as N

The movements (excluding those arising from
increases and decreases both occurred within the
same year) of contract liabilities from contracts with

follows:

2023 2022
—Eg2-= —=E-=

HK$'000
TAET

HK$'000
FTER

At the beginning of the reporting R R & Hi 4

period 52,361 51,900
Refunded R (34,948) -
Recognised as revenue R AW (3,062) (12,541)
Receipt of advances of undelivered WEN AR R & §h 2 B 3%

goods 7 13,002
At end of the reporting period A& # R 14,358 52,361

RZZE-_=F+="A=+—H &P
customers are expected to be recognised as revenue ZEMNRARAER —FANERR
within one year. W gk o

23e) BT —REAIBE AT, BER

At 31 December 2023, the advance payments from

23(e) Amount due to a former associate/an

214

23(f)

associate

The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand (2022: repayable on 31
December 2023).

Amount due to a director

The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and has
no fixed repayment term.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 #HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24. RITRHEMBEE
2023 2022
—s=-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T THT
Interest-bearing 2
Bank loan RITER 24(a) 43,824 33,821
Loans from a connected RKE—EBERRIZE
company = 24(b) 171,066 184,818
Lease liabilities HEB®E 644 1,045
Listed credit enhanced EMEAEmERES
guaranteed bonds 24(c) 426,681 405,622
Loan from a third party KE—HME=ZAZER 24(d) 40,671 -
Total bank and other borrowings $R7T R E i f§ E 4% 682,886 625,306
Current portion BNERER
— Bank loans — RITER 24(a) 11,000 -
— Loan from a connected — KE—EEANT
company Z2E® 24(b) 21,239 -
— Lease liabilities — HEaE 584 606
— Listed credit enhanced — FEAEAE
guaranteed bonds 1R&EE 24(c) 426,681 -
— Loan from a third party — KE—ME=F2
= 24(d) 13,905 -
473,409 606
Non-current portion JERNERER
— Bank loans — RTEZ 24(a) 32,824 33,821
— Loan from a connected — RE—HEEEAT
company Z2E® 24(b) 149,827 184,818
— Lease liabilities — HEaE 60 439
— Listed credit enhanced — T EREAE
guaranteed bonds REH 24(c) = 405,622
— Loan from a third party — RKE—ME=ZFH2
=& 24(d) 26,766 -
209,477 624,700
Total bank and other borrowings R8T Hith{& E 4858 682,886 625,306
Analysed as follows: DT :
Secured and guaranteed B RA ER 40,671 15,165
Unsecured R 171,710 170,698
Unsecured but guaranteed IR A E R 470,505 439,443
682,886 625,306

REBNENERHAERAR 215
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24, BITREMEE @
(Continued)
At the end of reporting date, the analysis of bank and R EBHR  BRRITREMEERE
other borrowings due based on the scheduled repayment RBpEMBFTEERBRZOTAT

dates set out in the loan agreements is as follows:

2023 2022
=R==%f —T=-—

HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR

The above borrowings are repayable as A FEEAEZUTHERE

follows: ®:

— repayable on demand or within — RERFMERNEE
1 year 473,409 606

— repayable after 1 year but within — MFRE2FANEE
2 years 191,694 442,366

— repayable after 2 years but within — R2F R BSFRNEE
5 years 17,783 182,334
Total bank and other borrowings RITREMEEARE 682,886 625,306

24(a) Bank loans a) RITEM
2023 2022
—E—-= —Zz—_—
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T T
Current portion B EA &R 55
Loan A EHA 11,000 -
11,000 -
Non-current portion FEENERES

Loan B BB 32,824 33,821
32,824 33,821
43,824 33,821
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24. BRTREMEE®
(Continued)

24(a) Bank loans (Continued) 24(a) SRITE R (#&)

Bank Loan A

Pursuant to the loan agreement dated 24
December 2023 entered into between Port Storage
Petrochemical and Bank of China Limited, a term
loan of RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$11,000,000)
with interest bearing at 3.5% per annum and
repayable on 23 December 2024 was granted to Port
Storage Petrochemical. The loan is unsecured but
guaranteed by HE TR/ NEEREREFR LA,
an independent third party and further guaranteed
by the Dafeng Port Development Group to cover any
loss that make by B M A/ NEERMEAEER A
Al

Bank Loan B

Pursuant to the loan agreement dated 13 July 2020
entered into between Port Storage Petrochemical
and Jiangsu Yancheng Rural Commercial Bank
Co Ltd, a 5-year term loan facility of up to
RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to HK$33,000,000) was
made available to Port Storage Petrochemical.

As at 31 December 2023, the loan balance of
RMB29,840,000 (equivalent to HK$32,824,000) (2022:
RMB29,880,000 (equivalent to HK$33,821,000))
carries interest rate of 6.99% per annum. In addition,
the loan is unsecured but guaranteed jointly by
Dafeng Port Development Group and Port Shipping
International up to the extent of RMB30,000,000
(equivalent to HK$33,000,000).

RITERA

BEARALCHEFPERITRNHDER
NARZE-_=F+=-A=-+WMAA]
YHERHE BHALTERAR
#10,000,0007t (#8 & #411,000,000
BT TEHRER - BHFFEI 5%
B WAEARZZE-_NF+A=+=
HEE ZEXRSEEKR EHH—
MBLE=FERTHRIEE/RE
BIEBRARIER  WHKXKEEH
BEEE—DER AREERD
RN ERE R X AR QR EKD
FETE L -

RITEMB

RIE S/ AL BT &R Bk 2 A g 2
RITRMDBERARAMFI B A=
T-TFE+A+=ZB2EXHE
BREROTERE—FEEZAEARE
30,000,0007T (48 & #33,000,000%
TIZHAFHERBE -

R—ZE-_=F+-A=+—H8 &
A A R 829,840,000t (FBE R
32,824,000 T ZZEZZF: AR
#29,880,0007T (18 % 733,821,000
I B FFEEI9% TS o Lo -
ZEERAEERE  BHAKRKEEHA
BEBEREMBEZERRER  ER
+BR A A R#30,000,0007T (8 % R
33,000,000 7T) °

BEMEMBEROBRAA 517
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

218

(Continued)

24(b) Loans from a connected company

24. RTRHEMEE®)

40b) RE—BHEAT ZERK

2022
T
HK$'000
THETT
Current portion EIHA E 9
Loan A from Dafeng Port REREAEFREEENE
Development Group A 20,544 -
Loan C from Dafeng Port REXEEREEENE
Development Group #C 695 -
21,239 -
Non-current portion FEENER B
Loan A from Dafeng Port REREEREEE
Development Group HE KA = 21,139
Loan B from Dafeng Port RERLEEREEE
Development Group HE B 144,327 148,514
Loan C from Dafeng Port REREBEFREEE
Development Group g EMRC = 15,165
Loan D from Dafeng Port RERGEREEE
Development Group #E D 5,500 -
149,827 184,818
171,066 184,818
Loan A ERA

Pursuant to the loan agreement dated 16 March
2022 signed between Port Shipping International
and Dafeng Port Development Group, the loan of
RMB18,676,000 (equivalent to HK$20,544,000) is
unsecured, interest-bearing at 8.04% per annum
(2022: 8.04% per annum) and is repayable on 31
October 2024. Dafeng Port Development Group
agreed to waive the related interest from 1 January
2023 onwards.

Loan B

Pursuant to the loan agreement dated 7 September
2022 signed between Port Shipping International
and Dafeng Port Development Group, the loan of
RMB131,207,000 (equivalent to HK$144,327,000) is
unsecured, interest-bearing at 7% per annum and
is repayable on 8 September 2025. Dafeng Port
Development Group agreed to waive the related
interest from 1 January 2023 onwards.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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—E - _HFZA+TABEITNER
i B3k A R #18,676,0007T (17
H $220,544,00078 T) A EE A - 1%
FHMEL04% (T - —F: FH X
8.04%) ;T E R AR T -_NF+A
=+ HEZ KREE5HZEEMR
EE-E-_-F—AF—HRBMEM
RSN

BB

BEEMEEEXEEAZEER
TEC _HFNALBHEITNER®
&% B A R#131,207,0007T (A%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24. SRITREMEE @)

(Continued)

24b) RE—EBEEATNZER

24(b) Loans from a connected company

(Continued)
Loan C

Pursuant to the loan agreement dated 18 January
2022 signed between Port Storage Petrochemical
and Dafeng Port Development Group, a 2-year term
loan facility of up to RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$28,298,000) is made available to Port Storage
Petrochemical. The loan carries an interest rate at 7%
per annum and is secured by prepaid lease payments
as disclosed note 18 to the consolidated financial
statement and is repayable on 17 January 2024.
Port Storage Petrochemical has further obtained
an additional loan of RMB15,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$16,575,000), which is unsecured, interest-
bearing at 7% per annum and is repayable on 12
January 2026. Dafeng Port Development Group
agreed to waive the related interest from 1 January
2023 onwards. Port Storage Petrochemical has
settled RMB18,508,000 (equivalent to HK$20,451,000)
during the year and the remaining balance of
RMB10,632,000 (equivalent to HK$11,748,000) was
fully assigned from Port Storage Petrochemical
to Port Shipping International. After the
assignment, Port Shipping International then settled
RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$11,050,000) during
the year.

Loan D

Pursuant to the loan agreement dated 20 February
2023 signed between Port Shipping International
and Dafeng Port Development Group, the loan
of RMB5,000,000 (equivalent to HK$5,500,000)
is unsecured, interest-bearing at 7% per annum
and is repayable on 2 February 2027. Dafeng Port
Development Group agreed to waive the related
interest from 1 January 2023 onwards.

& ™C

BESHFACERZEAZERR
—E-_F—-—A+NHEFTHER
W& BHEALITESERAAR
#25,000,0007T (18 & 728,298,000
BILHMTEHRERBE - WEA
B RERMTISAIEE  ZERIR
FMERI%FABE  TUTENEAER
BHEER YERZ_ZZWNF—A
++tHEZ - BRALE—TE
15 58 9NE 3 A R #15,000,0007T (48
E 116,575,000 70) * 2 E R B &
W RENRI%FER AR -
T RNFEF—A+-RAEE KL%
HEEBRREE -2 -_=F—H—
HRKRZHRENE - BHALE
R ERNEE A R ¥18,508,0007T (17
E 5220,451,0008 0) ' #rEE AR
10,632,0007T (18 & 711,748,000
TEMBRALCEBHEZTEM
B -@EE% BMEBEENTE
M & & A R #10,000,0007T (B E 7
11,050,000 7T) °

&®;D

BESMEZEXLEALEER
TEC=FE-A-THEITNERW
# - BEEAR®S5,000,0007T (HEER
5,500,000/ 7T) & I - HLFF=H
T% B R ER-_E-_+F-_A=-H
BEEg RLEHBEEREA-Z
T ZFE—F—BERERBAE -

EEMENBEROERDT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

220

(Continued)

24(c) Listed credit enhanced guaranteed bonds

On 17 March 2021, the Company, as issuer, Dafeng
Port Development Group, as guarantor, and Tensant
Securities Limited, Haitong International Securities
Company Limited, BOSC International Company
Limited, Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co,,
Ltd., Hong Kong Branch, CEB International Capital
Corporation Limited, China Everbright Securities
(HK) Limited, Huarong International Securities
Limited and China Industrial Securities International
Brokerage Limited (together, the “Placing Agents”),
entered into a placing agreement pursuant to which
the Company agreed to appoint the Placing Agents
as placing agents for the purpose of procuring,
and to use its best efforts, the subscription of the
bonds of up to an aggregate principal amount of
US$55,000,000 (the “Placing”).

The Placing was completed on 24 March 2021. The
bonds in the principal amount of US$55,000,000 has
been placed to bondholders at a coupon rate of
2.4% per annum, and terms of 3 years. The interest
is payable on every 23th of September and March.
The net proceeds from issuance of the bonds after
the issuance costs were US$47,595,600, equivalent to
HK$370,056,000. The effective interest rate is 7.4%
per annum.

Based on the deed of guarantee dated 22 March
2021, the bonds are guaranteed by Dafeng Port
Development Group. Payments of principal, premium
(if any) and interest in respect to the bonds and
the fees and expenses and other amounts payable
in connection with the bonds and the trust deed,
which dated on 23 March 2021 among the Company,
Dafeng Port Development Group and The Bank of
New York Mellon, London Branch as trustee for the
holders of the bonds, will have the benefit of an
irrevocable standby letter of credit (the “SBLC")
denominated in US dollars up to US$56,660,000
issued by Bank of Jiangsu Co., Ltd. Yancheng Branch.

For further details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 24 March 2021.
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8(c) ETHIERAERERES

A—E-—F=ZA++E8 KRR (E
BETAN) KEERBEEEGEA
ERANEXBESFEAERAA B
BEEESERAR - LEREE
[RAR - EBHREERRBITRGAE
BAREBEEDIT  HIEEBELRAR
RAR - FEXAKEHFEBER
NE > EREBESFARAT KHE
BRBEEHFERAT(LHEEER
B I ERERE - Bt AR
AREZARERERLERE -
BURBABHEERBEAS BT
5% %55,000,000€ T2 EH ((BES
H]) -

EFEERN ST -_—F=A=-+m@©
AKX - A< %8 A55,000,000% T2
BEHFERETESFREA ZEEHE
KETF24% BE=F - ARE
hWARZAz-_+=B8XRF 8-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 #HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24. RTRHEMEE @)
(Continued)

24(d) Loan from a third party d)RE—BE=ZFZER

Pursuant to the loan agreement dated 23 September
2023 signed between Port Storage Petrochemical
and an independent third party, a loan facility of
up to RMB40,000,000 (equivalent to HK$44,000,000)
was made available to the Group and is secured by
storage facilities with aggregate carrying amount of
RMB33,143,000 (equivalent to HK$36,458,000). The
loan bears the interest rate of 6.9% per annum. The
loan is repayable by equal installment and the last
installment will be due on 19 June 2026. In addition,
the loans are guaranteed by Jiangsu Yancheng
Port Holdings Group Co., Ltd, a connected party
which has 100% equity interests in Dafeng Port
Development Group.

25. DEFERRED TAXATION

The movements for the year in the Group’s net deferred
tax liabilities are as follows:

BEARAOCRE—MBILE=H
RZE-_=ZFAA-1+=ZBFEN
EXp# AEEAERRZAR
#40,000,0007T (48 & 744,000,000
BEILMNERBE THAKRA
B A A R #33143,0007T (18 & »
36,458,000/ 7T) W B X B & IR ©
BERIRFENROO%ETE - ZERAE
EHOHEERE B BBER=F
ZRFRNATNBEHEE ot -
ZEEFBHIHEREERERS
RABIER ZARABERES
3 S B100% R E R R 75 o

25. EEERE

ERUNNE

2023
—E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
At beginning of the reporting period RIBEHW (1,477) (1,597)
Exchange difference M 5 =58 41 120
At end of the reporting period R|EHR (1,436) (1,477)

REBHNIEREBRABERAA 221
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

25. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 25. IEEBE#)
Recognised net deferred tax liabilities at the end of the REERRZERRELERBEBEFE
reporting period represent the following: BTN RIE:
Assets Liabilities
gE afE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—=E-= —ZT—_— —=E-= T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHET FERT FHET
Fair value adjustments NEFERE = - (7,098) (6,208)
Tax loss MIBEE 5,662 4,731 = -
Deferred tax assets RIETIAE BE
(liabilities) (BRE) 5,662 4,731 (7,098) (6,208)
Offsetting 1K (5,662) (4,731) 5,662 4,731
Net deferred tax liabilities EZEHEAEFE - - (1,436) (1,477)
Unrecognised deferred tax assets AEAELEBBREE

2023 2022
—E2=-= —E- -

HK$'000 HK$000
TER TAT

Before multiplied by the applicable LA % T8 Ik MA@ A B & 71 -

tax rate:
Temporary differences TRERE 88,245 86,803
Tax losses HIBEE 168,390 197,809

256,635 284,612
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 #HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

25. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

Unrecognised deferred tax assets (Continued)

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
these items due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The expiry dates of unrecognised tax losses are

as follows:

25. iIE#E i E (@)

RERIELEBEE E &)

P O TR AN R s A ROR - B3 L
ZEHAABERBEE - RERW
HERZEHAWT:

2023 2022
—EBC-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT T T

Tax losses without expiry date EEEEFIEEE 42,823 42,421
Tax losses expiring on RZZE-_NF+ZA=+—H

31 December 2028 B H A &R 19,078 -
Tax losses expiring on RZE-_+F+-_A=+—H

31 December 2027 B HA M I 5 1R 33,448 36,002
Tax losses expiring on RZBEZRE+ZA=+—AH

31 December 2026 ZIEAF B B 48 22,009 22,648
Tax losses expiring on R-ZZE_RF+-A=+—8H

31 December 2025 MHIERERE 4,868 5,009
Tax losses expiring on RZZE-_NNFE+-_A=+—H

31 December 2024 BT 1B B B 46,164 47,788
Tax losses expiring on R-TE-_=F+-/F=+—H

31 December 2023 RIHAFE S B - 43,941

168,390 197,809

Pursuant to the PRC EIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends distributed to foreign investors by
the foreign investment enterprises established in the
PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings accumulated after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between the PRC and jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, no
deferred tax has been recognised for withholding taxes
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of the
Groups' subsidiaries established in the PRC of HK$502,000
(2022: HK$581,000). In the opinion of the directors, these
accumulated profits, at the present time, are required
for financing the operations of these entities and no
distribution would be made in the foreseeable future.

BEFRPERGSRE RPBEIKZZ
INERBECERMIEEEEDRZKRE
BRI0% M EHKENT - ZREBZ
ENF—A—HBHEERTBEBAR-_ZTZT+
F+ZRA=1+—HEBZEHBF - WHEH
BINEHREEMAERZERERIRG
Wi AIAIRAREZBI/RE - R=F
Z=ERZFFF+ZA=F+—8 " ' #
ERAEEEFBEKLZHMBRARZ K
& &) 2 FE T FE 502,000 T (=&
Z 4 : 581,000 T) ERIELERIA o E
ERE ZSREMNBEEEBERN
REEELENTEES  MRARBRT
GEHDIR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. A
2023 2022
—E_= —EF--
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
4 & B HE B 1n 2 B EE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of FREE0.01
HK$0.01 each Bz E®k  10,000,000,000 100,000  10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid BERTRAZRNK
(HK$0.01 each): (B R EEO0.01
BT -
At beginning of year and RENRER
at end of the year 1,288,000,000 12,880 1,288,000,000 12,880
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27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 3 August 2013. The purpose of the Scheme
is to recognise and acknowledge the contributions that
participants have made or may make to the Group,
to provide participants with an opportunity to have a
personal stake in the Company with the view to achieve
motivating the participants to optimise their performance
and efficiency for the benefit of the Group, to attract and
retain or otherwise maintain ongoing business relationship
with participants, whose contributions are or will be
beneficial to the long term growth of the Group.

Participants include (i) any director and employee,
consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser
of or contractor to the Group or a company in which the
Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company
("Affiliate”); or (i) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary
of which or any discretionary trust the discretionary objects
of which include any director, employee, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser
of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate; or (iii) a
company beneficially owned by any director, employee,
agent,
partner, adviser of or contractor to the Group or an
Affiliate.

consultant, professional, customer, supplier,

The directors may, at their discretion, invite any
participant to take up options. Options may be granted
to participants under the Scheme during the period of 10
years commencing on the effective date of the Scheme.
An option is deemed to have been granted and accepted
by the grantee upon the duplicate letter comprising
acceptance of the option duly signed by the grantee and

paying HK$1 by way of consideration for the grant thereof.

The subscription price of the share options will be
determined by the board and shall not be less than the
higher of (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date
of grant of the relevant option, which must be a business
day (b) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the relevant option and (c) the nominal value of a share
on the date of grant.

27.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

27.

28.

226

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to
time. The total number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 80,000,000
shares of the Company, being 10% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval
of the Scheme unless shareholders’ approval has been
obtained. An option may be exercised during a period to
be determined by the directors in their absolute discretion
and in any event such period shall not be later than 10
years after the date of grant of the option.

The maximum entitlement for any participant is that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant under
the Scheme in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1 percent of the total number of shares in issue of the
Company. Any further grant of options in excess of the
1 percent limit shall be subject to certain requirements
provided under the GEM Listing Rules.

No option has been granted under the Scheme since its
adoption.

RESERVES
28(a) Share premium

Share premium represents the excess of the net
proceeds from issuance of the Company’s shares
over its nominal value. Under the law of the Cayman
Islands and the Company’s Articles of Association,
it is distributable to the Company’s shareholders
provided that the Company is able to pay its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business
after the distribution.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

28. f#1E @)

28. RESERVES (continued)

28(b) Capital reserve

28(c)

The capital reserve arises from the business

combination under common control in relation
to the reorganisation (the "Reorganisation”) for
rationalising the corporate structure in preparation
for the initial listing of the Company’s shares on
GEM of the Stock Exchange. The Reorganisation
was completed on 3 August 2013. The amount
represents the difference between aggregate net
asset value of the subsidiaries and the investment

costs in the subsidiaries.

The negative capital reserve represents the excess
of “total investment costs in the subsidiaries” over
“the aggregate net assets value of the subsidiaries”.

Under merger accounting the net assets of the
combining entities are combined using the existing
book values from the controlling party’s perspective.
No amount is recognised as consideration for
goodwill or gain on bargain purchase at the time
of common control combination, to the extent of
the continuation of the controlling party’s interest.
Accordingly, the above mentioned difference has
been recorded in the capital reserve under merger
accounting.

Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve of the Group comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from translation of the
financial statements of the Group's subsidiaries in the
PRC. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 4 above.

28(d) Statutory reserve

The statutory reserves are reserves required by the
Accounting Regulations for Business Enterprises
applicable to the Company’s PRC subsidiaries. The
reserves can be used to reduce previous years’ losses
and to increase the capital of the subsidiaries.

28(b)

28(c)

28(d)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

28. RESERVES (continued)

228

28(e) Other reserve

28(f)

The other reserve has been set up to deal with the
changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control. The difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised in other reserve.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company arose
from the Reorganisation. The balance represents
the difference between the nominal amount of
the Company'’s shares issued and the consolidated
shareholders’ fund of the subsidiaries acquired
during the Reorganisation.

28(g) Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve comprises the
fair value of share-based payment transactions dealt
with employees of the Group and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 #HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

29. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 29. HttIREREER
29(a) Cash used in operations V060 REXEKMEBARE
2023 2022
—E2=-= — T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Profit (Loss) before taxation B B AT E A (E518) 53,489 (64,162)
Depreciation of property, plant ME BEIREHTE
and equipment 8,892 9,880
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {F FEEEITE 1,580 1,539
Loss on written off of property,  MiEME - MERRZRHE 2
plant and equipment & 8 3 -
Gain on disposal of an associate & — 5 & Q8 W &= (108,909) -
Foreign exchange differences HNEE ZFR 1,274 (4,033)
Impairment loss (Reversal of BEBEMWME BB
impairment loss on property, R REREERED)
plant and equipment 1,440 (7,334)
Impairment loss on goodwill AEREEE - 956
Interest income MEWKA (84) (222)
Interest expenses B X 33,874 39,616
Provision for inventories FEEE 284 4,799
Gain on derecognition of right-of- #&XIFHERFE AEEE K
use assets and lease liabilities, HEBGBZWR TR
net (24) -
Cash flows before changes in EEESPHHNBEERE
working capital: (8,181) (18,961)
Inventories FE 716 3,459
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H & W R IE 304,351 (385,964)
Trade and other payables B 5 & A RIA (297,232) 396,638
Cash used in operations REXBMARS (346) (4,828)

REBNMENEBRBERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

29. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 29. HtREREE R @)

(Continued)

29(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing Vb MEZTBHELEEBZEH
activities
The table below details changes in the Group's TRAJNAEEREREEZDZBE
liabilities arising from financing activities, including 228 BREETNFRSE -
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising KEMETH BB CHERED
from financing activities are those for which cash BRARKAEGRETNAEEGS
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in ReRERDEARME TS (AT
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as BBReRE -

cash flows from (used in) financing activities.

2023 —2-=

Cash flow from

Amounts due Bank and (used in)
to connected other financing
companies borrowings activities
METH
FE {3 BA BTR (A
NG $] Hitfs & BemE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THER THER
(Note 23(c)) (Note 24)
(P #F23(c)) (B & 24)
At beginning of the year REA 45,493 625,306 =
New loans from a connected party KR8 —R @& 7T E X = 22,100 22,100
New bank loan raised HEERTER - 11,050 11,050
New loan from a third party RE-RE=ZAZHER = 44,200 44,200
New lease nHE - 430 -
Advanced from connected parties ~ FEUWEIE H B 9,166 - 9,166
Gain on reassessment of lease ERAEEE KR
liabilities - 2 -
Gain on derecognition of lease RIBRAERE M E
liabilities = (239) =
Repayments - principal BH—AK% (819) (35,438) (36,257)
Foreign exchange translation SR E (1,286) (4,151) =
Interest incurred in loan from HERERELEZHE
connected party 36 = =
Interest incurred in lease liabilities ~ AEBEEEZFS - 31 -
Interest incurred in listed credit THERERERESESE
enhanced guaranteed bonds ZFB - 30,716 -
Interest paid BRI E = (11,117) -
At end of the year RER 52,590 682,886 50,259

) 30 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 #HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

29. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 29. EtwB e REER (@)
(Continued)

V) MEFBFELERBEZED

29(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities (Continued)

2022

(&)

=

Bank and
other

Amounts due Cash flow from

to connected

(used in) financing

activities
BMEEH
(FTA)/Fifs
ReEmE
HK$'000
THET

companies borrowings

FE 1 B2
YNGIE/QE|
HK$'000
FTAT
(Note 23(c))
(P 3£ 23(c))

wITK
Hifg &
HK$'000
AL
(Note 24)
(Ff 5£24)

At beginning of the year RET] 201,528 447577 -
New loans from a connected party RE—HBEEFMIER - 183,145 183,145
New lease yHE - 387 -
Repayments - principal BH—%% (131,984) (15,802) (147,786)
Foreign exchange translation SNEER (11,504) (8.971) -
Interest incurred in loan from BEFTEREEZFE

connected party 4992 - -
Interest incurred in amounts due to  ENBEARFEMELZ

connected companies 8 2,848 - -
Interest incurred in lease liabilites HEBEELZFA - 42 -
Interest incurred in listed credit TGRS RERESES

enhanced guaranteed bonds ZHE - 29,274 -
Interest paid BF A (20,387) (10,346) -
At end of the year RER 45,493 625,306 35,359

REBHNIEREBRABERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30. AR B

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed BRGAVERREMBENMBEERS
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the BRI RAFE  AEEBETUATE
Group has the following related party transactions during A5

the year:

2023 2022
—E_=HF
HK$'000
T&E T

HK$'000
TET

Note Related party relationship
Mtex  REEE S RAR

232

Interest expenses paid/payable
to:

BN EMAFBRX:

Dafeng Port Development Controlled by a substantial 36 4,992
Group shareholder
LEREEHR H—BEEZREE
IHERGRERRADF Controlled by a director of the - 2,848
(Jiangsu Huahai Investments Company
Limited*) H—RBARREEES
IHEBREFRAF
Sales
H &
E AL EKmBERAR Controlled by a substantial (6,176) -
(Yancheng City Dafeng Port shareholder
Refined Oil Co., Limited?*) B— R E ERRES
BT AEEKmAARARR
Rental fee
HEER
Dafeng Port Development Controlled by a substantial 268 -
Group shareholder
LEREEE H—2EZRRZE
Remuneration paid: (a)
EANEdE
Salaries and other benefits Key management personnel other 520 554
e Kk E M1 A than directors
TE2ERAB(EREKRIN
Contributions to defined 26 34
contribution plans
E R KGR
Notes: Bt 3% -
(a) The remuneration of directors is set out in note 10 to the (a) EEHTMENEET B REM 10 ©

consolidated financial statements.

The official name is in Chinese and the English name is translated for

identification purpose only.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 #HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

31. E&iE

31. COMMITMENTS

32.

Capital expenditure commitments

Contracted but not provided net of
deposit paid for construction of
property, plant and equipment

BTS2

BERFAXERE

BERTAEREME  ME2
BEME -BEREREZ

2023
B =F —=
HK$'000
TBT

2022

HK$'000
FTER

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitment of HK$198,775,000 (2022: HK$201,750,000)
principally relating to construction work of petrochemical
products storage facilities.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
bank and other borrowings, amounts due from/
to connected companies, bank balances and cash.
The main purpose of these financial instruments
is to raise and maintain finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial
instruments such as trade and other receivables and
trade and other payables, which arise directly from
its business activities.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are (i) foreign currency risk, (ii) interest
rate risk, (i) credit risk and (iv) liquidity risk. The
Group does not have any written risk management
policies and guidelines. However, the board of
directors co-operates closely with key management
to identify and evaluate risks and generally adopts
conservative strategies on its risk management
and limits the Group's exposure to these risks to a
minimum level as follows.

198,775 201,750
RREIER - NEE A E0198,775,000% 7T
(ZZ = — 4 : 201,750,000/ 7T) 2 ¥ *

ErhAtemREERTIE -

32. £@MI A
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i FE U SR IR A I B 5 Ko EL b 8 A AR
BEZRBRAMESRMTA  ZERA
BERBEEBRPEL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

234

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Foreign currency risk

Most of the Group's business transactions were
conducted in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
("RMB") and United States dollars (“US$").
Exposures to foreign currency risk arise
from certain of the Group's trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables and cash
and bank balances denominated in HK$, RMB
and US$. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge its foreign
currency risk. The Group reviews its foreign
currency exposures regularly and considers
there is no significant exposure on its foreign
currency risk.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to market risk for
changes in interest rates relates primarily to
its interest-bearing financial instruments (with
floating interest rates) including bank balances
and cash.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest
rates had been 100 basis points (2022: 100
basis points) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s
net profit would decrease/increase by
HK$1,583,000 (2022: the Group's net loss would
increase/decrease by HK$179,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied
to the exposure to interest rate risk for the
financial instruments in existence at that date.
The 100 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates
over the period until the next annual end of
the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2023 #;

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iii)

Credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets on the
consolidated statement of financial position,
which is net of impairment losses, represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
on these financial assets.

Trade receivables

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. The Group limits its
exposure to credit risk from trade receivables
by selecting the counterparties with reference
to their past credit history and/or market
reputation.

to credit risk

The Group's exposure

is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. The default
risk of the industry and country in which
customers operate also has an influence
on credit risk but to a lesser extent. Credit
quality of a customer is assessed based on an
extensive credit rating and individual credit
limit assessment which is mainly based on the

Group's own trading records.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had a concentration of credit risk as 56.0%
(2022: 94.0%) and 95.0% (2022: 98.0%) of the
trade receivables were due from the Group's
largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

mEMBRRME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

236

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iii)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group's customer base consists of a wide
range of clients and the trade receivables are
categorised by common risk characteristics
that are representative of the customers’
abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance
with the contractual terms. The Group applies a
simplified approach in calculating ECL for trade
receivables and recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date
and has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.
The expected loss rate used in the provision
matrix is calculated for each category based
on actual credit loss experience over the past
years and adjusted for current and forward
looking factors to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historical data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s estimate on
future economic conditions over the expected
lives of the receivables. There was no change
in the estimation techniques or significant
assumptions made during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2023 #;

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iii)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as
at the reporting period, based on the invoice

date is as follows:

mEMBRRME

E-E-=F+-A=+—HLFE

32. EWMIT R

) TREMEZEREREE®)

(iii)

FERRH)

ESEWHE(E)

RS B B 5 e WG IR 1R 3
SHHM KRR :

2023 2022
—m—=

HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT T T

Non-credit impaired BEERE
Within 90 days 90H I 176,300 406,910
91-180 days 91£180H = 5,771
More than 365 days 3658 & 17,982 3,385
194,282 416,066

Credit impaired EERE

More than 365 days 3658 3,514 3,514
3,514 3,514
197,796 419,580

The Group allows a credit period of up to
90 days to its trade debtors. The information
about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for
trade receivables using a provision matrix is
summarised below.

ARERTHESEHARS
WRZEEH - FRABSER
FEZEERREEHREERES
18 {5 P 8 1 R e ) B R 4
T o

REBNMENEBRBERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

238

32. EWMIT R

(@) Financial risk management objectives and

p0|iCieS (Continued)
(iii)  Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023

Non-credit impaired

Expected
loss rate

EHEBERR
%
B

@ EHEAKBEEEERBXME)

iy FEERKE)

E5EWHE(E)

R=B==#+=A=+-8

Gross
carrying
Amount

IR 4B
HK$’'000
THET

Loss
allowance
BERRE
HK$'000
FET

Credit-
impaired

FERE

BEERE

Not past due 0% 176,300 = No

1-90 days past due 0% = = No

# H1E90H i1

More than 365 days past due 0% 17,982 = No

#HR365A M el
194,282 =

Credit impaired

FEERE

Over 365 days past due 100% 3,514 (3,514) Yes

# H365H M + B
197,796 (3,514)

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 #HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 32. eI A #E)
(@) Financial risk management objectives and @) 2REAMEEEERBE®)
policies (Continued)
(iii)  Credit risk (Continued) (i) FEERRHE)
Trade receivables (Continued) EZ BN R (E)
As at 31 December 2022 RZBEZ—_F+=-A=+—H

Gross

Expected carrying Loss Credit-

loss rate Amount allowance impaired
EHIE AR FREEE BEBEE FERE
% HK$000 HK$'000
Eli=d FAET TB T

Non-credit impaired

BEERE

Not past due 0% 406,910 - No

1-90 days past due 0% 5,771 - No

# HI1E90R s

More than 365 days past due 0% 3,385 - No

#HR3658 M i
416,066 -

Credit impaired

FEERE

Over 365 days past due 100% 3,514 (3,514) Yes

# Hi365H M + A
419,580 (3,514)

REBNMENEBRBERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE
32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 2. €EMITEHE)

(@) Financial risk management objectives and @ ZMEREEAERBEX@E
p0|iCieS (Continued)

(iiiy Credit risk (Continued) (i) EERRE)

240

Trade receivables (Continued)

Included in the Group's trade receivables
balance as at 31 December 2023 are debtors
with a carrying amount of HK$17,982,000
(2022:HK$9,156,000), which are past due as
at 31 December 2023 but which the Group
has not impaired as there has not been any
significant changes in credit quality and the
directors believe that the amounts are fully
receivable.

Receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired as at 31 December 2023 and 2022
relate to a wide range of customers for whom
there was no history of default.

The Group does not hold any collateral over

E5EWHE(E)

W-_E-=F+=-A=+—H"
AEBZESERUGRELEHE
¥ BR 18 417,982,000 7T (=
T~ 4 :9156,0008 7T) 2 JE
W BEEFRR=ZZ==
F+—_AZ+—RAE@EH &
AEBMITENIRBE RAB
EEHEERTETMNENE S
MEBEBZMREE2EREZS K
17 o

RZEB_=FR-_F-__F+
“RA=t—8 BMREBHTE
BB 2 FE W TR H % 2 I 4
REBZEPER -

R-TF-_=F+"A=+—8H"

trade receivables as at 31 December 2023 AEBETERE S EWRE
(2022: Nil). BEAMERR(ZE==
/) o

As at 31 December 2023, the Group
recognised loss allowance of HK$3,514,000
(2022: HK$3,514,000) on the trade receivables.
The movements in the loss allowance for trade
receivables during the year are summarised
below.

RZZE—=%F+=H=1+—8"
$%E’?ﬁf§’f%ﬁ§ﬂﬂlmlﬁﬁﬁw g
8 B 13,514,000 T (ZE =
T 13,514,000/ 7T) o AARE
B2 B 5 WA I8 G
g o

2023 2022
—EC-=

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTER TAET

At beginning of year and at end RF I RMEH K

of the reporting period

3,514 3,514

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2023 #;

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iii)

Credit risk (Continued)
Other receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment
on other receivables from various parties based
on 12-month ECL. The credit risk of the Group's
other receivables arises from default of the
counterparties, with maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amounts of these receivables.
Individual credit limits are set based on the
assessments of the credit quality.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken
into account the historical actual credit loss
experience and the financial position of the
counterparties, past collection history, current
creditworthiness, adjusted for forward-looking
factors that are specific to the debtors and
general economic conditions of the industry in
which the counterparties operate, in estimating
the probability of default of these financial
assets, as well as the loss upon default in
each case. The management of the Group
considers the ECL of these financial assets to
be insignificant after taking into account the
financial position, quality of the counterparties
and past settlement records. There was
no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the year.

mEMBRRME

BT =F+A=+—HIEFE

32. @M T AE#)

@ THEAKBEEEERBE#)

(iii)

FERRH)

A fih JE W KR

7N 52 B 5 HLfth B W BR RO TR
EFHERERET12EAEH
EEEE AEEMEMER
RRNEERRRERSES
MEK - K ERBEFNER
RIENEESRE - BREER
ERREEELEFHET -

EfABEMEERER K%
BeEZRIBEEREER
KRB ZEF 0 /M B AR
o BENMBGRESE - BRE
BE - W HEB AR EATE T
AERHTEEMETERN—
RSB IR E LR - DA A
RETHEEMENRE R
ERBRATERHONERX - 8F
BRHHF 2 BHBMMNNE R
AR BERERSRE  AEE
EEERRAUSTEMEELTR
HEEBFEBRYTEK - FRIL
EEE AR EARNBRRFEH
Bk

EEMENBEROERDT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

242

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iv)

Liquidity risk

Management of the Group aims at maintaining
sufficient level of cash and cash equivalents
to finance the Group’'s operations and
expected expansion. The Group's primary cash
requirements include payments for operating
expenses, additions or upgrades of property,
plant and equipment and repayment of
borrowings. The Group finances its working
capital requirements mainly by the funds
generated from operations, advances from
related parties and use of bank and other
borrowings.

The Group manages liquidity risk by
forecasting the amount of cash required and
monitoring the working capital of the Group
to ensure that all liabilities due and known
funding requirements could be met. Based
on the assessment of the management, the
overall liquidity risk encountered by the Group
is manageable.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had
net current liabilities of approximately
HK$390,688,000 (2022: HK$34,600,000). The
consolidated financial statements have been
prepared by the directors of the Company
on a going concern basis taking into account
of the measures mentioned in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2023
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) EREBEEEERBEX#®)

(ivy RBEZER

AEBEEERAERERNA
ERRSEEY  /RAKEE
BRIEFRRETEES - A%
BErERSFREEREEH
XCORBEEIBEYE  BER
RBAREREERNZRK
B REBETBEURBKEM
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BEHK-

AEBEEBEAMFREEHE
LRERASELEESEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 #HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

(iv)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The remaining undiscounted contracted
maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities at the end of the reporting
period, based on the earliest date in which
the Group is required to settle, is summarised
below:

At 31 December 2023 R-Z-=#+-A=+-H

32. £@T
(@ =
(iv)

On
demand

3 months 1

BB=f@A

=R
HK$'000
TER

HK$000
TER

Less than more than

A &)
AMEREERERBER A

RBESERA)

RBEHR  BAKEAEXN
ZERFEAHEDAKENEITE
TRABZRBRBEBRAND
HBEAMELT:

Over

2 years but
no more
than

5 years
BBmE
BFEB
fik:3
HK$'000
TET

Over

1 year but
not more
than

2 years
HB-F
BFEB
M
HK$'000
TET

Over

3 months
but not
2 months Total
BF& B
T=f8A
HK$'000
TR

At
HK$'000
TET

Trade and other payables E5REMENTE 58,467 174,725 - - - 233192
Amounts due to connected companies {7 & A 5] 578 45,693 - 4,624 2,273 - 52,590
Amounts due to a former associate BN —HABELRFE 33,216 = = = - 33,216
Bank loans BIEH = 668 13,054 33,784 = 47,506

Listed credit enhanced guaranteed TTERERERES
bonds - 434,601 = = - 434,601
Lease liabilities HEAE - 159 455 60 - 674
Loans from a connected company RE-HBERRZER - 695 20,544 144,327 5500 171,066
Loan from a third party RE-—GEZHZER - 4094 12,283 16377 12,283 45,037
137,376 614,942 50,960 196,821 17,783 1,017,882

At 31 December 2022 R-Z--%+=-A=t+-H

On Less than
demand 3 months

BB=AA
R EREB
+=f@A

HK$'000
FHT

BEF
HK$'000
FETL

more than
12 months

Over

2 years but

no more

than

5 years

BBRE

BTER
nE +
HK$'000  HK$'000
FEE TAR

Over

1 year but
not more
than

2 years
BiA—F
BTER
RIS
HK$'000
iR

Over
3 months
but not

Trade and other payables BHREM 102,216 407,652 - - - 509868
Amounts due to connected ENFEENBELR
companies FE 37,593 - - 5,590 2,310 45,493
Amounts due to an associate RS AR - - 34,179 - - M
Bank loan RITER - 583 1,826 2,406 34771 39,586
Listed credit enhanced ITERERERES
guaranteed bonds - 5144 5144 433,820 - 444108
Lease liabilities HERE - 160 480 444 - 1,084
Loans from a connected company RE-MHERRAIZER - - - 38,638 176,482 215120
139,809 413,539 41,629 480,898 213,563 1,289,438
REEBNERERBERAR 243
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

244

(b)

Capital management

The objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital
and to support the Group's stability and growth.

The capital structure of the Group mainly consists of
bank and other borrowings and equity attributable
to equity owners of the Company.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to ensure optimal
capital structure and shareholder returns, taking
into consideration the future capital requirements
of the Group. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares
or return capital to shareholders. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes during
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Categories and fair value of financial

instruments

The carrying amounts of each of the following

categories of financial assets and financial liabilities

are set out as follows:

mEMBRRME

December 2023 HE-E - =F+-_A=+—HILFE
32. T E @)
c EMIESERAFE

MTEESREENEREBEZR
EEZINMT

2023
—E-=

2022
—_=EF_-_=

HK$'000

AT

HK$'000
FTEx

Financial assets at amortised REEEMERESEA
costs under HKFRS 9: HEOR IR BB AT BR
ZEMEE:
Trade and other receivables g5 & E g W GRIE 197,993 457,597
Bank balances and cash BT MRE 158,274 17,863
356,267 475,460
2023 2022
—E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT
Financial liabilities at amortised 3% # 8§ & 4<% iR =
costs: cREeE:
Trade and other payables B 5 & A EA A 283,509 535,757
Current portion of bank and RITREMEBEEZ
other borrowings BVER &8 473,409 606
Amount due to a former FES — R ATEE & A F]
associate/an associate A 33,216 34179
Non-current portion of bank and  RITRHMEE 2
other borrowings JEBNER B o> 209,477 624,700
Non-current portion of amount JET— MR E AR RIE
due to a connected company Z 3EENEREB 2,273 7,900
1,001,884 1,203,142

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not

materially different from their fair values as at 31

December 2023 and 2022.

PEERITARMEEZER-_"T_=FK
TR CF+ A=+ -HZAFELE
BEARER-

REBRENEROERDT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 33. &2 & B % AR R &
THE COMPANY

2022
HK$'000
T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries REB AR Z®E 14 8 8
Right-of-use assets EREEE 327 743
335 751
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments a5 IAE 352 322
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE I B B8 R B 3R IE 37,820 38,600
Cash at bank RITRE 597 1,607
38,769 40,529
Current liabilities R =R
Other payables and accrual H b e A K EET B A 3,002 2,360
Amount due to a subsidiary JE A5 — A Bf /&8 2 R 338 54,827 48,616
Amount due to a connected company & — B E R 7] 2 FIE 7,000 -
Other borrowings H b g 3R 427,053 418
491,882 51,394
Net current liabilities BREBEE (453,113) (10,865)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERBABERE (452,778) (10,114)
Non-current liabilities EFRBER
Other borrowings H R = 405,958
NET LIABILITIES FEE (452,778) (416,072)
Capital and reserves BEXR*E
Share capital fi% < 26 12,880 12,880
Reserves 1 33(a) (465,658) (428,952)
TOTAL DEFICITS B AL AR R (452,778) (416,072)
This statement of financial position was approved and AEEMBERREVR T _WF=A"+
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March NEZREFSHAERTENE  XLHAT
2024 and signed on its behalf by: ALTHRERERZ:
Zhao Liang Zhang Shukai
i) REE
Director Director
EFE EE

24 6 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

BT =F+A=+—HIEFE

Year ended 31 December 2023 &

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 33. &2 T B ik 5w &k &)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

(a)

Movements of the reserves

Share
premium

HK$'000
7
(Note 28(a))
(Ff 728(a))

(a) REEH

Contributed
surplus

HK$'000
TET
(Note 28(f)
GEZE)

Share-based
payment
reserve

WA RR 3
RERZ
R G
HK$'000
FAET
(Note 28(g))
(B 5£28(g)

Accumulated
losses

ZitER
HK$'000
THET

At 1 January 2022 RZE-Z-%—-F—H 201,419 34,556 3,063 (624,038)  (385,000)
Loss and total comprehensive loss ENBERZEBEAE

for the year - - - (43,952) (43,952)
At 31 December 2022 RZZZZ4+-A=1-H 201,419 34,556 3,063 (667990)  (428,952)
At 1 January 2023 R-Z-=%-5-H 201,419 34,556 3,063 (667,990) (428,952)
Loss and total comprehensive loss FRNERRZEHBLE

for the year - - - (36,706)  (36,706)
At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=f+t=ZA=+-H 201,419 34,556 3,063 (704,696) (465,658)

REBHNEREBRGERAE
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

M E
RESULTS E
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-= — T —E-—F ZE-FTF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000* HK$'000* HK$'000* HK$'000*
FH T FHT* T T* FE T FE T
Revenue Uy 1,158,042 795,967 908,411 2,049,861 1,517,072
Profit (Loss) before taxation B A (EE) 53,489 (64,162) (70,671) 562,513 (944,792)
Income tax (expense) credit ~ FIEH (AX)E & (7) (79) (67) 5,410 (199)
Profit (Loss) for the year FRm M (E8) 53,482 (64,241) (70,738) 567923 (944,991)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E—-= —E-= B —ZTE-FEEFE Z—T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET FET FET FET
Total assets EESE 570,695 759,309 425,214 643,128 1,411,619
Total liabilities aEREE (1,017,678)  (1,261,102) (865,561)  (1,025,672)  (2,362,526)
Total deficits B AL m (446,983) (501,793) (440,347) (382,544) (950,907)

* The above figures included both continuing operations and discontinued ~ * FHRBTFEERELCEEBRERIELEER -
operations.

) 48 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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